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FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

 

Taziki’s Franchising, LLC 
(an Alabama limited liability company) 

3755 Corporate Woods Drive 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242 

(205) 451-1860 
franchisesales@tazikiscafe.com 

www.tazikiscafe.com 
 

Taziki’s Franchising, LLC offers Mediterranean inspired fast casual restaurant franchises.  The 
total investment necessary to begin operation of a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café franchise ranges from 
$468,000 to $831,000.  This includes $35,000 that must be paid as an initial fee to us for your initial unit 
and $1,000 for prototype plans.  If you enter into an area development agreement with us, the total 
investment necessary to begin operation of at least three restaurants ranges from $1,395,000 to 
$2,478,000, including the minimum area development and franchise fees of $95,000 that you pay to us 
and $1,000 for prototype plans. 

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other 
information in plain English.  Read this Disclosure Document and all accompanying agreements 
carefully.  You must receive this Disclosure Document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a 
binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the 
proposed franchise sale.  Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the information 
contained in this document. 

You may wish to receive your Disclosure Document in another format that is more convenient for 
you.  To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact William G. Magruder at 3755 
Corporate Woods Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242, via email at franchise@tazikis.com or by phone 
at (205) 451-1860. 

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship.  Don’t rely on the Disclosure 
Document alone to understand your contract.  Read all of your contract carefully.  Show your contract 
and this Disclosure Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant. 

Buying a franchise is a complex investment.  The information in this Disclosure Document can 
help you make up your mind.  More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying 
a Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this Disclosure Document, is available from the 
Federal Trade Commission.  You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580.  You can also visit the FTC’s home page at 
www.ftc.gov for additional information.  Call your state agency or visit your public library for other 
sources of information on franchising. 

There may also be laws on franchising in your state.  Ask your state agencies about them. 

The Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document is April 16, 2021. 
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document 

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to 
find more information: 

QUESTION WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION 

How much can I earn? Item 19 may give you information about outlet 
sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try 
to obtain this information from others, like current 
and former franchisees. You can find their names 
and contact information in Item 20 or Exhibit G. 

How much will I need to invest? Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the 
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8 
describes the suppliers you must use. 

Does the franchisor have the 
financial ability to provide support 
to my business? 

Item 21 or Exhibit D includes financial 
statements. Review these statements carefully. 

Is the franchise system stable, 
growing, or shrinking? 

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the 
number of company-owned and franchised 
outlets. 

Will my business be the only 
Taziki’s Mediterranean Café 
business in my area? 

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the 
franchise agreement describe whether the 
franchisor and other franchisees can compete with 
you. 

Does the franchisor have a troubled 
legal history? 

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its 
management have been involved in material 
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings. 

What’s it like to be a Taziki’s 
Mediterranean Café franchisee? 

Item 20 or Exhibit G lists current and former 
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about 
their experiences. 

What else should I know? Those questions are only a few things you should 
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in 
this disclosure document to better understand this 
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents. 
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally 

 
Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees 
even if you are losing money. 
 
Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to 
change its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require 
you to make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your 
franchise business. 
 
Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a 
limited group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive 
than similar items you could buy on your own. 
 
Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a 
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. 
Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what 
you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation. 
 
Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the 
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory. 
 
Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you 
may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to 
continue to operate your franchise business. 
 
When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a 
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your 
landlord or other creditors. 
 

Some States Require Registration 
 
 Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to 
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that 
the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To 
find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the 
agency information in Exhibit F. 
 
 Your state may also have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be 
made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. 
See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda. 
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise 
 

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted: 
 
1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The Franchise Agreement and Area 

Development Agreement require you to resolve disputes with us by litigation only 
in the district where our home office is located, which is currently Jefferson 
County, Alabama. Out-of-state litigation may force you to accept a less favorable 
settlement for disputes. It may also cost you more to litigate with us in Jefferson 
County, Alabama than in your own state. 
 

 
Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific 

Addenda” to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted. 
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ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
FOR THE STATE OF MICHIGAN 

 
THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT 
ARE SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS.  IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING 
PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE 
VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU: 

A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees. 

A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver or estoppel which 
deprives franchisee of rights and protection provided in this Act.  This shall not preclude a franchisee, 
after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims. 

A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term except for 
good cause.  Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful provision of 
the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable 
opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure. 

A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the 
franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of the 
franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and furnishings.  Personalized materials which have 
no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and furnishings not reasonably 
required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation.  This subsection applies 
only if (i) the term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise 
or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, 
service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising of other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent 
to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of 
franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise. 

A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to other 
franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances.  This section does not require a renewal 
provision. 

A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state.  This shall not preclude 
the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a 
location outside this state. 

A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except 
for good cause.  This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to 
purchase the franchise.  Good cause shall include, but is not limited to: 

(1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then current reasonable 
qualifications or standards. 

(2) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or subfranchisor. 

(3) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful 
obligations. 
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(4) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the 
franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer. 

A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified 
with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants a franchisor a right of first 
refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party 
willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the 
franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if 
the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the 
breach in the manner provided in Subdivision (C). 

A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer its 
obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for 
providing the required contractual service. 

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE 
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, 
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL. 

ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS NOTICE SHOULD BE DIRECTED TO THE 
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL, CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION, 
ATTN:  FRANCHISE DEPARTMENT, 670 LAW BLDG., LANSING, MICHIGAN 48913, 
(517) 373-7117.  
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ITEM 1 
 

THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES 

To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, we will use the words “we,” “us” and 
“our” when referring to Taziki’s Franchising, LLC and the words “you” and “your” when referring to the 
individual or business entity which buys a Franchised Business franchise.  The words “you” and “your” 
do not include any individual or business entity which owns an interest in you.  We will require all 
individuals and business entities that own an interest in you to guarantee your obligations to us. 

Franchisor, and any Parents, Predecessors, and Affiliates 

We are an Alabama limited liability company formed on January 1, 2013.  Our principal business 
address is 3755 Corporate Woods Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242.  Our direct parent corporation is 
Taziki’s, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Parent”), which was incorporated on May 15, 1998 as an 
Alabama corporation and converted to a Delaware corporation on January 27, 2016.  Due to a recent 
corporate reorganization, Taziki’s, Inc. is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taziki’s Holding Company, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Holdings”) formed on May 17, 2017.  Holdings is owned by 
all of the former stockholders of the Parent.  The principal business address for Parent and Holdings is 
3755 Corporate Woods Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242.  We have no predecessors, although 
Parent has previously entered into license agreements for six Taziki’s Mediterranean Café restaurants. 

We presently do business under the name Taziki’s Franchising, LLC.  You will operate your 
franchised restaurant under the name Taziki’s Mediterranean Café.  The name and address of our agent 
for service of process in Alabama appears on Exhibit E to this Disclosure Document. 

We do not operate a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café, but our affiliates by common ownership, 
Taziki’s Restaurants, LLC, Taziki’s Restaurants 2, LLC, Taziki’s Restaurants ATL, LLC, Taziki’s 
Atlanta, LLC and Taz BHAM, LLC (collectively, “Taziki’s Restaurants”) operated 17 locations on 
December 27, 2020.  Parent has entered into joint ventures in which the eight Restaurants owned by the 
joint ventures are operated by franchisees and those Restaurants are considered franchises.  We conduct 
no business activities other than franchising. 

The Business and Franchises Offered 

We offer the opportunity to establish and operate a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café restaurant 
franchise (the “Franchised Business”) at a single, defined location (the “Franchised Location”) within a 
specific territory (the “Territory”) using our trademarks, service marks, trade names, logos and 
commercial symbols (the “Marks”), certain printed materials (the “Materials”), proprietary products and 
methods of operation (the “System”) under a Franchise Agreement you sign with us and our Operations 
Manual that sets forth our System standards (the “System Standards”). 

A Taziki’s Mediterranean Café (a “Restaurant”) is a fast-casual restaurant serving lunch and 
dinner and specializing in Mediterranean and Greek inspired foods.  Customers order at the counter or by 
using a mobile app, on-line on the brand website, www.tazikis.com or by telephone, and meals are 
prepared to order and served for on-premises dining or through pick-up curbside delivery, drive-thru, or 
catering for off-premises dining.  You may offer wait staff table service for dinner service, with our 
consent.  Wine and beer must be served subject to local laws.  A Franchised Business typically employs 
between 22 and 35 individuals and operates in an end cap location of a strip shopping center or a stand-
alone location with approximately 3,000 square feet of interior space and a patio.  It has indoor seating for 
approximately 75 to 125 customers and outdoor seating for another 20 to 40 customers, as well as parking 
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for between 25 and 65 automobiles.  The Franchised Business offers eat-in and take-out meals, and must 
offer off-premises catering services.  Delivery service is optional on the part of each franchisee but 
encouraged within a reasonable distance from the Restaurant.  You must designate one of your equity 
owners as your “Owner-Operator” in the Franchise Agreement to undertake certain responsibilities on 
your behalf. 

We may also franchise operators of retail and institutional food service venues to operate a 
Taziki’s Mediterranean Café restaurant “Nontraditional Concept” facility for Nontraditional host facility 
locations such as airports and transportation centers, sports and entertainment venues, college dining 
halls, hospital cafeterias, mall food courts, and in-plant cafeterias.  A Nontraditional Concept facility may 
offer a different menu from a standard restaurant that we approve, share seating and beverage dispensing 
with other restaurant counters, offer service hours to match the traffic in the host facility, have server 
uniforms that match uniforms worn by other food servers at the host facility, and have limited use of 
Mark-bearing signage and other System elements.  Nontraditional Concepts are offered only to operators 
(“Qualified Operators”) of food service facilities in host facilities that will supply their own training, 
inspection, supervision and quality control functions.  If a Qualified Operator does not have an exclusive 
arrangement on a nontraditional venue located within your Territory, all of your franchise agreements 
with us are in good standing and all of your Restaurants have achieved an average score of at least 90% 
over the last three standards assessments, then you will have a right of first offer to submit a franchise 
application before we accept a franchise application from a third party seeking to operate a Taziki’s 
Mediterranean Café at the venue.  For purposes of clarification, Nontraditional Concept franchises are 
sold under this Disclosure Document.  See Item 12. 

 We have also introduced an experimental product line extension to provide Taziki’s franchisees 
the option to leverage their existing resources with a delivery-only concept under the name and mark 
“Broadway Bowls.” All marketing and advertising for this concept will be controlled and coordinated by 
Franchisor. We also control the mobile applications on which the food orders for this concept will be 
placed and processed.  This experimental concept requires minimal investment and continuing costs by 
each franchisee that opts into the concept.  We may modify, expand, contract, limit or discontinue the 
concept after a test period.  Either we or the franchisee may terminate the franchisee’s participation in the 
program without penalty.  See the Broadway Bowls Kitchen Option Addendum to Franchise Agreement. 

We also offer an Area Development Agreement for the exclusive right to develop a territory large 
enough for multiple Restaurants (the “Development Territory”).  The Area Development Agreement does 
not grant a franchise to operate a Franchised Business, but does prohibit us and our affiliates from 
operating a Restaurant or granting a license or franchise to anyone else to operate a Restaurant within a 
defined territory for a period of time set by the agreement.  This restriction on our rights does not apply to 
Nontraditional Concept facilities that we may locate within the Development Territory.  Under an Area 
Development Agreement, you must then meet a “Performance Schedule” by locating a restaurant site, 
submitting the information necessary for us to consider the site, obtaining our approval for the site, and 
then signing our Franchise Agreement for the Restaurant.  Additionally, you must pay an area 
development fee at signing, which will be credited toward the initial franchise fees for each Restaurant 
you commit to open.  See Item 5. 

Market and Competition 

The consumer market for a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant consists primarily of 
customers who patronize fast-casual restaurants – a highly developed and very competitive market.  As a 
Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant franchisee, you will compete with numerous other businesses 
offering fast casual dining, catering and ready to eat meals, similar Mediterranean-inspired cuisine and 
fast delivery of food prepared to order. 
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Regulation 

You will have to comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations which apply 
generally to all businesses, and health and sanitation codes that apply to restaurants generally.  These may 
include laws governing display of nutritional information and limiting the use of trans-fats in preparation 
of food prepared or served on-premises.  You may also have to comply with rules and regulations related 
to the analysis, publication and presentation of nutritional information related to your Franchised 
Business under regulations promulgated by the FDA under the Affordable Care Act on December 21, 
2014 at 21 CFR Part 101.  The FDA has promulgated menu labeling regulations and Level I guidance on 
nutrition labeling and standard menu items.  Other nutrient information – total calories, fat, saturated fat, 
cholesterol, sodium, total carbohydrates, sugars, fiber and total protein – must be made available in 
writing upon request.  Other applicable regulations may affect packaging, bagging, plastic straws or other 
elements of the business.  If you serve alcoholic beverages, you must comply with licensing and service 
requirements.  We encourage you to make additional inquiries into those laws and regulations and obtain 
the assistance of legal counsel in that regard.  We have provided our franchisees with the nutritional 
information about our standard menu items and recipes we believe is required under these regulations for 
inclusion on their menus and menu boards. 

Prior Business Experience 

We have never operated a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café.  We have offered Taziki’s Mediterranean 
Café franchises since 2013.  We have not and do not offer franchises in any other line of business.  The 
first company-owned Taziki’s Mediterranean Café unit opened in March 1998, owned by Keith and Amy 
Richards, was transferred to Parent upon its incorporation in May 1998.  Parent offered licenses for 
Taziki’s Mediterranean Café units beginning in September 2008.  All licensed units were converted to 
franchised units in 2013.  Parent has never offered franchises in any other line of business. 

Taziki’s Restaurants has not offered franchises of the type you will operate and has not offered 
franchises in any other line of business. 

ITEM 2 
 

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE 

Parent is our sole member.  The members of Parent’s Board of Directors who are most involved 
in decisions affecting us are John Michael Bodnar, Michael Bodnar and Keith Richards. 

Chairman of Parent Board of Directors:  John Michael Bodnar 

John Michael Bodnar has been a member of the Board of Directors of Parent since January 2008 
and has been the Chairman since June 2016.  He has been a principal of Fresh Hospitality in Birmingham, 
Alabama and has served as an executive, board member or manager of its other restaurant concepts since 
September 2009.  He also served as a Vice President of Jim N’ Nick’s Bar B Q Riverchase, Inc., operator 
of the Jim N’ Nick’s restaurant chain in Birmingham, Alabama, from 1998 until July 2014. 

Chief Executive Officer:  Dan Simpson 

Dan Simpson became our Chief Executive Officer in February 2018, after he served as our Chief 
Innovation Officer from May 2016 until February 2018.  He also served as the Chief Innovation Officer 
for Fresh Hospitality from May 2016 until February 2018.  He was a managing partner of Fresh 
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Hospitality, in Nashville, Tennessee from January 2015 until May 2016.  Mr. Simpson was the CEO of 
ToGo Technologies, Nashville, Tennessee from May 2012 until January 2015. 

Chief Financial Officer:  William G. Magruder 

William G. Magruder has served as the Chief Financial Officer for Parent since December 2012 
and as our Chief Financial Officer since our inception in January 2013.  Prior to his promotion, he served 
as Controller of Parent from August 2012 until December 2012.  Mr. Magruder was employed by Barber 
Companies, Inc., Birmingham, Alabama from September 2001 until July 2012. 

Member of Parent Board of Directors:  H. Keith Richards 

H. Keith Richards was Chief Franchise Officer from June 2016 until February 2018.  Since then, 
he serves in an executive role in our franchise development and culinary development functions.  Before 
that, he was the Development Officer for Parent from December 2012 until June 2016 and served as our 
Chief Development Officer from January 2013 until June 2016.  Prior to his promotion, he served as 
President of Parent from May 1998 until December 2012.  He has been a Director of Parent since its 
founding in May 1998. 

Director of Franchise Development:  Alexander W. Garmezy 

Alexander W. Garmezy became our Director of Franchise Development in February 2019.  
Before joining us, he worked for the Nashville Predators Hockey Club LLC in various roles including 
Corporate Development Manager, New Business Account Executive, and Account Executive from June 
2012 until joining us in February 2019. 

Chief Operating Officer:  Michael Smith 

Michael Smith was promoted to our Chief Operating officer in December 2019 after serving as 
our Vice President of Operations since February 2018.  He served as the Director of Franchise Operations 
for us in Birmingham, Alabama from September 2016 until February 2018.  He was the Vice President of 
Operations for HOOT WINC, LLC, a Hooters restaurant franchisee, in San Marcos, California from July 
2015 until June 2016.  Before that, he was a Franchise Business Development Manager for Hooters of 
America, LLC in Atlanta, Georgia from March 2012 until August 2015. 

ITEM 3 
 

LITIGATION 

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item. 

ITEM 4 
 

BANKRUPTCY 

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item. 
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ITEM 5 
 

INITIAL FEES 

When you sign a Franchise Agreement for a Franchised Business, you must pay a non-refundable 
initial franchise fee of $35,000.   

Under an Area Development Agreement, you must commit to develop at least three restaurants 
and you must pay us a non-refundable Area Development Deposit of at least $45,000 at signing.  We 
apply $35,000 to the initial franchise fee due when you sign the Franchise Agreement for your first 
restaurant.  We collect $5,000 for each additional restaurant you commit to develop and hold the balance 
as a deposit.  We apply $5,000 of the deposit against each of the initial franchise fees due when you sign 
the Franchise Agreements for your additional restaurants.  Your first restaurant developed under the Area 
Development Agreement requires payment of the standard $35,000 initial franchise fee, but we charge a 
reduced initial franchise fee of $30,000 for each additional restaurant you commit to develop after your 
first under the Area Development Agreement, contingent on meeting the deadline in the Performance 
Schedule for signing its Franchise Agreement for a location we approve within your assigned 
Development Territory.  That means you must pay a minimum of $95,000 in initial franchise fees to open 
the three required restaurants under the Area Development Agreement.  When you sign the Franchise 
Agreement for each restaurant after the first, you pay the balance of the initial franchise fee for that 
restaurant, which will be $25,000 if you meet the deadline and $30,000 if you do not meet the deadline.  
You must obtain our approval for your proposed restaurant locations and sign its Franchise Agreement by 
the dates specified in the Area Development Agreement to obtain the reduced initial franchise fee. 

ITEM 6 
 

OTHER FEES 

Type of fee Amount Due Date Remarks 
Royalty Fee (See Note 
1) 

4% of Net Cash Sales 10 days after Reporting 
Period ends 

Payment must be made 
via electronic funds 
transfer 

Marketing Fee (See Note 
2) 

Up to 1.00% of Net 
Cash Sales 

10 days after Reporting 
Period ends 

Payment must be made 
via electronic funds 
transfer 

Additional Training Fee 
(See Note 3) 

$35.00 per hour plus 
trainer’s expenses for 
additional initial 
training requested by 
you 

As Incurred We may provide 
additional employee 
training at your 
Franchised Location.  
We may change this rate 
at any time. 

Managed Digital 
Advertising Services 
Fees (optional) 

Currently $70 or $125 
per month 

10 days after Reporting 
Period ends 

Payment must be made 
via electronic funds 
transfer 

Transfer Fees (See Note 
4) 

50% of the then-current 
initial franchise fee 

Upon transfer Payable if you transfer 
the Franchise 
Agreement or 
Franchised Business or 
on ownership change 
involving control of 
50% or more of your 
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Type of fee Amount Due Date Remarks 
equity interests 

Audit Results and 
Accounting Fees (See 
Note 5) 

Cost of audit and 
accounting fees 

Within 15 days of 
receipt of audit report 

Payable if you 
understate Net Cash 
Sales by 2% or more 

Late Charge Lesser of 1.5% per 
month or highest rate 
allowed by law 

Within 15 days of 
invoice date 

Accrues from due date 

Renewal Fee (See Note 
6) 

$5,000 When you send your 
renewal notice 

Paid if you renew when 
you give notice of 
renewal 

Public Offering Fee $10,000 Upon request for 
approval of offering 
documents 

Payable if you request 
our review of a 
placement 
memorandum or 
registration statement 
for any public or private 
offering your equity or 
debt securities 

Indemnification Costs 
(See Note 7) 

As incurred Within 15 days of 
invoice 

Payable to us for 
damages, costs and 
expenses incurred by us 
from third party claims 
arising from your 
operation of the 
business; includes our 
cost of defense and 
resolution 

Liquidated Damages 
(See Note 8) 

24 months (or the 
number of months 
remaining in your 
current term, if less) of 
your average monthly 
Royalty payable for the 
one year preceding 
termination 

At termination of the 
Franchise Agreement 

Payable if the Franchise 
Agreement terminates 
prior to expiration 
unless we breach and 
fail to cure.  See Item 
17. 

 
All fees are imposed by and are paid to us.  All fees are non-refundable.  Except as noted below 

in Note 1, all fees are uniformly imposed and collected.  There are currently no franchisee cooperatives in 
existence, so there are no fees imposed by cooperatives and no voting power requirements for company-
owned outlets. 

Notes 

Note 1.  Royalty Fee.  You must pay us a non-refundable royalty fee of 4% of the Net Cash Sales 
of your Franchised Business during the preceding Reporting Period.  “Net Cash Sales” means all revenues 
accrued from all business conducted at or from your Franchised Business, whether paid by cash, check, 
credit card, charge account, barter exchange or otherwise, without deduction for bad debt, credit card fees 
or other costs of collection or processing.  Net Cash Sales does not include:  (i) any exchange of goods or 
services between your Restaurants where such exchange is made solely for the convenient operation of 
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your Restaurant business and not for the purpose of consummating a sale made in, at or from an 
Approved Location, (ii) returns to shippers, suppliers or manufacturers, (iii) cash or credit refunds to 
customers on transactions otherwise included in Net Cash Sales, (iv) sales of fixtures, machinery or 
equipment which are not stock in trade, (v) receipts from vending machines; (vi) sales taxes, consumer’s 
excise taxes, gross receipts taxes and other similar taxes now or hereafter imposed upon the sale of meals, 
food, beverages, merchandise or services at the Restaurant, but only if charged and collected separately 
from the sales prices of such items; and (vii) any portion of a sale that is deemed a non-cash sale such as 
the discounted portion of a sale, or any sale that is complimentary; (viii) gratuities and delivery fees 
included to the extent they are paid over to servers and delivery providers.  “Reporting Period” means 
each 28 day period beginning on the date specified in the Operations Manual.  Our accounting system 
operates on 13 periods of 28 days each for each fiscal year, with an extra day attached to one or two 
periods at our discretion.  Our fiscal year typically ends on the Sunday closest to December 31.  You must 
pay your royalty fee by electronic funds transfer under the Automated Clearing House Payment 
Authorization form attached as Attachment B to the Franchise Agreement. 

Note 2.  Marketing Fee.  We have established a Marketing Fund.  You must pay us a non-
refundable marketing fee of up to 1.00% (as designated by us in the Operations Manual) of the Net Cash 
Sales of your Franchised Business during the preceding Reporting Period.  See Item 11.  You will have to 
pay your Marketing Fee by ACH Payment when you pay your Royalty Fee. 

Note 3.  Additional Training Fee.  The Additional Training Fee covers training and operational 
support provided at your request beyond the training and opening assistance that we provide as part of 
your initial franchise fee as described in Item 11.  We currently charge $35 per hour plus the trainer’s 
travel expenses for additional training.  We may charge reasonable tuition, currently set at $500 per 
trainee, if additional training is provided in our Certified Training Stores, or for additional people you 
send to attend MIT training.  See Item 11.  We also reserve the right to change this fee at any time or to 
charge a reasonable amount for any optional additional training we make available after you open the 
Franchised Business. 

Note 4.  Transfer Fee.  You must pay a non-refundable fee of 50% of the then-current initial 
franchise fee if you transfer the Franchise Agreement or Franchised Business or in the event of an 
ownership change involving control of 50% or more of your equity interests.  We will not charge a fee for 
any transfer of your equity interests among any of your existing owners, any member of your immediate 
family or an initial transfer from an individual to an entity.  Transfers include sales, gifts, donations, and 
exchanges for value or without value.  See Item 17. 

Note 5.  Audit Fee.  We may audit your accounts, books and records at our expense.  However, if 
we find an understatement of 2% or more of your Net Cash Sales for any Reporting Period, you must 
reimburse us for our out-of-pocket expenses and allocable administrative costs and overhead incurred to 
perform and report on the audit. 

Note 6.  Renewal Fee.  The Franchise Agreement has an initial term of 10 years and provides for 
up to four additional five year renewal terms, all subject to certain conditions.  To renew your Franchise 
Agreement, you must pay us a non-refundable renewal fee equal to $5,000.  See Item 17. 

Note 7.  Indemnification.  You must defend, indemnify and hold us and our affiliates harmless 
from and against any claims asserted against us or our affiliates resulting from the operation of your 
Franchised Business. 

Note 8.  Liquidated Damages.  If the Franchise Agreement terminates prior to its expiration date 
for any reason other than our default and failure to cure, you must pay liquidated damages in an amount 
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equal to 24 (or the number of months remaining in your current term, if less) multiplied by the average 
monthly Royalties payable during the 12 month period preceding termination. 

ITEM 7 
 

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT - SINGLE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

Type of expenditure 
Low Range 

Amount 
High Range 

Amount 
Method of 
payment 

When due 
To whom 

payment is 
to be made 

Initial Franchise Fee 
(Notes 1, 2) 

$35,000 $35,000 Lump Sum Upon 
Signing 

Us 

Leasehold 
Improvements (Note 
3) 

$200,000 $475,000 Lump Sum As Agreed Contractors 

Furniture, Fixtures, 
and Kitchen 
Equipment (Note 4)  

$150,000 $185,000 As Incurred As Agreed Contractors 

Décor (Note 4) $5,000 $10,000 As Incurred As Agreed Suppliers 
Signage (Note 5) $5,000 $15,000 As Incurred As Agreed Suppliers 
Point-of-Sale System, 
Telecommunications 
and Technology (Note 
6) 

$13,000 $20,000 As Incurred As Agreed Suppliers 

Miscellaneous 
Opening Costs and 
Rent (Note 7) 

$10,000 $15,000 As Incurred As Agreed Suppliers, 
Landlord 

Opening Inventory $10,000 $12,000 As Incurred As Agreed Suppliers 
Owner-Operator 
Expenses While 
Training (Note 8) 

$7,000 $13,000 Salary/Per 
Diem 

As Agreed Owner-
Operator 

General Manager 
Expenses while 
Training (Note 8) 

$7,000 $13,000 Salary/Per 
Diem 

As Agreed General 
Manager 

Assistant General 
Manager While 
Training (Note 9) 

$6,000 $12,000 Salary/Per 
Diem 

As Agreed Trainees 

Shift Leader Expenses 
While Training (Note 
9) 

$2,000 $6,000 Salary/Per 
Diem 

As Agreed Trainees 

Insurance $8,000 $10,000 As Incurred As Agreed Suppliers 
Additional Funds (3 
months) (Note 10) 

$10,000 $10,000 As Incurred As Needed Suppliers; 
Employees 

TOTAL $468,000 $831,000    

 
YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT - 3 RESTAURANT AREA DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT 
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Type of expenditure 
Low Range 

Amount 
High Range 

Amount 
Method of 
payment 

When due 
To whom 

payment is 
to be made 

Initial Franchise Fees 
(Notes 1, 2) 

$95,000 $95,000 Lump Sum Upon 
Signing 

Us 

Leasehold 
Improvements (Note 
3) 

$600,000 $1,425,000 Lump Sum As Agreed Contractors 

Furniture, Fixtures, 
and Kitchen 
Equipment (Note 4)  

$450,000 $555,000 As Incurred As Agreed Contractors 

Décor (Note 4) $15,000 $30,000 As Incurred As Agreed Suppliers 
Signage (Note 5) $15,000 $45,000 As Incurred As Agreed Suppliers 
Point-of-Sale System, 
Telecommunications 
and Technology (Note 
6) 

$39,000 $60,000 As Incurred As Agreed Suppliers 

Miscellaneous 
Opening Costs and 
Rent (Note 7) 

$30,000 $45,000 As Incurred As Agreed Suppliers, 
Landlord 

Opening Inventory $30,000 $36,000 As Incurred As Agreed Suppliers 
Owner-Operator 
Expenses While 
Training (Note 8) 

$7,000 $13,000 Salary/Per 
Diem 

As Agreed Owner-
Operator 

General Manager 
Expenses while 
Training (Note 8) 

$21,000 $39,000 Salary/Per 
Diem 

As Agreed General 
Managers 

Assistant General 
Manager Expenses 
While Training (Note 
9) 

$21,000 $39,000 Salary/Per 
Diem 

As Agreed Trainees 

Shift Leader Expenses 
While Training 

$18,000 $36,000 Salary/Per 
Diem 

As Agreed Trainees 

Insurance $24,000 $30,000 As Incurred As Agreed Suppliers 
Additional Funds (3 
months) (Note 10) 

$30,000 $30,000 As Incurred As Needed Suppliers; 
Employees 

TOTAL $1,395,000 $2,478,000    

 
We have relied on Parent’s experience in opening company-owned Restaurants, as well as the 

experience of franchisees and joint ventures in opening Restaurants, to compile the foregoing estimates.  
All payments to us are non-refundable.  Any payments to third parties are subject to the refund policies of 
those third parties.  We do not offer financing directly or indirectly for any part of the initial investment. 

Notes 

(1) Initial Franchise Fee.  See Item 5 for a description of the initial franchise fee.  We do not 
provide financing for the initial franchise fee. 
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(2) Area Development Transaction.  If you sign an Area Development Agreement, you must 
pay us an Area Development Fee equal to the initial franchise fee for the first Development Unit of 
$35,000 plus a deposit of $5,000 for each additional Franchised Restaurant you commit to develop when 
you sign.  When you sign a Franchise Agreement for each subsequent Restaurant, you will pay the 
remainder ($25,000) of the $30,000 discounted initial franchise fee for additional restaurants under the 
Area Development Agreement.  The initial Area Development Fee is at least $45,000, including the initial 
franchise fee for the first Restaurant and the Area Development Fee deposits for at least two additional 
Restaurants.  Your total minimum commitment under the Area Development Agreement is $95,000. 

(3) Leasehold Improvements.  You must lease or own the Restaurant.  Your Franchised 
Location must have a minimum of 2,000 square feet of interior space with table and counter seating for at 
least 75 patrons inside and no patrons outside.  The amount of monthly rental expenses for your 
Franchised Location may vary widely and will depend on geographic location, size, visibility, local rental 
rates, other businesses in the area, other local economic conditions, the site’s market potential and other 
factors.  We prefer end-cap or free-standing locations in high traffic areas with a patio.  The Franchised 
Business should have parking for between 25 and 65 automobiles.  Improvement costs for the rental space 
will also vary widely depending upon the amount of renovation and retrofitting you must perform to 
transform the space into a restaurant, with improvements for free-standing units typically costing more.  
Your leased space may be a pre-existing restaurant that will be retrofit to meet our System Standards.  
The amounts for leasehold improvements assumes you pay us the amount to obtain the prototype 
architectural plan and take it to a local architect to make to code.  If you choose not to use this prototype, 
your costs for the plans for your Restaurant may increase.  

(4) Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment; Décor.  The amounts for furniture, fixtures, 
equipment and decor include the cost to purchase the recommended furniture, fixtures, equipment and 
movable decor for a standard Restaurant.  The amounts exclude the cost of freight, installation and sales 
tax (if applicable), which will vary depending on your location.  We require no specialized equipment 
except the kitchen equipment necessary to conform to the System Standards in the Operations Manual. 

(5) Signage.  These amounts represent the cost for interior and exterior building signage, 
ranging from standard exterior signage, monument signs and up to and including more expensive free-
standing signs on high-rise poles or highway signs.  The cost of signage may vary significantly depending 
on the location of the Franchised Business, market conditions and local ordinances. 

(6) Point-of-Sale System.  The amounts for the point-of-sale system include the estimated 
costs of purchasing an approved point of sale system, including file server, touch-screen display, 
customer display, thermal printer, software (including customer loyalty rewards and email marketing 
program) and all related peripherals.  The Square, Inc. Food & Beverage tablet based point of sale system 
is our approved system.  We may approve other point of sale systems in our sole discretion upon request.  
We currently contemplate that enhancements or upgrades will be made on an annual basis.  The approved 
vendor of the hardware or software systems may charge you a fee for the enhancements and upgrades.  
The amount of such fee will depend upon your agreement with the relevant vendor. 

(7) Miscellaneous Opening Costs.  Miscellaneous opening costs include incorporation fees; 
initial legal and accounting fees; utility deposits; business permit fees; and excludes pre-opening 
compensation and benefit costs for you and your restaurant employees.  You must begin paying people at 
their agreed compensation when they begin training. 

(8) Owner-Operator and General Manager Expenses while Training.  These costs are 
estimated based on eight weeks of compensation, lodging, meals and transportation for your Owner-
Operator and the general manager of each Franchised Restaurant during MIT training.  These costs will 
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vary upon your compensation and expense arrangements with the MIT participants and the distance from 
our training site. 

(9) Assistant General Manager and Shift Leaders Expenses while Training.  These costs are 
estimated based on four weeks of compensation, lodging, meals and transportation for two Assistant 
General Managers and two weeks of compensation, lodging, meals and transportation for two shift 
leaders.  Shift Leader training is optional.  These costs will vary based on your compensation 
arrangements with the trainees, the distance from our training site, and number of additional trainees you 
may send. 

(10) Additional Funds.  The Franchised Business will need working capital to sustain early 
stage operations for a period of months after the Restaurant opens while the business gets established.  
The amount needed will depend on your estimate of when revenue will be sufficient to meet cash flow 
needs.  We recommend working capital of at least three months of rent and other operating expenses. 

ITEM 8 
 

RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

Required Purchases 

As of the Issuance Date, you must purchase our required kitchen equipment package, smalls 
wares, interior design elements, interior and exterior signage, furniture, decals, silverware holders, 
artwork, management software, point of sale system, gift card equipment, music service, certain food 
products, beverages and on-line ordering portal according to specifications in our Operation Manual. 

Required and Approved Suppliers 

You must purchase your food ingredient products from a designated affiliate of Distribution 
Market Advantage, Inc.  You must purchase all non-coffee/tea beverage products from Coca-Cola North 
America FoodService (“Coca-Cola”), provided that you may purchase the Dr. Pepper fountain beverage 
product from Dr. Pepper/Seven Up, Inc. for a dedicated dispenser in your fountain beverage machine.  
You may not serve any non-alcoholic bottled or fountain beverages other than those obtained from Coca-
Cola and Dr. Pepper.  You must purchase all coffee and tea from Royal Cup, Inc.  You must purchase all 
tomato chutney from Alecia’s Chutney. We require that you use MomentFeed for social media 
management. The designated supplier for all software and software services related to the Franchised 
Business is Fresh Technology, LLC (“Fresh Technology”), under Tools and Help Desk Service 
Agreements you must sign with Fresh Technology.  See Attachment H.  Fresh Technology’s services 
include licensing all software necessary to operate the Franchised Business and providing database 
management services, software maintenance and help desk support.  We require that you use FinTech for 
all alcohol payment systems. We require that you subscribe to and use in the Franchised Business the 
mobile and on-line ordering application and platform from ToGo Technologies, LLC.  You must use the 
tablet based point of sale system from Square, Inc. We require that you subscribe to Custom Channels as 
the required provider for streaming music in the Restaurant. 

We are not currently an approved supplier of any product or service.  John Michael Bodnar, our 
Chairman, and Matt Bodnar, our Secretary, each has an indirect ownership interest in:  (a) Fresh 
Technology, whose principal business address is 2200 Riverchase Center, Suite 500, Hoover, AL 35244; 
and (b) Fresh Accounting, LLC, (formerly known as Fresh Enterprise, LLC), whose principal business 
address is 1910 Cochran Rd Ste. 370, Pittsburgh, PA 15220 (“Fresh Accounting), each of which provide 
services to our franchisees.  We are not an affiliate of any of these entities.  All fees paid to them by 
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franchises are paid directly by the franchisees, and we do not collect fees on behalf of these entities from 
franchisees.  We receive no payments from these entities. 

We have the approved suppliers (both optional and preferred) as set forth in our Operations 
Manual.  All other purchases and leases must meet our standards and specifications.  We specify these 
requirements in our Operations Manual or otherwise in writing.  You must purchase or lease certain of 
these items only from approved suppliers listed in our Operations Manual or otherwise in writing.  Except 
as we specify in the Operations Manual, you may purchase or lease from any source any other goods, 
services, supplies, fixtures, equipment, signs, inventory, or real estate relating to the establishment or 
operation of your Franchised Business.  We make available a prototype architectural plan of which you 
may receive a PDF summary at no cost or a CAD file for a $1,000 fee paid to us. 

We offer certain digital advertising services to franchisees for a fixed monthly fee of $70 or $125.  
These fees, which totaled $11,725 in 2020, were deposited into the Marketing Fund.  See the Optional 
Digital Advertising Services Participation Agreement for Franchisees included in Exhibit A.   

Insurance 

Before you open your Franchised Business, you must obtain the type and amount of insurance 
coverage for the Franchised Business we specify in the Franchise Agreement, in the Operations Manual 
or otherwise in writing.  You must obtain and maintain the specified insurance coverage during the term 
of the Franchise Agreement from a responsible carrier or carriers authorized to write coverage in your 
state having an A.M. Best rating of at least A-VI that we find acceptable.  The type of coverage includes: 

(1) Commercial General Liability coverage ($1 million single limit per occurrence; $2 
million general aggregate limit, for both general liability and products /completed operations liability) for 
personal injury and property damage, including premises, independent contractors, products and 
completed operations, contractual, personal and advertising liability, on an occurrence basis, with 
coverage on a 1986 or later ISO commercial general liability form policy; 

(2) “All Risk” property coverage including a property damage limit for the full cost of 
replacement of the Restaurant and business interruption coverage for up to twelve months of projected 
earnings; 

(3) Business Automobile Liability covering liability arising out of any auto (including 
owned, hired and non-owned autos), with a minimum of $1 million combined single limit each accident; 

(4) Workers’ Compensation or legally appropriate alternative covering all employees and 
contractors working at the Restaurant for statutory limits and Employers Liability with minimum limits of 
$1 million for bodily injury for each accident, $500,000 bodily injury by disease for each employee and 
$500,000 bodily injury disease aggregate; 

(5) A $2 million Umbrella Policy on an occurrence basis excess of covering excess of the 
underlying insurance described in (1), (3) and (4) above which is at least as broad as each and every 
underlying policy, provided that you may purchase more underlying coverage and less umbrella coverage 
under such policies as long as you maintain the total amount of the limits specified for each coverage area 

(6) Liquor Liability insurance (if applicable) (Minimum Limit $1 million); 

(7) Other insurance as may be required by the state or locality of the Restaurant; 
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(8) Employment practices liability insurance with a limit of $500,000; and 

(9) Employee Dishonesty/Fidelity insurance with a limit of $100,000. 

All of the liability insurance policies, other than Workers’ Compensation, must name us, Parent, 
and our respective officers, directors, members, shareholders, partners and employees as additional 
insureds on a primary noncontributory basis for operations of the Restaurant.  The form of additional 
insured endorsement will be CG 20 10 or its equivalent.  If the additional insured has other insurance 
applicable to a loss, it will be on an excess or contingent basis.  The additional insured’s insurance 
coverage will not be reduced by the existence of such other insurance. 

Approval of Alternative Suppliers; Product Specifications 

If you want to use a good or service, or obtain a good or service from a supplier we have not yet 
approved, you first must submit sufficient information, specifications and/or samples for our 
determination whether the product or service complies with our System Standards or the supplier meets 
our approved supplier criteria.  We may establish and revise our approved supplier criteria from time to 
time as we deem appropriate and will make them available to our franchisees upon written request.  We 
may condition our approval of a supplier on the supplier’s agreement to comply with product quality 
standards, frequency of delivery, standards of service, and concentration of purchase requirements.  We 
also may impose limits on the number of approved suppliers, products and services.  Our approval should 
not take more than 60 days in most instances.  We reserve the right to test supplies and inspect the 
premises of suppliers before granting our approval.  We will not charge you any approval fees, but you 
will have to reimburse us for our out-of-pocket costs and expenses of any inspection or testing.  We may 
terminate our approval of a supplier or any products or services at any time, with or without cause, upon 
reasonable written notice. 

We will formulate and modify our technology, product and ingredient specifications and 
standards by reviewing each product on an individual basis, taking into consideration the supplier’s 
ability to provide consistently high quality products to you or our approved suppliers on a timely basis.  
We generally will formulate specifications and standards based on the quality of the products and other 
relevant factors.  We periodically may review each product and respective supplier to make sure that the 
supplier is following the specifications and standards. 

We may issue some of our technology, product and ingredient specifications and standards to our 
approved suppliers under appropriate confidentiality restrictions, but not to our franchisees.  We may 
undertake other steps to maintain trade secrets and confidentiality of proprietary recipes and formulations, 
software and other items. 

Revenue From Franchisee Purchases 

We derive revenue from required franchisee purchases from Coca-Cola pursuant to a marketing 
agreement with Coca-Cola described below (Payments to Franchisor from Designated Suppliers).  Our 
total revenue for the fiscal year ended December 27, 2020 was $2,076,408. In the fiscal year ended 
December 27, 2020, we received $129,750 from Coca-Cola, equating to 6.25% of our total revenue for 
the year, all of which was deposited into the Marketing Fund.  Revenues and expenses of the Marketing 
Fund are not included in our statement of income.  We may derive revenue from additional suppliers from 
franchisee purchases in the future at our sole discretion. 

Percentage of Total Purchases Represented by Required Purchases 
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Required purchases consist of items you must purchase from approved suppliers or under our 
established specifications.  Your required purchases will represent approximately 90-100% of your total 
opening expenses (excluding the cost of real estate and improvements) and approximately 35% of your 
total annual operating expenses. 

Payments to Franchisor from Designated Suppliers 

Affiliates by common ownership of us or Parent currently operate and may in the future franchise 
or license franchised or licensed restaurant concepts (“Affiliate Concepts”) that as of the Issuance Date 
include Big Bad Breakfast™, Biscuit Love™, Citizen Kitchens, City Silo Table & Pantry, FatBack, 55 
South, Greko Greek Street Food, Hugh Baby’s BBQ and Burgers™, I Love Juice Bar®, Martin’s Bar-B-
Cue Joint®, Panini Pete’s™, Taziki’s Mediterranean Cafe®, The Grilled Cheeserie, Tellini’s Italiano, 
Vui’s Kitchen Fresh Vietnamese, Salty Goat Taqueria, Tacos Aurora, Athenian Spas, and Waldos 
Chicken & Beer.  Affiliate Concepts operate under the brand name “Fresh Hospitality”.  We may enter 
into purchasing, insurance and other managements under the Fresh Hospitality name to take advantage of 
purchasing power that may be offered by aggregating the purchasing needs of our System and the 
Affiliate Concepts. 

We have entered into a marketing program with Coca-Cola for the purchase and promotion of 
Coca-Cola fountain products.  We and our Affiliate Concepts are beneficiaries of a Beverage Marketing 
Agreement with Coca-Cola (the “BMA”).  The BMA provides negotiated purchase arrangements to our 
company-owned restaurants and all joint venture and franchisee restaurants, as well as all new 
franchisees.  You will be asked to sign an individual participation and supply agreement with Coca-Cola.  
All funding we receive from Coca-Cola that is based upon purchases by participating Restaurants will be 
utilized by us to develop and implement Coca-Cola marketing activities that are specifically designed to 
benefit the entire System.  The BMA requires us to sell and promote Coca-Cola Classic, Diet Coke, and 
Sprite in all company-owned outlets.  In addition, we have agreed to endorse Coca-Cola fountain products 
(the “Fountain Beverages”) to our franchisees for sale in franchised units.  Both company-owned and 
franchised units pay the same amounts for Coca-Cola fountain products.  Under the BMA, we have 
agreed to implement certain operating standards and procedures for Participating System Units serving 
fountain beverages:  (i) display Coca Cola beverage vessels on menu boards; (ii) display Coca-Cola 
marks at points of order; (iii) implement a suggestive selling program for counter help; (iv) perform sales 
promotions agreed between Coca-Cola and us; (v) implement a permanent free refill program, and (vi) 
provide certain sales data to Coca-Cola. 

The following funds will be paid directly to us under the BMA: 

A. Marketing Support Fund:  During the term of the BMA, we will receive and deposit into the 
Marketing Fund (See Item 11) $2.35 per gallon of fountain syrups sold by our participating Restaurants 
(“Participating System Units”) in exchange for our performing marketing of Coca-Cola products in all 
Participating System Units as agreed. 

B. Partnership Fund:  During the term of the BMA, we will receive and deposit into the Marketing 
Fund (See Item 11) $0.86 per gallon of fountain syrups sold to our Participating System Units. 

C. Growth Fund:  During the term of the BMA, we will receive and deposit into the Marketing Fund 
(See Item 11) $0.15 per gallon of fountain syrups sold to our Participating System Units if the 
Participating System Units sell between 55,000 and 74,999 gallons in a year.  We will receive $0.30 per 
gallon of fountain syrups sold by our Participating System Units if the Participating Units sell between 
75,000 and 84,999 gallons in a year.  We will receive $0.45 per gallon of fountain syrups sold by our 
Participating System Units if the Participating System Units sell 85,000 gallons or more in a year. 
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In addition to the funds we receive from Coca-Cola during the term of the BMA, Coca-Cola will also pay 
the following directly to you as part of your participation under the BMA Equipment Fund.  During the 
term of the BMA, you will receive from Coca-Cola:  (i) $1.00 per gallon of fountain syrups sold to you 
by Coca-Cola to offset the cost of the beverage dispensing equipment installed at each of your 
Participating System Units; (ii) $0.35 per gallon of fountain syrups sold to you by Coca-Cola to offset the 
cost of maintain and repairing the beverage dispensing equipment installed at each of your Participating 
System Units. 

Cooperatives 

We will have the right to require you to participate in a national or regional approved purchasing 
cooperative for the area in which your Franchised Business operates.  We do not have any purchasing or 
distribution cooperatives in place as of the Issuance Date. 

Negotiated Purchases 

We may negotiate purchase arrangements or discounts for your Franchised Business.  Certain of 
our suppliers may allow you to participate in the volume discounts we receive.  However, these volume 
discounts will extend only to pricing terms and will not include any of the credit terms we have 
negotiated.  We do not otherwise negotiate purchase agreements on behalf of our franchisees or any 
distribution cooperative, and do not guarantee pricing, credit or other terms for vendors by our 
franchisees.  We do not represent and cannot guarantee that any particular supplier arrangement will be 
available to you as the availability of these arrangements may vary depending on whether the supplier 
services the area in which your Franchised Business will be located. 

Material Benefits 

We do not provide any material benefits to you if you obtain goods or services from approved 
suppliers, other than the BMA programs described above.  We reserve the right not to grant franchises or 
confer other benefits to any franchisee, for any reason or no reason, which may include the failure of a 
Franchised Business franchisee to follow and support the Franchised Business system, including its 
recommended advertising programs and approved supplier programs. 

ITEM 9 
 

FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS 

Franchise Agreement 

This table lists your principal obligations under the Franchise Agreement.  It will help you find 
more detailed information about your obligations in that agreement and in other items of this 
Disclosure Document. 

Obligation Section in Agreement 
Disclosure 
Document 

Item 
a. Site selection and acquisition/lease 6(b) 11 
b. Pre-opening purchases/leases 6(c), 6(f), 6(h), 8(c) 8 
c. Site development and other pre-opening 
requirements 

6 6, 7 and 11 

d. Initial and ongoing training 7(a), 8(a) 11 
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Obligation Section in Agreement 
Disclosure 
Document 

Item 
e. Opening 6(h) 11 
f. Fees 5, 6(g), 8(a), 15, and 19, 

22(b), and 27 
5 and 6 

g. Compliance with standards and policies/operating 
manual 

8 11 

h. Trademarks and proprietary information 13  13 and 14 
i. Restrictions on products/services offered 8(c) 16 
j. Warranty and customer service requirements Not Applicable Not 

Applicable 
k. Territorial development and sales quotas Not Applicable Not 

Applicable 
l. Ongoing product/service purchases 8(c) 8 
m. Maintenance, appearance, and remodeling 
requirements 

8(e) and 8(f)  11 

n. Insurance 21 6 and 8 
o. Advertising 5, 16, and 19 6 and 11 
p. Indemnification 34 6 
q. Owner’s participation/management/staffing 8(a) and 8(g) 11 and 15 
r. Records and reports 14 6 
s. Inspections and audits 15 6 
t. Transfers 22 6 and 17 
u. Renewals 4 17 
v. Post-termination obligations 11, 12, 32  17 
w. Non-competition covenants 11 17 
x. Dispute resolution Not Applicable Not 

Applicable 
y. Other - Guaranty 24, Attachment C 1, 15 

 
Area Development Agreement 

This table lists your principal obligations under the Area Development Agreement.  It will help you 
find more detailed information about your obligations in that agreement and in other items of this 
Disclosure Document. 

Obligation Section Item 

a. Site selection and acquisition/lease 6, 7 and 8 11 
b. Pre-opening purchases/leases Not Applicable Not 

Applicable 
c. Site development and other pre-opening 
requirements 

Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

d. Initial and ongoing training Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

e. Opening Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

f. Fees 5 5 and 6 
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Obligation Section Item 

g. Compliance with standards and policies/operating 
manual 

Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

h. Trademarks and proprietary information Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

i. Restrictions on products/services offered Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

j. Warranty and customer service requirements Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

k. Territorial development and sales quotas 3 12 
l. Ongoing product/service purchases Not Applicable Not 

Applicable 
m. Maintenance, appearance, and remodeling 
requirements 

Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

n. Insurance Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

o. Advertising Not Applicable Not 
Applicable 

p. Indemnification 17 6 
q. Owner’s participation/management/staffing Not Applicable Not 

Applicable 
r. Records and reports Not Applicable Not 

Applicable 
s. Inspections and audits Not Applicable Not 

Applicable 
t. Transfers 16 6 and 17 
u. Renewals Not Applicable Not 

Applicable 
v. Post-termination obligations 12 17 
w. Non-competition covenants 12 17 
x. Dispute resolution Not Applicable Not 

Applicable 
y. Other – None Not Applicable Not 

Applicable 
 

ITEM 10 
 

FINANCING 

We do not offer direct or indirect financing.  We do not guarantee your note, lease, or obligation. 

ITEM 11 
 

FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING 

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance. 

Pre-Opening Assistance 
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Before you open your Franchised Business: 

(1) We will provide you with advice and consultation in the selection of sites for Franchised 
Location(s) through the use of the site selection and evaluation forms, criteria and supporting materials 
that we make available to franchisees.  (Franchise Agreement Section 6(b); Area Development 
Agreement Section 10(a)) 

(2) We will review the information you submit for each proposed site for a Franchised 
Location, conduct any investigation of the proposed site we deem appropriate to evaluate the site, and 
accept or reject the site.  (Franchise Agreement Section 6(b); Area Development Agreement Sections 6 
and 10(a)) 

(3) Unless the site is accepted when the parties sign the Franchise Agreement, we will accept 
or reject each site within 30 days after your submission of all initial and supplemental information we 
request regarding a proposed site.  You must submit your proposed site for our approval within 15 days 
after the parties sign the Franchise Agreement.  If we accept the site, we will give you notice of any 
remaining conditions to that acceptance.  Under the Area Development Agreement, we will tender the 
Franchise Agreement for the accepted site.  If we reject the site, we will give you the reasons for the 
rejection.  (Franchise Agreement Section 6(b); Area Development Agreement Sections 6, 7 and 9) 

(4) We must approve the terms of your lease and any modifications or amendments, if 
applicable, before you sign the lease.  We will review the lease and any modifications or amendments to 
the lease, and accept or reject your lease for the Franchised Location within 30 days after your submission 
of all initial and supplemental information we request regarding the proposed lease.  You must submit the 
lease or purchase contract for the accepted site within 30 days after the parties sign the Franchise 
Agreement, or when we accept your proposed site if we have not accepted your proposed site when the 
parties sign the Franchise Agreement.  Each Franchised Location must be under lease to you and not to an 
affiliate if you do not own it.  We do not review, provide advice on or approve any financing you obtain 
for your development costs (Franchise Agreement Section 6(c)) 

(5) We will have the right to terminate the Franchise Agreement if you fail to open your 
Restaurant within nine months after you sign the Franchise Agreement in accordance with the approved 
plans and we have not agreed to an extension.  (Franchise Agreement Section 6(e), 6(h), Attachment A). 

(6) We will designate the territory for your Franchised Location.  (Franchise Agreement - 
Sections 2 and 3) 

(7) We will provide you with other resources and assistance that we may develop and make 
available to new franchisees and developers from time to time.  (Franchise Agreement Section 7(h); Area 
Development Agreement Section 10(c)) 

(8) If you are operating under an Area Development Agreement, we will forward the 
Franchise Agreement for your proposed Franchised Location after you give us notice of your lease of an 
accepted site and the fully executed lease rider.  (Area Development Agreement Section 9) 

(9) We will provide you with our standards for finishes, specifications for layout of the 
interior, mechanical and electrical systems, equipment, décor and signs for a prototype Franchised 
Business that we make available to franchisees.  (Franchise Agreement Section 6(d)) 

(10) We will review your site plan and final plans and specifications for conformity to System 
Standards.  (Franchise Agreement Section 6(d)) 
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(11) We will grant you electronic access to the Operations Manual on our secure website for 
franchisees.  (Franchise Agreement Section 7(b)) 

(12) We will provide you (or if you are an entity, your Owner-Operator) and your general 
manager with eight weeks or 400 hours of MIT training at a Certified Training Store in the System and 
methods of operating a Franchised Business.  This training and information will include a standard chart 
of accounts for use in the daily and periodic accounting of the Franchised Business.  We will provide your 
two Assistant General Managers with four weeks or 200 hours of in-store training at a Certified Training 
Store (Franchise Agreement Section 7(a)) 

(13) At your option, we will provide two shift leaders with two weeks or 100 hours of in-store 
training at a Certified Training Store.  (Franchise Agreement Section 7(a)) 

(14) We will provide you with the services of an on-site training team for a period of time to 
assist you with the pre-opening activities for your Franchised Business.  For the first and second 
Franchised Restaurants in your Training Group, we will provide 12 days of opening assistance (7 days 
before, opening day and 4 days after opening).  Beginning with the third Franchised Restaurant in your 
Training Group and for each additional Franchised Restaurant in the Training Group, we will provide 7 
days of opening assistance (3 days before opening, opening day and 3 days after opening.) You must 
reimburse us for their reasonable travel and living expenses while performing this service.  A “Training 
Group” means two or more Franchised Restaurants owned by affiliates having owners with at least 50% 
aggregate equity interests in common in all of the franchisees (Franchise Agreement Section 7(a), 7(d), 
8(a), 53). 

(15) We offer optional assistance with managing on-line digital advertising for your 
Franchised Restaurant, including assistance with search engine marketing, search engine optimization, 
email marketing, and if selected, social media.  There are two service levels, currently set at monthly fees 
of $70 or $125.  The assistance may be discontinued at any time by either party giving 10 days’ written 
notice of termination.  (Optional Digital Advertising Services Participation Agreement). 

Site Selection 

We will not select the site for your Franchised Business.  You will have responsibility for 
selecting the site for your location and submitting information on the site request form we provide before 
you sign your Franchise Agreement.  Generally, the site is identified and accepted when you sign your 
Franchise Agreement.  However, as described above, we have the right to accept or reject the site you 
select.  In determining whether to accept or reject a site, we will consider demographic evaluations, traffic 
patterns during lunch and dinner day parts, population density, proximity to activity centers and 
employers, physical site profiles, competition in the market area, and other factors.  By accepting the site 
or the lease you submit, we make no representation or guarantee that the site you select will be successful.  
We have no obligation to provide any assistance in locating a site, negotiating the lease, conforming the 
premises to local codes and ordinances, obtaining permits, constructing, remodeling or decorating, hiring 
and training employees (except for the training we provide described in training below), or providing for 
necessary equipment, signs, fixtures, opening inventory and supplies.  You must have a signed lease or 
purchase contract for an approved site within 30 days after the date of the Franchise Agreement.  You 
have the option to secure a single 30 day extension of the 30 day period by written notice to us that you 
are exercising your extension option.  The grant of any further extension of time to complete this phase of 
pre-opening is at our sole discretion. 

Typical Length of Time to Open 
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Based on the experience of our company-owned stores and our joint ventures and franchisees, we 
estimate that it will take approximately eight months after you sign a Franchise Agreement to renovate 
existing space and open a Restaurant.  Factors that may affect that time period include obtaining site 
acceptance from us, making any necessary financial arrangements, obtaining required permits, designing 
the space, ordering the equipment and inventory, and obtaining necessary labor and materials.  Under the 
Franchise Agreement, you have up to nine months in total in which to open your Franchised Business.  
(Franchise Agreement Section 6) 

Under our form of Area Development Agreement, you must agree to open at least 3 Franchised 
Locations under the Performance Schedule.  The first generally must open within nine months after you 
sign the Area Development Agreement.  Generally, you must open an additional restaurant every nine 
months after that to satisfy the Performance Schedule.  We may negotiate a Performance Schedule with 
shorter or longer opening time requirements when business circumstances warrant.  You sign a Franchise 
Agreement for each Restaurant to be developed under the Area Development Agreement and the 
deadlines for developing the Restaurant and obtaining our approvals for the site and the lease described 
above become applicable. 

Post-Opening Assistance 

(1) We will provide you with the services of an on-site training team for a period of four 
days after opening of your first and second restaurants to assist you with the operation of your Franchised 
Business.  If you open more than two restaurants, we will provide three days of post-opening assistance 
for your third and any subsequent restaurants.  You must reimburse us for their reasonable travel and 
living expenses while performing this service.  (Franchise Agreement Section 7(d)) 

(2) We will publish a list of approved suppliers and their respective approved products and 
services in the Operations Manual and/or in other written or electronic communications to you.  As new 
suppliers, products and services become available, we will amend that list.  (Franchise Agreement 
Section 7(c)) 

(3) We will provide you with the merchandising, marketing and advertising research data 
and advice that we develop from time to time and deem helpful in the operation of a Franchised Business 
using the System.  (Franchise Agreement Section 7(e)) 

(4) We will conduct periodic field evaluations and quality assurance inspections of the 
Restaurant to test and promote its compliance with System Standards and quality controls.  (Franchise 
Agreement Section 7(f)) 

(5) We will provide you with periodic individual or group advice, consultation and assistance 
by personal visit, by telephone, electronic communication, or by newsletters or bulletins that we make 
available to our franchisees from time to time.  (Franchise Agreement Section 7(g)) 

(6) We will provide you with any other materials in any medium that we may develop to 
communicate new developments, techniques, and improvements in the System and our plans, policies, 
research, developments and activities to franchisees.  (Franchise Agreement Section 7(g)) 

(7) We will provide you with other resources and assistance that we may develop and make 
generally available to all of our other franchisees.  (Franchise Agreement Section 7(h)) 

(8) We will renew your Franchise Agreement upon your satisfaction of the conditions 
described in the Franchise Agreement.  (Franchise Agreement Section 4(b)) 
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(9) We will review any proposed transfer of your Franchise Agreement and either approve or 
disapprove that proposed transfer.  (Franchise Agreement Section 22) 

Except as listed above, we do not have any obligation to provide you with assistance regarding 
(1) developing services or products your Franchised Business will offer to your customers; (2) the hiring 
or training of your employees; (3) the improving or developing your Franchised Business; (4) establishing 
prices; (5) establishing and using administrative, bookkeeping, accounting or inventory control 
procedures; or (6) resolving operating problems you may encounter. 

Advertising 

We will conduct advertising in regional and national media using the funds available in the 
Marketing Fund described below.  We may use print, broadcast and on-line or electronic media, social 
media, direct mail and other promotional materials as funds permit.  We will utilize a combination of in-
house and advertising agency resources to produce advertising.  The Franchise Agreement does not 
require us to spend any amount on advertising or other promotions in your area or DMA.  We have no 
obligation to spend any additional amounts on advertising or promotion.  (Franchise Agreement 
Section 19). 

You may use your own advertising and promotional materials if you submit them to us for 
approval at least 30 days before making any financial commitment to use the materials.  You may not use 
any advertising or promotional materials that we disapprove or have not approved.  (Franchise Agreement 
Section 16). 

Advertising Council 

We currently have no advertising council composed of franchisees.  We have no obligation to 
create an advertising council.  We may develop such in future.  We created a Franchise Advisory Council 
that advises us on matters of interest to franchisees but it has no specific role in advising on advertising or 
marketing other than to provide advisory recommendations and suggestions with respect to marketing 
matters. 

Local Marketing 

We require you to spend one percent (1%) of Net Cash Sales on local marketing and promotional 
expenses of the Franchised Business.  However, we recommend that you spend two percent (2%) of Net 
Cash Sales on local marketing and promotional expenses of the Franchised Business.  We may, but are 
not obligated to, assist you with the review of localized media campaigns.  We may, but are not obligated 
to, provide you with standard print media advertising templates to use locally. 

Local Advertising Cooperatives 

We may establish one or more advertising cooperatives from time to time and, further, may 
change, dissolve, or merge any existing advertising cooperative at any time in our sole discretion.  A 
cooperative will be formed for one DMA or multiple DMA’s.  All participants will contribute at the same 
rate or under the same formula.  If the Franchised Business operates within a DMA for which an 
approved advertising cooperative exists, you will contribute to the advertising cooperative the amounts 
required by the cooperative up to 2% of the Net Cash Sales of the Franchised Business during each 
Reporting Period.  All Franchised Business that we or our affiliates operate will participate in any 
advertising cooperative that we establish for the DMA in which they are located on the same basis as the 
Franchised Business in the DMA.  We will administer the cooperative unless we designate another party 
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to perform the administrative functions.  The cooperative may have written governing documents that we 
must provide or approve, which will be available for all participants in the cooperative to review.  Each 
cooperative will maintain accounting records and compile financial statements that will be available for 
review by all participants.  We retain the power to require any cooperative to be formed, changed, 
dissolved or merged with another cooperative.  (Franchise Agreement Section 17) 

Marketing Fund 

We have established a marketing fund (the “Marketing Fund”), effective as of the Issuance Date.  
You will pay a Marketing Fee to us in an amount up to one percent (1.00%) of the Net Cash Sales of the 
Franchised Business for each Reporting Period.  We will account for all Marketing Fees we collect in a 
separate account.  All other franchisees and all Restaurant locations operated by Taziki’s Restaurants or 
another affiliate will contribute at the same rate to the Marketing Fund.  We also may deposit the 
marketing, promotional and other payments we receive from suppliers into the Marketing Fund.  Our 
BMA with Coca-Cola requires you to enter into a Franchisee Participation Agreement (the “Participation 
Agreement”). 

We will administer the Marketing Fund and will disburse the Marketing Fund to pay for 
marketing, advertising, promotional, public relations, and other similar activities intended to benefit the 
System and all franchised and company-owned locations.  Those activities may include (without 
limitation) (a) market research, (b) marketing technology development and implementation, (c) customer 
service, loyalty and reward programs, (d) media purchases, (e) advertising production, (f) advertising and 
public relations agency fees and expenses, and (g) product research and development.  We also may use 
the Marketing Fund to pay or reimburse us for our administrative overhead incurred for activities 
supported by the Marketing Fund.  Any moneys in the Marketing Fund not spent at the end of each fiscal 
year will remain in the Marketing Fund, provided that amounts contributed to the Marketing Fund may be 
used to pay taxes associated with unspent amounts on deposit in the Marketing Fund.  We will have the 
sole and exclusive discretion to direct all activities and programs funded by the Marketing Fund.  The 
Marketing Fund will not be separately audited, and we have no obligation to make its financial statements 
available to franchisees.  You acknowledge that we have no obligation to expend Marketing Fund 
amounts for your benefit equivalent or proportionate to your Marketing Fees, and we do not warrant or 
guaranty that you will receive or derive any benefit from Marketing Fund activities.  We will make all 
studies and reports produced by the Marketing Fund available to you at no cost as Confidential 
Information.  We will make copies of all materials produced by the Marketing Fund for franchisee use 
available to you at your expense.  We may suspend, terminate and reinstate the Marketing Fund at any 
time.  The Marketing Fund will not terminate, however, until we have spent all moneys in the Marketing 
Fund for the purposes set forth above.  (Franchise Agreement Section 19).  Upon your written request, we 
will provide you a copy of our annual report of expenditures of the Marketing Fund during the most 
recently ended fiscal year on a confidential basis. 

For the fiscal year ended December 27, 2020, we spent the Marketing Fund contributions as follows:  
Production- 18%; Promotional Expenses- 36%; and Administration- 46%.  We do not currently use the 
Marketing Fund to solicit new franchise sales but reserve the right to do so. 

Computer Systems 

You must purchase and install before opening your Franchise Business the hardware and software 
to run a computer-based point-of-sale (“POS”) and restaurant management system, including the 
appropriate Kitchen Display and Recipe System equipment and/or printers.  You must also install use the 
mobile application and on-line ordering system from ToGo Technologies, LLC and the customer loyalty 
rewards program and related email marketing platform from Square, Inc.  We will advise and work with 
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you to select these systems from our approved solutions.  We estimate the cost to purchase the required 
point-of-sale and restaurant management systems, including file server, touch-screen display, customer 
display, thermal printer, software and all related peripherals, from an approved vendor is $13,000 to 
$20,000. 

Fresh Technology is the designated supplier of the software we require be used by the Franchised 
Business.  You must pay the Technology Fee of $750 per month for a license of software tools, database 
management, software maintenance and help desk support (which may increase if you elect to add 
additional hardware or users for your software) and must enter into the Fresh Technology Tools and Help 
Desk Agreements with Fresh Technology, which are attached as Exhibit A-8.  Fresh Technology reserves 
the right to adjust the monthly fee once each calendar year, on not less than 30 days’ prior written notice 
to each franchisee, to reflect changes in the services and the market conditions for technology and labor.  
Fresh Technology may increase the monthly fee for additional services and products included in the 
services at rates competitive with comparable services from other providers.  The percentage of each 
adjustment that is an increase in the monthly fee without any change in services will not exceed the 
aggregate percentage increase in the mean hourly wage for the computer and mathematical occupational 
groups reported by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (“BLS”) for the market where the majority of our 
employees are located for the time period starting with the last fee increase and ending on the date of the 
current fee adjustment.  Fresh Technology may substitute a different published index of labor costs in the 
computer services industry for the BLS information.  At our request, you shall participate in any intranet 
or extranet system developed for use as part of the System.  Such intranet or extranet system may be 
combined with that of our affiliates.  You shall also sign such terms of use agreements concerning the use 
of such intranet or extranet system as we may prescribe, which agreements may contain, among other 
things:  (a) confidentiality requirements for materials available and transmitted on such system; (b) 
password protocols and other security precautions; (c) grounds and procedures for our suspension or 
revocation of access to the system by you and others; and (d) a privacy policy governing the parties’ 
access to and use of electronic communications posted on electronic bulletin boards or transmitted via the 
system.  You shall pay any fee imposed from time to time by us, Fresh Technology, or a third party 
service provider in connection with hosting such system.  (Franchise Agreement Section 9(e)) 

We may mandate that you offer free wireless internet access or other accepted means of 
communication for customers in your Restaurant.  Your point-of-sale system will store and allow you and 
us to access data on each transaction entered, including time of day, menu items ordered, method of 
payment, and other information that may be useful in managing the Restaurant and the Taziki’s 
Mediterranean Café brand.  We may modify System Standards to require new technology at all 
Franchised Businesses, which may require you to upgrade and update the systems you use in the 
Restaurant and for customer entertainment.  There is no contractual limitation on our right to mandate 
upgrades and updates.  The approved vendor of the hardware systems may charge you a fee for 
maintenance, repairs, updates and upgrades to hardware.  The annual cost of such maintenance, repairs, 
updates or upgrades will depend upon your agreement with the relevant hardware vendor.  Regular 
software updates and bug fixes by Fresh Technology are covered by the Technology Fee.  However, 
Fresh Technology currently charges $85 per hour for maintenance outside the scope of the regular 
software updates and bug fixes.  In addition, your point of sale system vendor may charge other fees for 
which you are responsible.  Tablet point of sale system normally charge monthly or annual subscriptions, 
and other fees related to mandatory programs, applications and functionality.  We estimate the total 
annual cost to you of optional or required maintenance, updating or upgrading hardware and software will 
range between $200 and $2,000 annually, depending on the number of stations you establish, the number 
of users you enroll in the subscriptions and the system or features you select.  Some license fees for 
network software supporting the point of sale and back office systems may be incurred so you will pay for 
a multi-year license once during the license term.  See Attachment H 
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You will maintain your point-of-sale and management systems on-line so that we may 
independently access them remotely at our discretion, copy stored data, update software, and view all 
records, files and reports available on or from those systems.  You will not purge data unless so permitted 
under the Operations Manual.  There are no contractual limitations on our right to access this stored 
information.  (Franchise Agreement Section 9(b)) 

You should expect to update your Restaurant customer service and entertainment systems, 
computer, food preparation, business management, training, and communications technology periodically 
during the term of your Franchise Agreement to keep pace with the evolution of such technology and its 
applications in fast causal restaurants.  We may designate ourselves or an affiliate as the sole source of 
technology you are required to obtain, operate and maintain for the Restaurant. 

Operations Manual 

The Table of Contents for the Operations Manual, showing the topics and number of pages 
dedicated to those topics, appears as Exhibit F to this Disclosure Document.  The manual has a total of 
approximately 118 pages. 

Training 

TRAINING PROGRAM 

SUBJECT 

HOURS OF 

CLASSROOM 

TRAINING 

HOURS OF ON-
THE-JOB 

TRAINING LOCATION 

Week One – 
Brand History, Fresh Technology 

Production Tools, AM Food 
Safety and Food Preparation  

n/a 50  Certified Training 
Store1 

Week Two – Fresh Technology 
Production Tools, AM Food 

Preparation and Roll-Up Position 
Training 

 

n/a 50 Certified Training 
Store 

Week Three – Fresh Technology 
Production Tools, PM Food 
Preparation and Salad Table 

Position Training  

n/a 50 Certified Training 
Store 

Week Four – Fresh Technology 
Production Tools and Grill 

Position Training  

n/a 50 Certified Training 
Store 

Week Five - Fresh Technology 
Production Tools and Expo 

Position Training 

n/a 50 Certified Training 
Store 

 
1 Our Certified Training Stores include Parent, Affiliate and franchised locations in Huntsville, AL, Tuscaloosa, AL, 
Little Rock, AR, Denver, CO, Tallahassee, FL, Atlanta, GA, Nashville, TN, Chattanooga, TN, and Dallas, TX as of 
the issuance date. We may add additional Certified Training Stores at Parent and Affiliate locations. A Training 
Group must obtain certification of one of its Franchised Businesses as a Certified Training Store before its third 
Franchised Business requires MIT training of its manager. 
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SUBJECT 

HOURS OF 

CLASSROOM 

TRAINING 

HOURS OF ON-
THE-JOB 

TRAINING LOCATION 

Week Six - Fresh Technology 
Sales Analysis and Advanced 
Order Tools and Front of the 

House (FOH) Position Training 

n/a 50 Certified Training 
Store 

Week Seven - Fresh Technology 
Cost Analysis Tools and Shift 
Management Position Training 

n/a 50 Certified Training 
Store 

Week Eight - Fresh Technology 
Cost Analysis Tools and General 
Management Position Training 

n/a 50 Certified Training 
Store 

 
TOTAL 

n/a 400  

 
Manager In Training Program 

We proctor an intensive eight week MIT Program at either a Company Store or a designated 
Franchisee Store that we certify as a training store.  These stores have excellent track records and are 
operated by Certified Trainers.  We schedule MIT training to occur after a Franchise Agreement has been 
signed and based on an established opening date.  After a manager and support staff have been certified 
and are operating a store, we offer additional training programs on an “as needed” basis.  Training is 
coordinated by this group of trainers under the direction of Amy Parman, the Director of Training, who 
have the indicated years of industry experience and experience with us or our Affiliates: 

Trainer Taziki’s Experience Industry Experience 

Amy Parman 3 19 

Raul Hernandez 18 18 

Frank Egan 6 27 

John Wiley 12 22 

Jesse Deshield 6 8 

Nick Bowen 11 17 

Andy Rosado 3 9 

 
The initial eight-week MIT program is mandatory for the Owner-Operator and the proposed 

General Manager and is to be completed at a minimum of four weeks prior to the franchise store opening 
date.  Upon the final week of the MIT program, the Training Director or a designee will conduct a 
thorough evaluation, including a review of all manager trainee’s training materials assigned in CREATE, 
the Taziki’s learning management system.  The manager trainees must successfully complete and pass all 
assigned courses to be certified.  We may modify an opening date you propose based upon the projected 
date of successful completion of the MIT program by the General Manager and Owner-Operator.  In 
addition to the certified manager for a new Restaurant opening, you must identify and hire two Assistant 
General Managers and two Shift Leaders.  We require the Assistant General Managers to complete either 
four weeks (200 Hours) of training.  If your Owner-Operator is also your General Manager, then at least 
one Assistant General Manager must complete eight weeks (400 hours) of training.  We recommend that 
the two Shift Leaders complete two weeks (100 Hours) of training.  We require that you must always 
have a Certified Manager in store and/or be in the process of having a manager certified. 
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The table below represents the required and recommended hours and certification needed for a 
new Franchised Restaurant: 

Position Program Hours Needed Certification/Proficiency 
Owner-Operator and 
General Manager 

Intensive (8) week MIT 
Program 

400 Hours Certified Taziki’s General 
Manager 

Assistant General 
Managers (2) 

Intensive (4) week 
Training Program or 
Intensive (8) week MIT 
Program if the Owner-
Operator is also the 
General Manager of 
your Franchised 
Restaurant 

200 Hours or 400 
hours 

Competent in opening and 
closing duties, production 
tools, menu, service line 
and Front of the House 
positions, Point of Sales, 
and cost analysis; or 
Certified Taziki’s General 
Manager 

Shift Leaders (2) Intensive (2) week 
Training Program 
recommended 

100 Hours Competent in menu, Point 
of sales, closing and 
opening duties and all front 
of the house service 
positions. 

 
The resources used during and after the completion of the required training time are a 

comprehensive set of online courses paired with in-store teaching.  We reserve the right to charge for 
training material and initial uniforms.  The MIT training is administered through Performance 
Observations Checklists using a “Four Step Training” approach: 

(1) Trainer explains.  Trainee listens; (2) Trainer performs.  Trainee watches; (3) Trainee 
explains.  Trainer listens; (4) Trainee performs.  Trainer watches.  Our “Certified Trainers” have been or 
are currently General Managers who have successfully completed MIT and are employed at a Certified 
Training Store.  These Certified Trainers have their qualifications measured periodically by a “Taziki’s 
Standard Assessment” in which they must maintain a high level of operational excellence to 
obtain/sustain their training certification. 

There is no tuition charge for the Owner-Operator and the General Manager for the MIT program 
for a new Restaurant in a new market.  There is also no tuition charge for the Assistant General Manager 
and the two Shift Leaders for their initial training.  You are responsible to pay all compensation, benefits, 
travel expenses, living expenses, and any other personal expenses for your nominees enrolled in the MIT 
and support training programs.  For any additional managers registered in the MIT program before the 
opening of a new Restaurant or during the operations of an existing store, the tuition charge will be up to 
$500 per trainee at our current rate.  If a trained manager leaves your employment for any reason, you 
must hire a replacement manager within 30 days who must attend the next MIT training program slot we 
make available at our then current tuition charge, which is now $500.  Prior to opening the third 
Franchised Restaurant in the Training Group, one of the first two Franchised Restaurants in the Training 
Group must be certified by us as a “Certified Training Store” at which all managers and shift leaders in 
the Training Group have been trained by a Certified Trainer.  We specify procedures to obtaining and 
maintaining certification of a Franchised Restaurant as a Certified Training Store in the Operations 
Manual.  A Certified Training Store is a Restaurant that employs a Certified Trainer as a General 
Manager, has passed a “Certified Training Store Assessment” initially and has passed all of its subsequent 
Taziki’s Standards Assessments. 
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We may conduct training at an annual convention or regional meeting.  We may require that your 
Owner-Operator, General Manager, Assistant Manager and Shift Leaders attend this training.  We may 
include the training tuition in a convention or meeting fee, or may charge separately for training tuition. 

ITEM 12 
 

TERRITORY 

Franchise Agreement 

The Franchise Agreement grants you the right to operate a single Franchised Business at the 
Franchised Location.  You must operate the Franchised Business only at the Franchised Location and you 
may not relocate the Franchised Location without first obtaining our written consent.  You may not 
establish or operate another Franchised Business unless you enter into a separate Franchise Agreement for 
that Franchised Business. 

During the term of the Franchise Agreement, we will grant you an assigned area, defined as a 
geographic area determined by us and stated in Attachment A of the Franchise Agreement you sign.  The 
size of the area will be the geographic area within a radius (the “Applicable Radius”) from the Restaurant 
of (i) one mile in counties having a population over 750,000; (ii) two miles in counties having a 
population under 750,000 and at least 250,000, or (iii) five miles in counties with a population of less than 
250,000.  We believe that our Franchised Business will be better sited if located in or near retail shopping 
or other commercial areas that draw traffic for lunch and dinner serving times.  In urban markets, the 
Territory may be much smaller than the Applicable Radius, and may have vertical limits as well as 
horizontal limits.  Nontraditional Concept facilities will receive no Territory with the possible exception 
of the facility in which they are located.  You will not receive an exclusive territory.  You may face 
competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we or our affiliates own, or from other channels of 
distribution or competitive brands that we control. 

The Franchise Agreement reserves for you a right of first offer to submit a franchise application 
to develop and operate a Nontraditional Concept restaurant to be located at a venue in your Territory if 
the Qualified Operator does not have exclusive rights to the venue.  To exercise this right, you must be in 
good standing under all Franchise Agreements with us, have an average standards assessment score of at 
least 90% for the last three assessments of all of your Restaurants, and either initiate the inquiry or 
respond with an application within 30 days after we contact you about the prospect of a Nontraditional 
Concept facility in venue.  If you do not or you cannot exercise the right of first offer, then we may 
proceed with another party, or our Affiliates may proceed, to develop the venue.  Under the Franchise 
Agreement, you do not acquire any other options, rights of first refusal, or similar rights to acquire 
additional Franchised Business franchises at any other location. 

The continuation of your Territory under the Franchise Agreement does not depend on the 
achievement of any specific sales volume, market penetration or other contingency.  We retain no rights 
to modify your territory.  We generally will consider the relocation of a Franchised Business under the 
same criteria as we would consider for an application to approve any new location, such demographics, 
traffic patterns, physical site profiles, access, parking, competition in the market area, and other factors. 

We retain the right to operate and license or franchise other persons to operate a Restaurant at any 
location outside of your Territory.  We retain the right to market and sell in your Territory under the 
Marks without compensation to you the same services and products as those offered as part of the 
Franchised Business system under the Marks through other channels of distribution, including, without 
limitation, the Internet, supermarkets, convenience stores, and retail outlets other than Franchised 
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Business.  We retain the right to market and sell within or outside the Territory without compensation to 
you at any location under trademarks, service marks, and commercial symbols different from the Marks. 

There are no restrictions on your soliciting or accepting carry out orders from customers located 
outside your Territory.  You may use any channels of distribution to make sales outside your Territory, 
provided that all such activity is conducted from your Franchised Location.  We may establish standards 
for delivery and catering services that will prescribe quality, preparation and transportation methods of 
off-premises delivered food, customer service, and other components of the guest experience.  We may 
limit maximum delivery time of off premises deliveries of ready to eat meals not involving catering 
orders.  We may also establish and modify unilaterally, by written notice to you, limitations on your 
solicitation, acceptance and fulfillment of orders for off-premises delivery and catering services to a 
particular “Service Territory” beyond the Territory.  These limitations may restrict such activities to your 
Territory or to an area that does not encompass another System franchisee’s Territory.  You may not use 
any off-site commissary or service kitchen without first obtaining our consent. 

We have no present intention but may in the future operate, franchise, plan to operate or franchise 
a business under a different trademark that sells or will sell goods or services similar to those a System 
franchisee will offer.  This could include any restaurant or business selling foods that are ready to eat or 
for off-premises preparation or consumption.  Such a business could be located or have an outlet in the 
Territory.  We describe in Item 8 certain Affiliate Concepts that operate under the brand name “Fresh 
Hospitality”.  We may enter into purchasing agreements, insurance policies or other management 
contracts under the Fresh Hospitality name to take advantage of combined purchasing power.  These 
Affiliate Concepts, which may include additional concepts in the future, may compete with your 
Restaurant in the fast casual category.  Such Affiliate Concept restaurants could be located or have an 
outlet in or near the Territory or the Service Territory.  The franchise agreement and area development 
agreements we sign do not restrict or limit the ability of us or our affiliates to create, open, operate and 
franchise Affiliate Concepts within or outside the Territory.  You have no right or option to participate in 
any franchise or license program, or to own an Affiliate Concept, or to be paid any compensation relating 
to an Affiliate Concept restaurant.  We may join with our affiliates to leverage the buying power of all 
Affiliate Concept restaurants and the System to obtain better quality service, pricing and availability from 
common approved suppliers, purveyors, and vendors of goods and services used by the restaurant chains. 

Area Development Agreement 

The Area Development Agreement identifies the Development Territory within which you must 
develop multiple Franchised Locations under the Performance Schedule.  The Development Territory will 
be a geographic area described in Attachment A of the Area Development Agreement and chosen by a 
method of delineation that we determine is appropriate under the circumstances.  During the term of the 
Area Development Agreement, neither we nor our affiliates will operate or license any other person or 
entity to operate a Franchised Business within your Development Territory, and we will not enter into 
another Area Development Agreement that overlaps its Development Territory with yours.  We will 
determine the Development Territory and the Performance Schedule before you sign the Area 
Development Agreement, based on various market and economic factors such as an evaluation of the 
market demographics, the market penetration of the System and similar businesses, the availability of 
appropriate sites and the growth trends in the market.  The continuation of your Area Development 
Agreement depends on your compliance with its Performance Schedule. 
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ITEM 13 
 

TRADEMARKS 

The Franchise Agreement grants you the right to operate a Franchised Business under the Marks.  
Parent has registered with the United States Patent & Trademark Office (“USPTO”) the following Marks: 

Mark Registration Number Principal or 
Supplemental Register 

Registration Date 

“T” design mark 4327426 Principal April 30, 2013 
“T TAZIKI’S” design 

mark 
4308936 Principal March 26, 2013 

“TAZIKI’S 
MEDITERRANEAN 
CAFE” design mark 

4308932 Principal March 26, 2013 

“T TAZIKI’S 
MEDITERRANEAN 
CAFE” design mark 

(green) 

4338831 Principal May 21, 2013 

“TAZIKI’S” word mark 5653642 Principal January 15, 2019 
“TAZIKI’S 

MEDITERRANEAN 
CAFE” word mark 

5653644 Principal January 15, 2019 

 
All required affidavits have been filed.  No renewals have yet been required.  If our right to use 

the trademark is challenged, you may have to change to an alternative trademark, which may increase 
your expenses. 

There are no currently effective material determinations of the USPTO, the Trademark Trial and 
Appeal Board, or any state trademark administrator or court, or any pending infringement, opposition or 
cancellation proceedings affecting the Marks.  There is no pending material federal or state court 
litigation involving the use or ownership rights in a Mark.  We know of no superior rights or infringing 
uses that could materially affect your use of our Marks; however, we cannot guaranty that a restaurant or 
other user is not operating under Taziki’s or another confusingly similar name that may have priority over 
our or our Parent’s use. 

Effective January 1, 2013, Parent licensed the Marks and the System to us under a trademark 
license agreement.  We are granted a worldwide license of the Marks and System with the exclusive right 
to franchise the Marks and the System for 50 years.  We are obligated to assure that all sublicensees 
comply with quality standards set by Parent.  The trademark license agreement can be terminated by 
Parent only if we breach the agreement and fail to cure the breach within 30 days after receiving written 
notice of the breach, or if we become insolvent or are unable to pay our debts as they become due, or we 
commence a case for relief or reorganization, or are the subject of an involuntary case for relief or 
reorganization under the Federal Bankruptcy Code or under any other state or federal bankruptcy or 
insolvency laws, and such involuntary case continues for more than ninety (90) days after its initial filing 
without dismissal.  At termination of the trademark license agreement, we are obligated to assign to 
Parent all license, franchise and sublicensing agreements which we have entered into for the use of the 
Marks and the System, which shall continue in full force and effect until the expiration of the terms then 
in effect.  If such an assignment occurs, Parent will not assume any liabilities that pre-date the 
assignment, for which we will remain liable. 
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We have no affirmative duty to protect your right to use the Proprietary Marks but intend to take 
appropriate actions if the need arises.  We have the right to control any administrative proceedings or 
litigation involving a Mark we license to you.  If anyone institutes or threatens litigation involving any 
component of the System, including the Marks, against you, you must notify us promptly and cooperate 
fully with us in defending or settling the litigation.  We will have control over the defense and settlement 
of any administrative proceeding or litigation regarding the System.  You also should notify us 
immediately when you learn about any infringing use of the Marks, any challenge to your use of the 
Marks, and any use or claim of the right to use any trademark or service mark confusingly similar to the 
Marks. 

Except as stated above, we do not have any obligation to take any affirmative action, participate 
in your defense, or indemnify you for expenses or damages if you become a party to an administrative or 
judicial proceeding involving a Mark we license to you or if the proceeding is resolved unfavorably to 
you.  If we must, or we decide to, change the System and discontinue the use of any of the Marks, we 
reserve the right to substitute different proprietary marks for use in your identifying the Franchised 
Business.  We have no obligation to compensate you for the discontinuance or modification of any Mark, 
or the cost of changing the primary mark of the Franchised System. 

You may not use the Marks to offer or sell any services or products not a part of the System that 
we do not first otherwise approve.  You must comply with the rules and guidelines we issue for using the 
Marks.  You cannot use a Mark as part of a corporate name or with modifying words, designs or symbols, 
except for those which we license to you.  You also cannot display or erect any other mark on your office, 
stationery, advertising, sales/promotional materials or other objects, except for those Marks licensed to 
you.  You may not use any Mark to promote or identify the sale of an unauthorized product or service, or 
in a manner we do not authorize in writing. 

ITEM 14 
 

PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 

Other than our copyright in our Operations Manual, we do not own any patents or copyrights and 
have no pending patent applications material to the Franchised Business.  We own certain proprietary 
information that constitutes trade secrets that you may use in the operation of a Franchised Business.  You 
will have the right to use the proprietary information contained in the Operations Manual.  Although we 
have not filed for copyright registration for the Operations Manual, we do claim a copyright in it and the 
information contained in it does constitute proprietary information.  The Franchise Agreement will 
obligate you to protect our proprietary information from unauthorized use and disclosure, and to have 
your equity owners, managers, employees we designate in the Operations Manual sign a confidentiality 
agreement in the form we prescribe (Franchise Agreement, Attachment D).  You must tell us promptly 
when you learn about any unauthorized use of the Operations Manual or the information contained in it.  
We have no obligation to take any action in that event; however, we will respond as we deem appropriate. 

There are no currently effective material determinations of the United States Copyright Office or 
any court, or any pending material proceeding that would affect our copyrights.  We have no agreements 
which would limit our right to license the use of any existing or future patents, copyrights or proprietary 
information.  Although not obligated under any express provision of the Franchise Agreement, we intend 
to protect our rights in our existing and future patents, copyrights and proprietary information. 

If anyone institutes or threatens litigation involving any of our patents, copyrights or proprietary 
information against you, you must notify us promptly and cooperate fully with us in defending or settling 
the litigation. 
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We will have control over the defense and settlement of any administrative proceeding or 
litigation regarding any patents, copyrights or proprietary information relating to the Franchised Business 
system.  You also should notify us immediately when you learn about any infringing use of our patents, 
copyrights or proprietary information or any challenge to your use of our patents, copyrights or 
proprietary information. 

Except as stated above, we do not have any obligation to take any affirmative action, participate 
in your defense, or indemnify you for expenses or damages if you become a party to an administrative or 
judicial proceeding involving any patents, copyrighted material, or proprietary information licensed by us 
to you or if the proceeding is resolved unfavorably to you. 

If we must discontinue the use of any of our patents, copyrighted materials, or proprietary 
information relating to the Franchised Business system, we reserve the right to substitute different 
materials and/or information for use in your franchised business, but we have no obligation to compensate 
you for the discontinuance or modification of any patents, copyrighted material, or proprietary 
information.  We know of no infringing rights that could materially affect you. 

We intend to renew any future registered copyrights when the registration expires. 

ITEM 15 
 

OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE 
ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS 

A franchisee has responsibility for the operation of its Franchised Business.  At least one person 
who has a significant equity ownership position in the franchisee (at least 5%) must be designated the 
Owner-Operator of the franchisee and attend the MIT training program.  The Owner-Operator must 
dedicate his or her full working time and attention to the Franchised Business.  You may hire an “on-
premises” manager to handle the day-to-day operations of your Franchised Business, but any such 
manager must have completed the MIT training program.  Your on-premises manager must sign a written 
agreement at the time of employment to maintain the confidentiality of the trade secrets and other 
proprietary information contained in Item 14 and to comply with the covenants not to compete described 
in Item 17.  The form is included in the Franchise Agreement as Attachment D and a copy of the fully 
executed agreement must be sent to us promptly after signing, and before we begin training. 

If you operate as a corporation, partnership or other form of business entity, each of your owners 
must guarantee your obligations and agree to a restriction on the transfer of their equity ownership 
interests under the Guaranty and Restriction Agreement attached as Attachment C to the Franchise 
Agreement. 

ITEM 16 
 

RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL 

You must operate your Franchised Business under the System as specified in the Franchise 
Agreement, the Operations Manual, and in our standards and policies.  You may not engage in any 
business or offer any other services or products at your Franchised Business that is or are not a part of the 
System or without our express authorization in advance.  You must offer our entire menu except those 
items we designate as optional.  You may not offer additional menu items without our prior written 
consent.  We retain the right to modify the Operations Manual to modify, discontinue or add to the goods 
and services that you must sell in your Franchised Business, which may include new or modified menu 
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items and recipes, methods of preparation or serving, and the installation and use of new or modified food 
preparation and serving equipment.  There are no limits on our right to make these changes. 

All advertising and promotional materials, signs, decorations, paper goods (including menus and 
all forms and stationery used in the Franchised Business) and other items we designate must bear the 
Marks in the form, color, location and manner we prescribe.  In addition, all advertising and promotion in 
any medium, (including websites, Internet postings or markings) must be conducted in a dignified manner 
and must conform to the standards and requirements in the Operations Manual, the Franchise Agreement 
or otherwise.  You must obtain our approval before you use any advertising and promotional materials 
and plans.  You must obtain our written approval of the content and design of your website or Internet 
posting or marketing in advance of such use and such use must be in compliance with our policies 
including the use and presentation of the Marks. 

We have the right to establish a guest survey feedback program, and any similar programs that we 
elect, in our sole discretion, to implement.  We may use the scores and comments from such program to 
evaluate whether or not you meet System Standards, are eligible for additional franchises or area 
development agreements, or comply with your Franchise Agreement.  As of the Issuance Date, we have 
not established a guest survey feedback program. 

ITEM 17 
 

RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 
Franchise Agreement 

This table lists certain important provisions of the Franchise Agreement.  You should read 
these provisions in that agreement attached as Exhibit A to this Disclosure Document. 

 Provision Section in 
Franchise 
Agreement 

Summary 

a. Length of the franchise 
term 

4 The Franchise Agreement runs for a term of 10 years 
unless terminated earlier under the Franchise 
Agreement. 

b. Renewal or extension of 
the term 

4 You may renew the franchise for a five-year renewal 
term four times.  You may not renew if (i) you or any 
of your Affiliates are in default under any Franchise 
Agreement with us, (ii) any monetary obligations to us 
or our Affiliates are unsatisfied, (iii) if your restaurant 
performs in the bottom quartile of Net Cash Sales for 
all Franchised Business restaurants, or (iv) the average 
standards assessment score for all of your Restaurants 
on the three assessments preceding the date your 
renewal notice must be given is less than 85%.  We 
will notify you if you choose to renew and you do not 
meet these conditions. 
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 Provision Section in 
Franchise 
Agreement 

Summary 

c. Requirements for 
franchisee to renew or 
extend 

4 You may renew the franchise up to four (4) additional 
“Renewal Terms” of five (5) years each, subject in 
each renewal to satisfaction of the following 
conditions for renewal:  You must give us 180 days 
advance notice of renewal, sign our then current form 
of the Franchise Agreement (which may contain 
materially different terms and conditions from the 
original contract), execute a general release of claims, 
complete any retraining program we may require, and 
pay a renewal fee of $5000.  At the end of the initial 
term and at the end of the second renewal term you 
must also upgrade your restaurant to our current entry 
standards and design elements, complete any 
retraining we require, upgrade to our current kitchen 
equipment package and install our current point-of-
sale system and other equipment.  At the end of the 
first renewal term and the end of the third renewal 
term, you must remodel, redecorate and replace or 
reupholster your seating. 

d. Termination by franchisee 28 You may terminate the Franchise Agreement only if 
we substantially fail to perform any of our material 
obligations to you under the Franchise Agreement.  
You must give written notice of and 60 days to cure 
the failure.  If the failure is not cured within 60 days 
you may terminate the Franchise Agreement upon 
written notice. 

e. Termination by franchisor 
Without cause 

31 We may terminate your Franchise agreement after 
written notice to you if we determine that either (i) a 
law or regulation is enacted, promulgated, repealed, 
modified or amended, (ii) a judicial or administrative 
tribunal or administrative agency has issued, published 
or released a decision, ruling or opinion in a matter not 
involving the Parties directly or indirectly that we 
reasonably expect will affect applicable law or its 
interpretation, or (iii) an administrative agency, 
arbitrator or judge has issued an interim or final 
decision in a matter in which the Parties are involved 
directly or indirectly, which (A) frustrates or adversely 
affects or could reasonably be expected to affect 
adversely the purposes of the Franchise Agreement, 
(B) makes performance of the Franchise Agreement 
commercially impracticable, (C) effectively modifies 
the allocation of risk, benefits and burdens agreed by 
the Parties, (D) deprives any Party of its benefits of 
the bargain struck by the Parties, as originally set forth 
in the Franchise Agreement, or (E) determines that an 
employment or a joint employment relationship exists 
between us. 
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 Provision Section in 
Franchise 
Agreement 

Summary 

f. Termination by franchisor 
with cause 

6 (e), 29 and 30 We may terminate your Franchise Agreement after 
written notice of a curable default if you fail to cure 
within the time permitted or such longer period as 
required by law, or immediately upon written notice of 
an incurable default unless a longer notice period is 
required by law. 

g. “Cause” defined - curable 
defaults 

30 A curable default consists of (1) the breach of any of 
your obligations under any agreement with us or our 
affiliates, other than an incurable default listed below, 
or (2) any condition which makes the continued 
operation of your Franchised Business a danger to 
public health or safety.  If you do not remedy a 
curable default within 30 days after notice of a non-
monetary default or within five days after notice of a 
monetary default, we may terminate your Franchise 
Agreement.  These cure or notice periods may be 
extended by applicable law in your state. 

h. “Cause” defined - non-
curable defaults 

6 (e), 29 An incurable default will occur if (1) you close or 
abandon your Franchised Business without approval; 
(2) you or any of your equity owners request the 
appointment of a receiver or have a receiver appointed 
for any of your or their assets; (3) you or any of your 
equity owners make a general assignment for the 
benefit of your or their creditors; (4) you or any of 
your owners commence a case or have an order for 
relief entered against you or them under the U.S. 
Bankruptcy Code or any foreign equivalent; (5) you or 
any of your owners suffer a conviction for a crime 
involving moral turpitude or any other offense, or an 
incident occurs at or involving the Restaurant or an 
off-premises service provided by the Restaurant 
reasonably likely, in our opinion, to have an adverse 
effect on the good will of the Marks, the System or 
other Restaurants; (6) we discover a material 
inaccuracy in any of the representations made by you 
in the Franchise Agreement or in any written 
application submitted by you to us in order to qualify 
as a franchisee; (7) you maintain false books or 
records; (8) you breach the same provision of the 
Franchise Agreement on three occasions within any 
12-month period having received notice of the first 
two breaches; (9) you commit a breach, which by its 
nature, you cannot cure or which you notify us you do 
not intend to cure; (10) a court, administrative 
tribunal, health department having jurisdiction over 
your Restaurant or an independent laboratory 
determines that a preventable incident of food borne 
illness is attributable to your Restaurant, and we 
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 Provision Section in 
Franchise 
Agreement 

Summary 

determine in good faith that such incident resulted 
from your breach of System Standards or your 
Franchise Agreement; or (11) you don’t complete the 
Restaurant according to the approved plans and 
System Standards, and open the Restaurant within the 
time specified in the Franchise Agreement. 

i. Franchisee’s obligations 
on termination/non-
renewal 

33 You must (1) abide by the non-competition provisions 
of the Franchise Agreement; (2) promptly pay us and 
our affiliates all amounts owed; (3) not use or adopt 
the Franchised Business system or any of our 
proprietary marks or intellectual property; (4) remove 
from the restaurant all signs, emblems and displays 
identifying it as associated with the Franchised 
Business system; (5) cease to use and return to us the 
Operations Manual and other confidential materials 
delivered to you; (6) cease to hold yourself out in any 
way as our franchisee or to do anything which would 
indicate any relationship between you and us; (7) 
change the exterior and interior design and décor of 
the restaurant and make all changes in signs, buildings 
and structures which we direct to distinguish the 
building from its former appearance as a Franchised 
Business; and (8) transfer to us all telephone listings, 
domain names, and web pages for your Franchised 
Business or which contain, use or display any of our 
proprietary marks or intellectual property. 

j. Assignment of contract 
by franchisor 

22(a) We may transfer, assign or pledge our 
interest in the Franchise Agreement, in 
whole or in part, to any person. 
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 Provision Section in 
Franchise 
Agreement 

Summary 

k. “Transfer” by franchisee- 
defined 

54(z) Any transaction that is or results in (i) an assignment 
of the Franchise Agreement or delegation of any of 
your rights and obligations under the Franchise 
Agreement, (ii) grant of a security interest in, pledge 
of, lien or encumbrance on the Franchise Agreement, 
(iii) a change in ownership of an equity interest, or any 
issuance of additional equity interests to new persons 
or entities not listed on Attachment A to the Franchise 
Agreement, or any transaction among your existing 
equity owners that results in a change in control over 
your equity interests; (iv) any merger, consolidation or 
sale of substantially all assets, if you are an entity, (v) 
any sale or lease of the Franchised Restaurant, or a 
sale of the Location if you own it, or any eviction, 
detainer, foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure that 
results in the loss of possession of and control over the 
Franchised Restaurant, (vi) any delegation of 
management rights or responsibilities of the 
Franchised Business, or (vii) any distribution, gift or 
donation of any interest in the Franchised Restaurant 
will constitute a “transfer” of your Franchise 
Agreement or you. 

l. Franchisor approval of 
transfer by franchisee 

22(b) You generally may not transfer any interest in your 
Franchise Agreement or an equity interest in the 
franchisee entity without our consent. 

m. Conditions for franchisor 
approval of transfer 

22(b) We may impose any condition for our approval, 
including (1) the proposed transferee must satisfy all 
of the requirements and conditions then being used to 
qualify a person as a new franchisee; (2) the proposed 
transferee must comply with Section 24 of the 
Franchise Agreement relating to business entities; (3) 
you must satisfy all of your accrued monetary 
obligations to us and our affiliates; (4) you must cure 
all existing defaults under the Franchise Agreement; 
(5) you must execute and deliver a general release of 
all claims against us and our affiliates; (6) the 
transferee must execute and deliver our then current 
form of franchise agreement with the same royalty fee 
and same expiration date and remaining renewal term 
(if any); and (7) you must pay us a transfer fee (See 
Item 6) unless the transfer is an initial transfer from an 
individual to an entity or to any of your existing 
owners or any member of your immediate family. 

n. Franchisor’s right of first 
refusal to acquire 
franchisee’s business 

23 We have a right of first refusal to purchase your 
Franchised Business or any controlling interest in you 
that you propose to sell on the same terms and 
conditions offered to you by a third party. 
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 Provision Section in 
Franchise 
Agreement 

Summary 

o. Franchisor’s option to 
purchase franchisee’s 
business 

34 We have an option to purchase your Franchised 
Business for its fair market value upon the termination 
or expiration of the Franchise Agreement. 

p. Death or disability of 
franchisee 

25 Upon the death of an owner, or the appointment of a 
permanent guardian or conservator to manage the 
owner’s affairs, the owner’s trustee, conservator or 
other personal representative may hold the deceased’s 
equity interest in the franchisee entity for up to one 
year and may only transfer the deceased’s interest 
from the estate, a testamentary trust or inter vivos trust 
to a third party we approve under the procedures set 
forth in the Franchise Agreement.  If the owner was 
the Owner-Operator, then we may treat the personal 
representative, trustee or conservator as the owner-
operator until you appoint someone else as the Owner-
Operator.  Any failure to commence administration of 
the decedent’s estate within 90 days after death or any 
distribution of the decedent’s equity interest in the 
franchisee entity without our consent if such 
distribution operates as an assignment and our consent 
is required, is a material breach of the Franchise 
Agreement. 

q. Non-competition 
covenants during the term 
of the franchise 

11 You may not engage, either directly or indirectly 
through any financial or beneficial interest in any 
other person, in any competing business, other than a 
Franchised Business.  A competing business means 
any restaurant serving as its primary menu offering 
Greek or Mediterranean cuisine in a quick service, fast 
casual, casual dining, diner or buffet format, featuring 
pre-made and prepared to order salads, dolmades, 
gyros, lavash wraps and grilled proteins. 

r. Non-competition 
covenants after the 
franchise is terminated or 
expires 

11 For a period of two years after the termination or 
expiration of the Franchise Agreement, you may not 
engage in any competing business other than a 
Franchised Business, within your Territory and within 
the Applicable Radius in miles from any Restaurant 
listed on our web site at the time of termination, either 
directly or indirectly through any financial or 
beneficial interest in any other person. 

s. Modification of the 
agreement 

52 We may alter the System or Operations Manual as we 
deem necessary.  We and you must agree in writing to 
any modifications to your Franchise Agreement. 

t. Integration/merger 
clause 

40 Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are 
binding (subject to applicable state law).  Any 
representations or promises outside of this Disclosure 
Document and the Franchise Agreement may not be 
enforceable. 
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 Provision Section in 
Franchise 
Agreement 

Summary 

u. Dispute resolution by 
arbitration or mediation 

Not Applicable Not applicable. 

v. Choice of forum 47 Any legal action must be brought in the judicial 
district where our headquarters is located, which is 
currently Jefferson County, Alabama.  Your local law 
may supersede this provision.  See Disclosure 
Document Addenda for Certain States at Exhibit C. 

w. Choice of law 46 Alabama and applicable federal law will apply to your 
Franchise Agreement and all rights and duties under 
the Franchise Agreement (subject to applicable state 
law).  See the Disclosure Document Addenda for 
Certain States at Exhibit C. 

 
Area Development Agreement 

The following table lists certain important provisions of the Area Development Agreement.  
You should read these provisions in that agreement attached as Exhibit B to this Disclosure 
Document. 

 Provision Section in Area 
Development 
Agreement 

Summary 

a. Length of the franchise 
term 

4 The Area Development Agreement expires on the 
date negotiated by you and us, usually 5 years from 
its effective date. 

b. Renewal or extension of 
the term 

Not Applicable You may not renew the Area Development 
Agreement. 

c. Requirements for 
franchisee to renew or 
extend 

Not Applicable You may not renew the Area Development 
Agreement. 

d. Termination by franchisee Not Applicable You may not terminate the Area Development 
Agreement. 
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 Provision Section in Area 
Development 
Agreement 

Summary 

e. Termination by franchisor 
Without cause 

15 We may terminate your Area Development 
Agreement after written notice to you if we 
determine that either (i) a law or regulation is 
enacted, promulgated, repealed, modified or 
amended, (ii) a judicial or administrative tribunal or 
administrative agency has issued, published or 
released a decision, ruling or opinion in a matter not 
involving the Parties directly or indirectly that we 
reasonably expect will affect applicable law or its 
interpretation, or (iii) an administrative agency, 
arbitrator or judge has issued an interim or final 
decision in a matter in which the Parties are 
involved directly or indirectly, which (A) frustrates 
or adversely affects or could reasonably be expected 
to affect adversely the purposes of the Area 
Development Agreement, (B) makes performance 
of the Area Development Agreement commercially 
impracticable, (C) effectively modifies the 
allocation of risk, benefits and burdens agreed by 
the Parties, (D) deprives any Party of its benefits of 
the bargain struck by the Parties, as originally set 
forth in the Area Development Agreement, or (E) 
determines that an employment or a joint 
employment relationship exists between us. 

f. Termination by franchisor 
with cause 

13 and 14 We may terminate your Area Development 
Agreement 30 days after we give you written notice 
of a curable default that you fail to cure or 
immediately upon written notice of an incurable 
default. 

g. “Cause” defined - curable 
defaults 

13 A curable default consists of the breach of any of 
your obligations under any agreement with us or our 
affiliates, other than an incurable default listed 
below.  Requesting the appointment of a receiver or 
assigning your interest may also constitute a curable 
default.  If you do not remedy a curable default 
within 30 days after notice, we may terminate your 
Area Development Agreement. 

h. “Cause” defined - non-
curable defaults 

13 An incurable default will occur if you fail to comply 
with the Performance Schedule or any incurable 
default occurs under Section 29 of any of your 
existing Franchise Agreements. 
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 Provision Section in Area 
Development 
Agreement 

Summary 

i. Franchisee’s obligations 
on termination/non-
renewal 

14 You must cease to select or develop any sites for a 
Franchised Business or hold yourself out as a 
Franchised Business developer.  However, the 
termination of the Area Development Agreement 
will not affect your right to open and operate a 
Franchised Business under any effective Franchise 
Agreement. 

j. Assignment of contract 
by franchisor 

17(a) We may transfer, assign or pledge our interest in the 
Area Development Agreement, in whole or in part, 
to any person. 

k. “Transfer” by franchisee- 
defined 

17 Any transfer, assignment or pledge of the Area 
Development Agreement will constitute a “transfer” 
of the agreement. 

l. Franchisor approval of 
transfer by franchisee 

17(b) You may not transfer any interest in your Area 
Development Agreement without our express 
written consent. 

m. Conditions for franchisor 
approval of transfer 

17(b) You may not transfer any interest in your Area 
Development Agreement without our express 
written consent. 

n. Franchisor’s right of first 
refusal to acquire 
franchisee’s business 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

o. Franchisor’s option to 
purchase franchisee’s 
business 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

p. Death or disability of 
franchisee 

Not Applicable Your death or permanent incapacity, in and of itself, 
will not affect your Area Development Agreement. 

q. Non-competition 
covenants during the term 
of the franchise 

12 During the Term of the Development Agreement 
you and your Owners may not engage, either 
directly or indirectly in any competing Business 
other than a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant 
licensed by us. 

r. Non-competition 
covenants after the 
franchise is terminated or 
expires 

12 You may not develop any competing Business 
within the Development Area and within the 
Applicable Radius of any Restaurant during a 
period of two years after termination of the Area 
Development Agreement. 

s. Modification of the 
agreement 

29 You and we must agree in writing to any 
modifications to the Area Development Agreement. 

t. Integration/merger 
clause 

20 and 32 Only the terms of the Area Development Agreement 
are binding (subject to applicable state law).  Any 
representations or promises outside of this 
Disclosure Document and the Area Development 
Agreement may not be enforceable. 

u. Dispute resolution by 
arbitration or mediation 

Not Applicable Not applicable. 
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 Provision Section in Area 
Development 
Agreement 

Summary 

v. Choice of forum 24 Any legal action must be brought in the judicial 
district where our headquarters is located, which is 
currently Jefferson County, Alabama.  Your local 
law may supersede this provision.  See Disclosure 
Document Addenda for Certain States at Exhibit C 

w. Choice of law 23 Alabama law will apply to the Area Development 
Agreement and all rights and duties under the Area 
Development Agreement (subject to applicable state 
law).  See Disclosure Document Addenda for 
Certain States at Exhibit C. 

 
ITEM 18 

 
PUBLIC FIGURES 

We do not use any public figure to promote our franchise. 

ITEM 19 
 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS 

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or 
potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable 
basis for the information, and if the information is included in the Disclosure Document.  Financial 
performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if:  (1) a franchisor 
provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying or (2) a franchisor 
supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about 
possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances. 

The representations contained in this Disclosure Document are historic financial performance 
representations from our 2020 fiscal year which began on December 30, 2019 and ended on December 
27, 2020.  At the end of our 2020 fiscal year, the System had a total of ninety-one Restaurants open, 
eighty-one of which were open for our entire fiscal year.  Of the ten Restaurants not open the entire year, 
two were newly opened during the year and eight were temporarily closed due to the COVID-19 
Pandemic. The following financial performance representations are for seventy-seven of the Restaurants 
open during all of 2020, representing 85% of the Restaurants open at the end of our 2020 fiscal year.  
Four franchised Restaurants have not submitted their data for 2020 as of the Issuance Date so their results 
are not reported below.  

Table 1 represents the financial performance representations of 17 Restaurants owned by our 
affiliates and joint ventures in which our affiliates managed each Restaurant for the entire year, 
representing 18.7% of the 91 Restaurants open at the end of our 2020 fiscal year.  For these 17 locations, 
the Average Annual Net Sales was $1,527,236 and the Average Weekly Volume was $29,370. Annual 
Net Sales ranged from $729,764 to $2,570,024 and the Average Weekly Volume ranged from $14,034 to 
$49,424 for this group.  The median Restaurant’s Annual Net Sales were $1,671,048 and its Average 
Weekly Volume was $32,136. 
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Table 2 represents the financial performance representations of 60 Restaurants owned by 
franchisees and joint ventures in which our affiliates did not manage the restaurant for the entire year, 
representing 66% of the ninety-one Restaurants open at the end of our 2020 fiscal year.  For these 60 
locations, the Average Annual Net Sales was $1,230,944 and the average weekly volume was $23,672. 
The Annual Net Sales during this period ranged from $465,528 to $2,147,876 for this group and the 
Average Weekly Volume ranged from $8,952 to $41,305. The median Restaurant’s Annual Net Sales 
were $1,127,140 and its Average Weekly Volume was $21,676. 

For comparison to 2020 concerning effects of the COVID-19 Pandemic, this document also 
contains certain historic financial performance representations from our 2019 fiscal year which began on 
December 31, 2018 and ended on December 29, 2019. At the end of our 2019 fiscal year, the System had 
a total of ninety-one Restaurants open. The following financial performance representations are for 
seventy-four of the Restaurants open during all of 2019, representing 84% of the Restaurants open at the 
end of our 2019 fiscal year.  
 

Table 3 represents the financial performance representations of 16 Restaurants owned by our 
affiliates and joint ventures in which our affiliates managed each Restaurant for the entire year, 
representing 17.5% of the 91 Restaurants open at the end of our 2019 fiscal year. For these 16 locations, 
the Average Annual Net Sales was $1,720,410. Annual Net Sales ranged from $813,874 to $3,044,593. 
The median Restaurant’s Average Annual Net Sales was $1,668,092. 

 
Table 4 represents the financial performance representations of 58 Restaurants owned by 

franchisees and joint ventures in which our affiliates did not manage the restaurant for the entire year, 
representing 64% of the ninety-one Restaurants open at the end of our 2019 fiscal year. For these 58 
locations, the Average Annual Net Sales was $1,418,052. The Annual Net Sales during this period ranged 
from $618,392 to $2,514,402 for this group. The median Restaurant’s Average Annual Net Sales was 
$1,329,312. 
 

These annual results have not been audited by an independent auditor and are compiled from 
information voluntarily reported by the Restaurants.  Apart from variances attributable to geographic 
location and length of time the outlets have operated, the material characteristics of these Restaurants are 
similar to the Franchised Business being offered to you in this Disclosure Document. 
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Table 1 

Seventeen Affiliate Owned Restaurants Open More than One Year - 2020 Fiscal Year 

 Average 

Percent 
of 

Average 
Net 

Sales 

Results from 
Highest 

Volume Store 

Percent 
of 

Average 
Net 

Sales 

Results from 
Median 
Volume 

Store 

Percent 
of 

Average 
Net 

Sales 

Results 
from 

Lowest 
Volume 

Store 

Percent 
of 

Average 
Net 

Sales 

Number 
of 

Stores 
at or 
above 

Average 

Percentage 
of Stores 

Above 
Average 

Number 
of 

Stores 
at or 
above 

Median 

Percentage 
of Stores 

Above 
Average 

Total Net 
Sales  $  1,527,236     $    2,570,024     $  1,671,048     $  729,764    

                
9  53% 

                
8  47% 

AWV  $         29,370     $         49,424     $       32,136     $   14,034            
Cost of 
Goods                         

Food & 
Beverage  $        390,941  25.6%  $        646,229  25.1%  $     419,766  25.1%  $  194,217  26.6% 

                
9  53% 

                
6  35% 

Supplies 
 $          87,995  5.8%  $        148,818  5.8%  $        94,170  5.6%  $    44,811  6.1% 

              
11  65% 

                
6  35% 

Total Cost 
of Goods  $        478,936  31.4%  $        795,047  30.9%  $     513,936  30.8%  $  239,028  32.8% 

                
9  53% 

                
5  29% 

Payroll                         

Crew 
 $        352,792  23.1%  $        539,655  21.0%  $     348,447  20.9%  $  191,480  26.2% 

                
7  41% 

                
4  24% 

Managers 
 $        114,543  7.5%  $        130,541  5.1%  $     110,972  6.6%  $    53,155  7.3% 

              
11  65% 

              
10  59% 

Taxes & 
Benefits  $          74,835  4.9%  $        110,698  4.3%  $        80,160  4.8%  $    37,615  5.2% 

              
10  59% 

                
9  53% 

Total 
Labor  $        542,169  35.5%  $        780,894  30.4%  $     539,579  32.3%  $  282,250  38.7% 

                
9  53% 

                
6  35% 

Prime 
Costs  $    1,021,105  66.9%  $    1,575,941  61.3%  $  1,053,515  63.0%  $  521,278  71.4% 

                
9  53% 

                
5  29% 

Gross 
Margin  $        506,131  33.1%  $        994,083  38.7%  $     617,533  37.0%  $  208,486  28.6% 

                
9  53% 

                
6  35% 

Franchise 
Fees  $          72,544  4.8%  $        122,076  4.8%  $        79,375  4.8%  $    34,664  4.8%     
Net 
Margin  $        433,588  28.4%  $        872,007  33.9%  $     538,158  32.2%  $  173,822  23.8%     
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Table 2 

Sixty Franchised Restaurants Open More than One Year - 2020 Fiscal Year 

 Average 

Percent 
of 

Average 
Net 

Sales 

Results from 
Highest 
Volume 

Store 

Percent 
of 

Average 
Net 

Sales 

Results 
from 

Median 
Volume 

Store 

Percent 
of 

Averag
e Net 
Sales 

Results 
from 

Lowest 
Volume 

Store 

Percent 
of 

Average 
Net 

Sales 

Number 
of Stores 

at or 
above 

Average 

Percentage 
of Stores 

Above 
Average 

Number 
of Stores 

at or 
above 

Median 

Percentage 
of Stores 

Above 
Average 

Total Net 
Sales 

 
$1,230,944  

  $2,147,876    
$1,127,140  

  
$465,528  

  24  40%  30  50% 

AWV  $23,672    $41,305    $21,676    $8,952       
Cost of Goods             

Food & 
Beverage 

 $312,660  25.4%  $514,146  23.9%  $273,612  24.3%  
$117,938  

25.3%  36  60%  12  20% 

Supplies  $71,395  5.8%  $121,282  5.6%  $69,062  6.1%  $31,772  6.8%  27  45%  37  62% 

Total Cost of 
Goods 

 $384,055  31.2%  $635,428  29.6%  $342,674  30.4%  
$149,710  

32.2%  26  43%  15  25% 

Payroll             
Crew  $283,117  23.0%  $466,387  21.7%  $263,464  23.4%  $99,157  21.3%  37  62%  41  68% 
Managers  $114,478  9.3%  $113,344  5.3%  $114,109  10.1%  $62,846  13.5%  33  55%  39  65% 
Taxes & 
Benefits 

 $66,471  5.4%  $85,132  4.0%  $63,371  5.6%  $30,259  6.5%  30  50%  34  57% 

Total Labor 
 $464,066  37.7%  $664,863  31.0%  $440,944  39.1%  

$192,263  
41.3%  37  62%  41  68% 

Prime Costs 
 $848,120  68.9%  $1,300,291  60.5%  $783,618  69.5%  

$341,973  
73.5%  34  57%  39  65% 

Gross Margin 
 $382,824  31.1%  $847,585  39.5%  $343,522  30.5%  

$123,555  
26.5%  35  58%  39  65% 

Franchise 
Fees 

 $58,470  4.8%  $102,024  4.8%  $53,539  4.8%  $22,113  4.8%     

Net Margin 
 $324,354  26.4%  $745,561  34.7%  $289,983  25.7%  

$101,443  
21.8%     
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Table 3 

Sixteen Affiliate Owned Restaurants Open More than One Year - 2019 Fiscal Year 

 Average 
Results from 

Highest 
Volume Store 

Results from 
Median 

Volume Store 

Results from 
Lowest Volume 

Store 

Number of Stores 
at or above 

Average 

Percentage of 
Stores Above 

Average 

Number of 
Stores at or 

above Median 

Percentage of 
Stores Above 

Average 

Total Net 
Sales 

$1,720,410 $3,044,593 $1,668,092 $813,874 8 50% 8 50% 

 

 

Table 4 

Fifty-eight Franchised Owned Restaurants Open More than One Year - 2019 Fiscal Year 

 Average 
Results from 

Highest 
Volume Store 

Results from 
Median 

Volume Store 

Results from 
Lowest Volume 

Store 

Number of Stores 
at or above 

Average 

Percentage of 
Stores Above 

Average 

Number of 
Stores at or 

above Median 

Percentage of 
Stores Above 

Average 

Total Net 
Sales 

$1,418,052 $2,514,402 $1,329,312 $618,392 27 45% 29 48% 
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Accounting Presentation.  The preceding summary historical financial statements are not 
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and have not been compiled, 
reviewed or audited by independent accountants.  We do not include any unusual or non-recurring items, 
footnotes, extraordinary items, statements regarding cash flow, statements regarding changes in financial 
position, or provisions for taxes that would be included in GAAP financial presentations.  There are no 
bad debt losses on catering or merchant chargebacks from credit card receivables.  No other accounting 
policies are germane to this presentation. 

Definitions and Assumptions.  The following apply to this Item 19: 

Net Sales.  Food and beverage sales (including beer and wine); less sales taxes and sales of gift 
cards and certificates.  This definition is consistent with guidance from the Uniform System of Accounts 
for Restaurants for the purpose of comparing expenses to net sales among restaurants.  We compute fees 
payable under a Franchise Agreement using Net Cash Sales, which has more deductions.  See Item 6. 

AWV.  Average weekly volumes of Net Sales. 

Cost of Goods. 

Food & Beverage.  All food & beverage used & waste incurred in the production of meals for the 
Restaurant and catering. 

Supplies.  Disposable items used in the packaging and utilization of the Restaurant’s products, 
cleaning supplies, wares replaced, uniforms and linens. 

Payroll. 

Crew.  Wages paid to team members, including training period wages. 

Managers.  Salaries and hourly wages paid to the management staff at each Restaurant. 

Taxes & Benefits.  Employer Payroll taxes, health insurance, workers compensation insurance 
and employee meals. 

Prime Costs.  Combination of “Total Cost of Goods” and “Total Labor.” 

Gross Margin.  Net Sales less Prime Costs. 

Franchise Fees.  Pro forma on-going franchise fees including a Royalty of 4% of Net Sales and a 
Marketing Fee of 0.75% of Net Sales. 

Net Margin.  Gross Margin less Franchise Fees. 

Expenses Not Shown.  The table does not include information certain costs and expenses a 
Restaurant will incur in the categories of, including but not limited to, repairs and maintenance, 
advertising, utilities and occupancy expenses, office supplies, bank charges, credit card fees, security, 
small wares replacements, depreciation and amortization, marketing fees and franchise or license royalty 
fees. 

Our financial performance representations rely on our current store locations.  These financial 
results may not be typical for Restaurants located in different markets or your area. 
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Basis of Presentation.  We consider these target demographic benchmarks and site attributes to be 
the most important criteria to our site selection: 

 Residential Population:  50,000 within 3 mile radius and 70,000 within 5 mile radius of 
location. 

 Median Household Income:  At least $60,000 within both the 3 mile radius and 5 mile 
radius. 

 Traffic Counts:  Minimum 20,000 daily (conventional site). 
 Daytime Traffic Generators:  Retail Anchors, High-end Grocery, Office Buildings, 

Hospitals, Universities, other sources of daytime population. 
 Visibility:  Maximum visibility desired for location signage and the patio. 
 Other Site Attributes:  Strip center end-caps with adjacent patio, free parking convenient 

to site, good ingress/egress from afternoon drive direction. 

Some Restaurants have earned these amounts.  Your individual results may differ.  There is 
no assurance that you will earn as much. 

Other than the above representation, we do not make any representations about a franchisee’s 
future financial performance or the past financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets.  
We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally 
or in writing.  If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual 
records of that outlet.  If you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your 
future income, you should report it to our management by contacting.  William G. Magruder at 3755 
Corporate Woods Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242, (205) 451-1860, the Federal Trade Commission, 
and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.  A written substantiation for the financial performance 
representation will be made available to the prospective franchisee upon reasonable request. 

ITEM 20 
 

OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION 

Table No. 1 
Systemwide Outlet Summary for Years 2018-2020 

Outlet Type Year Outlets at the 
Start of the Year 

Outlets at the 
End of the Year 

Net Change. 

Franchisee 2018 
2019 
2020 

63 
70 
74 

70 
74 
74 

7 
4 
0 

Company-Owned 2018 
2019 
2020 

19 
17 
17 

17 
17 
17 

-2 
0 
0 

Total  2018 
2019 
2020 

82 
87 
91 

87 
91 
91 

5 
4 
0 

 
(1) Note that we do not operate a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café, but our affiliate by common 

ownership, Taziki’s Restaurants, currently operates sixteen locations.  The “Company-Owned” outlets are 
actually affiliate-owned restaurants. 
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Table No. 2 
Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners 

(other than the Franchisor) 
For Years 2018-2020 

Column 1 
State 

Column 2 
Year 

Column 3 
Number of Transfers 

Alabama 2018 
2019 
2020 

0 
0 
2 

Florida 2018 
2019 
2020 

0 
1 
0 

 
TOTAL 

2018 
2019 
2020 

0 
1  
2 

 
Table No. 3 

Status of Franchise Outlets 
For Years 2018-2020 

Col. 1 
State 

Col. 
2 

Year 

Col. 3 
Outlets 

at 
Start 

of Year 

Col. 4 
Outlets 
Opened 

Col. 5 
Terminations 

Col. 6 
Non-

Renewals 

Col. 7 
Reacquired 

by 
Franchisor 

Col. 8 
Ceased 

Operations-
Other 

Reasons 

Col. 9 
Outlets 
at End 
of the 
Year 

Alabama 2018 
2019 
2020 

9 
10 
10 

1 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

10 
10 
10 

Arkansas 2018 
2019 
2020 

7 
7 
7 

0 
0 
1 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

7 
7 
8 

Colorado 2018 
2019 
2020 

2 
2 
2 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

2 
2 
2 

Florida 2018 
2019 
2020 

8 
9 
9 

1 
0 
0 

0 
0 
1 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

9 
9 
8 

Georgia 2018 
2019 
2020 

1 
1 
1 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

1 
1 
1 

Idaho 2018 
2019 
2020 

0 
1 
1 

1 
0 
1 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

1 
1 
2 

Indiana 2018 
2019 
2020 

0 
0 
1 

0 
1 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
1 
1 

Kentucky 2018 
2019 
2020 

4 
4 
4 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
1 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

4 
4 
3 

Louisiana 2018 
2019 

1 
1 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

1 
1 
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2020 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 
Mississippi 2018 

2019 
2020 

1 
2 
2 

1 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

2 
2 
2 

North 
Carolina 

2018 
2019 
2020 

4 
5 
5 

1 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

5 
5 
5 

Ohio 2018 
2019 
2020 

1 
2 
3 

1 
1 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

2 
3 
3 

Oklahoma 2018 
2019 
2020 

2 
3 
3 

1 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

3 
3 
3 

South 
Carolina 

2018 
2019 
2020 

4 
4 
3 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
1 
0 

4 
3 
3 

Tennessee 2018 
2019 
2020 

13 
14 
17 

1 
3 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

14 
17 
17 

Texas 2018 
2019 
2020 

2 
2 
2 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

2 
2 
2 

West 
Virginia 

2018 
2019 
2020 

4 
3 
3 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

1 
0 
0 

3 
3 
3 

 
TOTAL 

2018 
2019 
2020 

63 
70 
74 

8 
5 
2 

0 
0 
2 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

1 
1 
0 

70 
74 
74 

 
Table No. 4 

Status of Company-Owned Outlets 
For Years 2018-2020 

Col. 1 
State 

Col. 
2 

Year 

Col. 3 
Outlets 
at Start 
of the 
Year 

Col. 4 
Outlets 
Opened 

Col. 5 
Outlets 

Reacquired 
from 

Franchisee 

Col. 6 
Outlets Closed 

Col. 7 
Outlets Sold to 

Franchisee 

Col. 8 
Outlets at End 

of the Year 

 
Alabama 

2018 
2019 
2020 

9 
8 
9 

0 
1 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

1 
0 
0 

8 
9 
9 

Georgia 2018 
2019 
2020 

7 
6 
5 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

1 
1 
0 

0 
0 
0 

6 
5 
5 

Virginia 2018 
2019 
2020 

3 
3 
3 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

3 
3 
3 

TOTAL 2018 
2019 
2020 

19 
17 
17 

0 
1 
0 

0 
0 
0 

1 
1 
0 

1 
0 
0 

17 
17 
17 
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Table No. 5 
Projected Openings as of December 27, 2020 

Column 1 
State 

Column 2 
Franchise Agreements 
Signed But Outlet Not 

Opened 

Column 3 
Projected New 

Franchised Outlet in 
the Next Fiscal Year 

Column 4 
Projected New 

Company-Owned 
Outlet in the Next 

Fiscal Year 
Arkansas 0 1 0 
Indiana 0 1 0 

Louisiana 0 1 0 
North Carolina 0 1 0 

Ohio 0 1 0 
Tennessee 0 1 0 

Total 0 6 0 
 

The names, addresses, and phone numbers of all franchised outlets as of December 27, 2020, as 
well as the names and phone numbers of franchised outlets who have ceased to do business under the 
franchise agreement or had an outlet terminated, canceled, not renewed, or transferred during our last 
fiscal year are listed in Exhibit G to this Disclosure Document.  During the year preceding the date of this 
Disclosure Document, we terminated two franchise agreements.  No franchisee has failed to communicate 
with us during the 10 weeks prior to the date of this Disclosure Document. 

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you 
leave the System. 

Confidentiality Clauses 

As a standard practice, when we enter into settlement agreements with a franchisee or former 
franchisee, we will require them to agree to maintain as confidential all information that the franchisee or 
former franchisee has about us.  In some instances, current and former franchisees may sign provisions 
restricting their ability to speak openly about their experience with the System.  You may wish to speak 
with current and former franchisees, but be aware that not all of these franchisees will be able to 
communicate with you. 

Franchisor Sponsored and Independent Trademark Specific Franchisee Organizations 

We have not endorsed any trademark-specific franchisee organization, and no independent 
franchisee organization is incorporated or otherwise organized under state law and has asked us to be 
included in our Disclosure Document.  We created a five-member Franchise Advisory Council in 2017 to 
act in any advisory capacity, make recommendations and suggestions to us with respect to operational and 
marketing matters for the benefit of the Taziki’s chain.  The Council is not an independent legal entity 
and has no separate address, telephone number, email or web address.  We administer the Council’s 
functions. 

ITEM 21 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We have included our audited financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 30, 2018, and 
December 29, 2019, and December 27, 2020 as Exhibit D to this Disclosure Document.  Our fiscal year 
end is the Sunday closest to December 31. 
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ITEM 22 
 

CONTRACTS 

We have included copies of our Franchise Agreement, including forms of Termination and 
Release Agreement, Authorization Agreement for Pre-Authorized Payments, Guaranty and Restriction 
Agreement, Fresh Technology Tools and Help Desk Services Agreements, Optional Digital Advertising 
Services Participation Agreement, Management Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement, Lease 
Rider, Nontraditional Concept Addendum, SBA Addendum (available for Franchised Restaurants 
financed with SBA-guaranteed loans), Receipt of Operations Manual, Broadway Bowls Kitchen Option 
and Area Development Agreement to this Disclosure Document.  Our forms of Closing Acknowledgment 
and General Release, as well as the form of Extension and General Release are included as Exhibits H 
and I.  The Closing Acknowledgment is used for all new franchisees.  The General Release is used for all 
transfers and renewals. 

ITEM 23 
 

RECEIPT 

Duplicate copies of the receipt appear after the exhibits as the last two pages of this Disclosure 
Document. 
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Exhibit A 
Franchise Agreement 
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 
 

between 
 

Taziki’s Franchising, LLC 
 

and 
 

  
 

Restaurant Location: 
 
 
 

  
 



(i) 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. Definitions............................................................................................................................1 
2. Grant of Franchise................................................................................................................1 
3. Assigned Area ......................................................................................................................1 
4. Term .....................................................................................................................................2 
5. Fees & Security Interest .......................................................................................................3 
6. Franchised Restaurant Development ...................................................................................4 
7. Our Obligations ....................................................................................................................6 
8. Your Obligations ..................................................................................................................7 
9. Technology, Communications And Internet ........................................................................9 
10. E-Mail Communication .....................................................................................................11 
11. Covenants Not to Compete ................................................................................................12 
12. Confidential Information ...................................................................................................12 
13. Franchised System Management .......................................................................................12 
14. Reports and Records ..........................................................................................................15 
15. Inspection, Testing and Audit ............................................................................................15 
16. Local Marketing .................................................................................................................16 
17. Advertising Cooperative ....................................................................................................16 
18. Gift Cards ...........................................................................................................................16 
19. Marketing Fund ..................................................................................................................17 
20. Publicity and Promotional Materials .................................................................................17 
21. Insurance ............................................................................................................................17 
22. Assignments & Transfers ...................................................................................................19 
23. Right of First Refusal .........................................................................................................20 
24. Business Entity Franchisee ................................................................................................20 
25. Death or Appointment of Guardian or Conservator of a Principal ....................................20 
26. Temporary Disability of An Owner ...................................................................................20 
27. Securities Offerings ...........................................................................................................21 
28. Termination by You ...........................................................................................................21 
29. Termination by Us for Incurable Defaults .........................................................................21 
30. Termination by Us for Curable Defaults ...........................................................................22 
31. Termination by Us for Commercial Impracticability ........................................................22 
32. Certain Waivers .................................................................................................................22 
33. Obligations Upon Termination or Expiration ....................................................................23 
34. Our Option to Purchase ......................................................................................................23 
35. Indemnification by Franchisee ...........................................................................................24 
36. Force Majeure ....................................................................................................................25 
37. Relationship of Parties .......................................................................................................25 
38. Employment Decisions ......................................................................................................26 
39. Holidays .............................................................................................................................26 
40. Entire Agreement ...............................................................................................................26 
41. Disclaimer Limitation ........................................................................................................26 
42. Approvals and Waivers ......................................................................................................26 
43. Notice .................................................................................................................................27 
44. Cumulative Rights .............................................................................................................27 
45. Survival ..............................................................................................................................27 



(ii) 

46. Governing Law ..................................................................................................................27 
47. Venue .................................................................................................................................27 
48. Legal Fees ..........................................................................................................................27 
49. Construction .......................................................................................................................28 
50. Severability ........................................................................................................................28 
51. Counterparts .......................................................................................................................28 
52. Amendment ........................................................................................................................28 
53. Third Party Beneficiaries ...................................................................................................28 
54. Definitions..........................................................................................................................28 
55. Your Representations .........................................................................................................31 
 
 
 
Attachment A - Transaction Details 
Attachment B - Automated Clearing House Payment Authorization 
Attachment C - Guaranty and Restriction Agreement 
Attachment D - Management Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreement 
Attachment E - Lease Rider 
Attachment F - Nontraditional Concept 
Attachment G - Receipt of Operations Manual and Confidentiality Agreement 
Attachment H -  Fresh Technology Site Services Agreement 
Attachment I -  SBA Addendum 
Attachment J - Broadway Bowls Kitchen Option 
 
 



 
1 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

This Franchise Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the Effective Date, 
by and between Taziki’s Franchising, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company (“we,” “us” or “our”), 
as franchisor, and _________________________, a _________________ (“you” or “your”), as 
franchisee.  For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which the parties mutually 
acknowledge, the parties mutually agree as follows: 

1. Definitions.  Words and phrases used in initially-capitalized form in this Agreement have 
the meanings assigned in Section 54 of this Agreement unless the context indicates otherwise. 

2. Grant of Franchise.   

(a) Grant.  Subject to the terms and conditions in this Agreement, we grant to you 
the right, license and privilege to operate a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant, only at the Location, 
and the right, license and privilege to use and employ the Franchised System, the Proprietary Marks, and 
the Intellectual Property at that address during the Term.   

(b) Reservation of Rights.  We and our affiliates reserve the rights to engage or 
authorize others to engage in any business activity at any location within or outside the Assigned Area 
under the Proprietary Marks or otherwise except as expressly limited under this Agreement.  There are no 
implied covenants or obligations regarding territorial rights arising from this Agreement or any other 
agreement or arrangement between us and you.  You have no right to participate in or benefit from any 
such other business activity.  In addition, we reserve all rights of ownership, control, modification, 
revision, updating and termination with regard to the Franchised System.  Your only rights with regard to 
the Franchised System are limited to the license as we expressly grant the license to you under this 
Agreement during the Term, and the parties intend that no implied covenants or rights attach or arise 
under the license you accept in this Agreement. 

(c) Designation of Owner-Operator.  Unless you operate as a sole proprietorship, 
you will designate from among the list of Owners on Exhibit A one person who will be your “Owner-
Operator.”  In such capacity, the Owner-Operator shall devote his or her full time and attention to the 
management, supervision and operation of the Franchised Restaurant.  We may rely upon 
communications and decisions of the Owner-Operator as fully authorized by all necessary corporate 
action and legally binding on you.  You may designate another Owner to serve as Owner-Operator by 
written notice to us. 

3. Assigned Area.   

(a) We and our Affiliates will not operate a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant 
and will not license any other Person to operate a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant within the 
Assigned Area, provided that this restriction shall not apply to a Nontraditional Concept Restaurant.  You 
acknowledge and agree that we and our Affiliates will have the right to operate, franchise and license 
other Persons to operate a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant at any location outside of the Assigned 
Area, and to franchise, license or operate a Nontraditional Concept Restaurant inside or outside the 
Assigned Area.   

(b) We may, at our discretion, by written notice to you restrict your solicitation, 
acceptance and fulfillment of orders for off-premises catering or delivery to your Assigned Area, or to an 
area that does not encompass the assigned area of another Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant.   
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(c) You also acknowledge and agree that we will have the right (a) to market and sell 
the same and similar services and products as those offered under the Franchised System under 
trademarks, service marks, and commercial symbols different from the Proprietary Marks through the 
same, similar or different distribution channels; (b) to market and sell the same services and products as 
those offered as part of the Franchised System through dissimilar channels of distribution, including 
(without limitation) the Internet and retail outlets other than restaurants; and (c) to advertise, market and 
sell those services and products on the Internet and otherwise.  These rights include the offer and sale of 
food products under the Proprietary Marks in supermarkets, discount, warehouse, department and 
convenience stores, and other retail and wholesale channels, within and outside the Assigned Area.  We 
may restrict certain food and specialty items to these retail channels. 

(d) We grant to you a right of first offer to submit a franchise application to develop 
and operate a Nontraditional Concept Restaurant to be located at a venue in your Assigned Area if the 
primary operator of food service at the venue does not have exclusive rights to the venue.  To exercise 
this right, you must be in good standing under this Agreement and all other Franchise Agreements with 
us, have an average standards assessment score of at least 90% for the last three assessments of all of your 
Franchised Restaurants, and either initiate the inquiry or respond with an application within 30 days after 
we contact you about the prospect of a Nontraditional Concept facility in venue.  If you do not or you 
cannot exercise the right of first offer, then we may proceed with another party, or our Affiliates may 
proceed, to develop a Nontraditional Concept Restaurant at the venue.   

4. Term.  The “Term” consists of the Initial Term and the Renewal Terms described below. 

(a) Initial Term.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date and shall 
continue for an “Initial Term” of ten (10) years from the Opening Date, unless terminated earlier under 
this Agreement.   

(b) Renewal Terms.  You may renew the franchise for the Taziki’s Mediterranean 
Café Restaurant for up to four (4) additional “Renewal Terms” of five (5) years each, subject in each 
renewal to satisfaction of the conditions for renewal in this Section.   THERE ARE NO OTHER 
RENEWAL RIGHTS OR OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.   

(c) Renewal Notice & Eligibility.  If you intend to renew, you must give us written 
notice of your intent at least 180 days and not more than one year before the end of the Initial Term and 
each Renewal Term, if any.  Your renewal fee of $5,000.00 must accompany the renewal notice and is not 
refundable.  You will be eligible to renew if at the time you must give notice of your intent to renew and 
at all times through the end of the Term then ending, (i) you and your Affiliates are not in default under 
this Agreement or any other franchise agreement with us; (ii) you and your Affiliates have satisfied all 
monetary obligations then due and owing to us and our Affiliates; and (iii) the Franchised Restaurant is 
not in the bottom quartile of franchised Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurants for Net Cash Sales for 
the preceding fiscal year, and (iv) ) the average standards assessment score for all of your Franchised 
Restaurants on the three assessments preceding the date your renewal notice must be given is at least 
85%.  We will notify you within 30 days after we receive your renewal notice if you are not eligible to 
renew.  We may waive, in our sole discretion, any disqualifications for any Franchised Restaurant or 
franchisee to renew its franchise.  No such waiver will provide or confer any right or benefit on any 
Person except the affected franchisee.  

(d) Additional Conditions.  Our consent will be further conditioned on maintaining 
eligibility to renew through the end of each Term, and on your satisfaction of the following conditions: 
You and your Owners must, at the times we specify, (i) at our request and after any disclosure required by 
law, execute our then current form of franchise agreement and personal guaranty; (ii) perform the 
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remodeling, repairs and renovations described below that we may require; (iii) complete, at your expense, 
any retraining program we may require; and (iv) execute a general release of any and all claims you, your 
Owners and any guarantor may have against us and our Affiliates as of that time, except for such claims 
as may not be released in advance under applicable law.  At the end of the initial term (10 years from the 
Effective Date) and at the end of the second renewal term (20 years from the Effective Date) you must 
also upgrade your Franchised Restaurant to our current entry standards and design elements, upgrade to 
our current kitchen equipment package and install our current point-of-sale system and other equipment.  
At the end of fifth year of the initial term (5 years from the Effective Date), at the end of the first renewal 
term (15 years from the Effective Date) and the end of the third renewal term (25 years from the Effective 
Date), you must remodel and redecorate the dining room and customer facing areas of the Franchised 
Restaurant according to the Manuals and replace or reupholster your seating.   

5. Fees & Security Interest.   

(a) Initial Franchise Fee.  You will pay us a non-refundable franchise fee when you 
sign this Agreement in the amount specified on Attachment A.   

(b) Royalty Fee.  No later than ten (10) days after the end of each Reporting Period, 
you will pay us a royalty fee equal to 4.00% of the Net Cash Sales of the Franchised Restaurant during 
the preceding Reporting Period.   

(c) Marketing Fee.  You also will pay us, when you pay your royalty fee, a 
Marketing Fee if, as and when required under this Agreement.  You will pay the Marketing Fee to us in 
addition to the amounts you must spend under Sections 16 and 17 of this Agreement.  The rate of the 
Marketing Fee as of the Effective Date is stated on Attachment A. 

(d) Interest.  Any late payments that you make pursuant to this Agreement will bear 
interest from their due date until paid at a rate equal to the lower of (a) 1.50% per month or (b) the 
maximum interest rate allowed by applicable law.   

(e) Taxes.  You will pay us an amount equal to any federal, state, provincial or local 
sales, gross receipts, use, value added, excise or similar taxes assessed against us on the Royalty and 
Marketing Fees by the jurisdictions where your Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant is located, but 
not including any income tax, franchise or other tax levied on us for our privilege of doing business in 
your State.  You will pay Taxes to us when due. 

(f) EFT Payment.  You will pay all amounts due to us after your Taziki’s 
Mediterranean Café Restaurant opens by electronic means under the Automated Clearing House Payment 
Authorization attached as Attachment B, or under any substitute form of authorization that we may 
require during the Term so that your fees will be paid by means of electronic funds transfer without the 
necessity of your transmitting a paper check to us. 

(g) Security Agreement and Interest.  As security for the payment of the foregoing 
amounts and performance of your obligations under this Agreement, you grant to us, our successors and 
assigns a security interest in this Agreement, all signs, signage, décor items, goods, supplies, equipment, 
and inventory containing any of the Proprietary Marks located at the Franchised Restaurant.  You grant us 
the authority and power to file a copy of the signature page of this Agreement as part of any financing 
statement necessary to perfect and maintain our security interest during the Term, in any and all 
appropriate offices and public records.  We may notify your other creditors and lenders about the security 
interest and have no obligation to subordinate our interest to that of any other lender or secured creditor, 
except to the rights of any bank or other financial institution that provides first priority financing to you to 
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be used directly in the operation of the Franchised Restaurant and secured by the assets of the Franchised 
Restaurant. 

6. Franchised Restaurant Development.   

(a) Development Oversight.  Except as specified in this Agreement and the 
Operations Manual, we are not obligated to provide any assistance in locating a site, negotiating the lease, 
conforming the premises to local codes and ordinances, obtaining permits, constructing, remodeling or 
decorating, hiring and training employees (except for the training we provide described in training 
below), or providing for necessary equipment, signs, fixtures, opening inventory and supplies.   

(b) Location Selection.  If you have not selected a site for the Location that we 
accepted when we signed this Agreement and identified in Attachment A, we will provide you with 
advice and consultation in the selection of sites for Location(s) through the use of the forms, criteria and 
materials that we make available to franchisees. You must submit the site proposal within 15 days after 
the Effective Date.  We will review the information you submit for each proposed site for the Location, 
conduct any investigation of the proposed site we deem appropriate to evaluate the site, and accept or 
reject the site within 30 days after your submission of all initial and supplemental information we request 
regarding a proposed site.  If we accept the site, we will give you notice of any remaining conditions to 
that acceptance.  If we reject the site, we will give you the reasons for the rejection.  Effective upon our 
acceptance of your selected site, whether identified and accepted at the signing of this Agreement or 
afterwards, you acknowledge that you have selected and we have accepted the Location, and that our 
acceptance of your selection does not guarantee or warrant that the Location will be successful or that it 
represents the best site for the Franchised Restaurant from among those available to you.  You 
acknowledge that we may have provided you with advice and consultation in the selection of sites for 
your Franchised Restaurant through the use of the forms, criteria and materials that we make available to 
franchisees and prospective franchisees. We may have delivered our written review and evaluation of any 
proposed sites you propose.  You have had the opportunity to obtain independent advice on the site for 
your Franchised Restaurant and are not relying on our review and evaluation. 

(c) Lease.  You must own or lease the Location at all times during the Term and 
provide us with a copy of the deed or lease of the Location before commencing development of the 
Franchised Restaurant.  We must approve the form and content of any Location lease and any 
modifications or amendments thereto before you sign the lease.  We will review the lease and, if 
applicable, any modifications or amendments to the lease, and accept or reject your lease for the Location 
within 30 days after your submission of all initial and supplemental information we request regarding the 
proposed lease.  You must obtain as part of the lease documentation a signed Lease Rider with the 
landlord in substantially the form attached as Exhibit E when you provide us with a copy of the signed 
Location lease (the “Lease”).   You must deliver a signed Lease or purchase contract for an approved site 
within 30 days after the Effective Date, or the date we approve your proposed site if not accepted on the 
Effective Date.  You have the option to secure a single 30 day extension of the 30 day period by written 
notice to us that you are exercising your extension option.  The grant of any further extension of time to 
complete this phase of pre-opening is at our sole discretion. 

(d) Plans.  We will provide you with our standard renovation and finish plans, 
specifications and layouts for the interior build-out, mechanical and electrical systems, equipment, décor 
and signs for a prototype Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant that we make available to franchisees.  
We will review your site plan and final plans and specifications for conformity to System Standards.  We 
will not unreasonably withhold or delay our approval, which is intended only to test compliance with 
System Standards, and not to detect errors or omissions in the work of your architects, engineers, 
contractors or the like.  Our review does not cover technical, architectural or engineering factors, or 
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compliance with federal, state or local laws, regulations or code requirements.  We will not be liable to 
your lenders, contractors, employees, customers, others or you on account of our review or approval of 
your plans, drawings or specifications, or our inspection of the Franchised Restaurant before, during or 
after renovation or construction.   

(e) Construction of Franchised Restaurant.  You will complete the construction or 
remodeling of the Franchised Restaurant within the time specified on Attachment A.  You will construct 
or remodel the Franchised Restaurant in strict conformity with the site layout, plans and specifications we 
approve.  If we determine (before the Opening Date) that you have not constructed or remodeled the 
Franchised Restaurant in strict conformity with the site layout, plans and specifications we approved, 
within the time set forth on Attachment A, we may terminate this Agreement for cause, or obtain an 
injunction from a court of competent jurisdiction against the opening of the Franchised Restaurant and to 
compel you to specifically perform your obligation to construct or remodel the Franchised Restaurant in 
strict conformity with the approved site layout, plans and specifications, in addition to any other remedies 
available to us at law or in equity, without any obligation to furnish any bond or security.  You will bear 
the expense of all engineering and architectural services incurred for your final construction plans and for 
obtaining approvals by the appropriate governmental authorities required under applicable law to 
construct, remodel and occupy the Franchised Restaurant. 

(f) Furnishings, Fixtures, Equipment, and Other Personalty.  You will install in and 
about the Franchised Restaurant equipment, fixtures, furnishings and other personal property that strictly 
conform to System Standards, and specifications we specify in the Operations Manual or otherwise.  You 
will not display any other sign or advertising at the Franchised Restaurant without our consent other than 
as permitted under the Operations Manual. 

(g) Technical Services.  You may engage any architect, construction manager or 
contractor to assist you in developing the Franchised Restaurant as long as the party you engage is duly 
licensed in the state of the Location.  You shall secure for us and our agents the right to inspect the 
construction site and related materials stored off site at any reasonable time.  You shall correct, upon our 
request and at your expense, any deviation from the approved site plans and specifications.  You shall 
furnish to us a copy of the certificate of occupancy and a certificate from your architect (which may use 
AIA form G704-2000 or its equivalent) that the Franchised Restaurant was built in accordance with the 
approved final plans and specifications, and in compliance with all applicable building codes and in 
compliance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, ordinances and regulations, including but not 
limited to the Americans with Disabilities Act and related regulations.   

(h) Opening.  The Franchised Restaurant shall be opened to the public at the 
Location on the Opening Date only after you receive our authorization to do so, which you must request 
in writing on or after the date you receive the certificate of occupancy and at least 7 days in advance of 
the desired date for such opening.  In addition to and not in lieu of your other advertising obligations, you 
will conduct local advertising and promotion for the Franchised Restaurant’s grand opening (the “Grand 
Opening Advertising Program”) that we specify in the Operations Manuals or otherwise in writing.  You 
will not open the Franchised Restaurant without our prior written authorization.  We will have the right to 
withhold that authorization until (i) you complete (to our satisfaction) the construction or remodeling of 
the Franchised Restaurant and furnish copies of all governmental approvals required before opening 
under applicable law, (ii) you complete preparation of the Franchised Restaurant for the commencement 
of operations per the Operations Manual, and (iii) your management personnel and store personnel to be 
employed on the Opening Date complete the MIT program as required this Agreement.  You will notify 
us when you open for business.  We will confirm the Opening Date in writing for the purpose of fixing 
the expiration date of the Initial Term. 
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7. Our Obligations.  During the Term, we will provide you with the following services: 

(a) Training.  

1. We will provide you (or if you are an entity, your Owner-Operator) and 
your general manager with eight weeks of our Manager in Training (“MIT”) program, covering 
the Franchised System and methods of operating a Franchised Restaurant.  This training and 
information will include a standard chart of accounts for use in the daily and periodic accounting 
of the Franchised Restaurant.  We will provide training for no additional tuition fee to your 
Owners who are not your Owner-Operator if this is their first Taziki’s Mediterranean Café 
Restaurant franchise at the times and places and for the duration we may designate.  The initial 
MIT eight week program is mandatory for the Owner-Operator and the proposed General 
Manager and is to be completed at a minimum of four weeks prior to the Franchised Restaurant 
Opening Date.  If your Owner-Operator is also the General Manager, then one Assistant General 
Manager must also complete the eight week program.  Upon the final week of the MIT program, 
our Training Director or our designee will conduct a thorough evaluation of the trainees as 
outlined in the MIT manual. Each manager trainee must score 90% or better on the evaluation to 
be “certified.”  We may modify an Opening Date you propose based upon the projected date of 
successful completion of the MIT program by the General Manager and/or the Owner-Operator.  
We may provide or arrange for the MIT program and Intensive training at any Certified Training 
Store.    

2. In addition to the certified General Manager for a new Restaurant 
opening, you must identify and hire two Assistant General Managers and we highly recommend 
that you hire two Shift Leaders.  There is no tuition charge for the two Assistant General 
Managers and the two Shift Leaders for their initial training.  We require that your two Assistant 
General Managers each complete four weeks (200 Hours) of training.  If your Owner-Operator is 
also the General Manager, then one of the Assistant General Managers must also complete the 
eight week (400 hours) MIT program.  We recommend that the two Shift Leaders complete the 
optional two weeks (100 Hours) of Shift Leader training.  This training will take place at a 
Certified Training Store.     

3. We require that you must always have a certified manager in Franchised 
Restaurant and/or be in the process of hiring and having a manager certified by attending and 
passing the MIT program (See Section 8(a)). We will provide training at the times and places and 
for the duration we may designate for replacement managers.  You must pay the tuition for 
training in advance, and we will not refund the tuition if the replacement manager does not attend 
the training session.   

4. We may charge you reasonable tuition and reimbursement that reflects 
our costs for training for replacement managers and our expenses if we provide additional 
training.  The Operations Manual specifies the tuition charges we may impose and the 
circumstances when you will incur a tuition charge. Tuition is currently payable for additional 
training performed at your request in your Franchised Restaurant, or for an Additional Training 
Fee plus expenses as described in Section 8(a).  We reserve the right to charge for training 
material.      

(b) Operations Manual.  We will loan you one copy of the Operations Manual, or 
may grant access rights on our secure website for franchisees. 
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(c) Approved Products, Services and Suppliers.  We will publish a list of approved 
suppliers and their respective approved products and services in the Operations Manual and/or in other 
written or electronic communications to you.  As new suppliers, products and services become available, 
we will amend that list.  We may also publish in the Operations Manual the procedures and fees for 
obtaining approval of any supplier you wish to nominate to become an approved supplier.  We may deny 
approval of any nominee in our sole discretion.  We or our Affiliate may be the sole approved suppliers 
for proprietary goods or services, or for goods and services we deem to be integral parts of the Franchised 
System that must be supplied on a consistent, uniform basis to all franchisees.  We or our Affiliates may 
earn a profit from providing purchasing and procurement services, including receipt of fees from third party 
suppliers. 

(d) Opening Assistance.  We will provide you with the services of one or more 
trainers to assist you with the opening of the Franchised Restaurant at no fee to you.  For the first and 
second Franchised Restaurants in your Training Group (defined in Section 54), we will provide twelve 
days of opening assistance (seven (7) days before, opening day, and four (4) days after opening).  
Beginning with the third Franchised Restaurant in your Training Group and for each additional 
Franchised Restaurant in the Training Group, we will provide seven (7) days of opening assistance (three 
days (3) before, opening day, and three (3) days after opening.)  You must reimburse us for reasonable 
travel and living expenses of the trainers while performing this service.  Subject to availability, we will 
provide the trainer services for additional days to continue to assist you with the opening of the 
Franchised Restaurant charged at the Additional Training Fee described in Section 8(a) then in effect. 

(e) Marketing Assistance.  We will provide you with the merchandising, marketing 
and advertising research data and advice that we develop from time to time and deem helpful in the 
operation of a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant using the Franchised System. 

(f) Evaluation Program.  We will conduct periodic field evaluations and standards 
assessment inspections and reviews of the Franchised Restaurant to test and promote its compliance with 
System Standards and quality control.  We may implement customer evaluation and feedback programs, 
mystery shopper programs, and independent inspection programs.  We may publish the results of our tests 
and evaluations. 

(g) Advice & Communications.  We will provide you with periodic individual or 
group advice, consultation and assistance by personal visit, by telephone, electronic communication, or by 
newsletters or bulletins that we may make available to our franchisees from time to time.  We will 
provide you with any other materials in any medium that we may develop to communicate new 
developments, techniques, and improvements in the Franchised System and our plans, policies, research, 
developments and activities to franchisees. 

(h) Other Assistance.  We will provide you with the other resources and assistance 
that we may develop and make generally available to all of our other franchisees. 

8. Your Obligations.  During the Term, your obligations are as follows: 

(a) Training.  You will not open or operate the Franchised Restaurant without having 
at least one individual working full time at the Franchised Restaurant who has completed our MIT 
program.  If a certified manager leaves your employment for any reason, you must hire a replacement 
manager within 30 days who must attend the next MIT program slot we make available.  You may 
continue operating the Franchised Restaurant until a replacement manager has completed the MIT 
program without being in default of this agreement.  You must pay any tuition and additional fees for 
materials we then charge for training of additional operators after pre-opening training.  As of the 
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Effective Date, we charge an Additional Training Fee of $35.00 per hour plus travel, lodging and meals 
for trainers we provide at your request for additional training at your Franchised Restaurant.  We may 
change this rate at any time in the Manuals.   You are responsible to pay all compensation, benefits, travel 
expenses, living expenses, and any other personal expenses for your designees enrolled in the MIT 
program.  You must furnish proof of worker’s compensation insurance coverage for such persons before 
their training begins.  Your trainees will not be considered borrowed servants of ours or our Affiliates for 
any purpose, and they will at all times remain under your control and supervision.  Any of your 
employees who attend our operators training must sign a Management Confidentiality and Non-
Competition Agreement before such training starts in substantially the form attached as Attachment D. 

(b) Operation of Franchised Restaurant.  You will maintain and operate the 
Franchised Restaurant under the Franchised System in strict conformity with System Standards and 
policies, all as amended.  You will maintain the Location and the Franchised Restaurant in clean, safe and 
sanitary condition, consistent with sound health and sanitation practices.  You also will maintain and 
operate the Franchised Restaurant in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, rules, regulations 
and ordinances. Any conflict between System Standards and any applicable governmental requirement 
will be resolved in favor of the more stringent standard.  You will use the site of the Franchised 
Restaurant exclusively for the purpose of operating a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant.  You will 
not engage in any business or offer any products or services at the Franchised Restaurant not a part of the 
Franchised System  without our consent.  You will obtain as and when needed all governmental permits, 
licenses and consents required by law to construct, acquire, renovate, operate and maintain the Franchised 
Restaurant and to offer all products and services you advertise or promote.  You will pay when due or 
properly contest all federal, state and local payroll, withholding, unemployment, beverage, permit, license, 
property, ad valorem and other taxes, assessments, fees, charges, penalties and interest, and will file when due 
all governmental returns, notices and other filings.  You will comply with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws, regulations and orders applicable to you and/or the Franchised Restaurant, including those 
combating terrorism such as the USA Patriot Act and Executive Order 13224. 

(c) Approved Products, Services and Suppliers.  You will follow the System 
Standards and specifications we establish for goods, products and services procured for the operation of 
the Franchised Restaurant.  We will have the right to require you to obtain any product or service used in 
the operation of the Franchised Restaurant from us, our Affiliates, or suppliers we approve.  We will have 
the right to require you to participate in a national or regional approved purchasing cooperative for the 
area in which the Franchised Restaurant operates. 

(d) Telephone Listings, Domain Names, and Web Pages.  You will establish and 
maintain a published telephone listing for the Franchised Restaurant in all telephone books that we 
designate.  You will not register, acquire or maintain control over any domain name or web page that 
describes or advertises the Franchised Restaurant or otherwise contains uses or displays our Proprietary 
Marks or Intellectual Property, or links to our websites, without our prior consent. 

(e) Franchised Restaurant Condition.  If the Franchised Restaurant suffers physical 
damage, you will restore the Franchised Restaurant to reflect the then current image, design and 
specifications of a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant.  If a casualty substantially destroys the 
Franchised Restaurant, you may elect to terminate this Agreement in lieu of restoring the Franchised 
Restaurant unless your financing obligates you to restore and operate the Franchised Restaurant. 

(f) Upgrades of Franchised Restaurant.  We may require you to upgrade your 
Franchised Restaurant to conform to changes in our System Standards, which may include new signage, 
image, décor, equipment, technology and image standards for new Taziki’s Mediterranean Café 
Restaurants.  We will not require any such upgrade within 2 years before the expiration date of the initial 



 
9 

term or any renewal term.  At the end of the initial term (10 years from the Effective Date) and at the end 
of the second renewal term (20 years from the Effective Date) you must also upgrade your restaurant to 
our current entry standards and design elements, complete any retraining we require, upgrade to our 
current kitchen equipment package and install our current point-of-sale system and other equipment.  At 
the end of the fifth year of the initial term (5 years from the Effective Date), the end of the first renewal 
term (15 years from the Effective Date), and at the end of the third renewal term (25 years from the 
Effective Date), you must remodel, redecorate and replace or reupholster your seating.  We may 
encourage you at any time to make a voluntary upgrade because of economic circumstances, competition, 
technological advances, brand imaging opportunities, or other compelling events or circumstances.  Your 
voluntary agreement to perform an upgrade in those cases will not constitute a required upgrade under 
this paragraph.     

(g) Your Employees.  You must recruit, hire, train, schedule, equip, dress, discipline, 
manage and supervise a competent, conscientious staff to meet our System Standards, compliant with 
such uniforms and/or dress code as we may prescribe in the Operations Manual, and take such steps as are 
necessary to ensure that your employees preserve good customer relations and the goodwill of the 
Franchised System.   

(h) Life Safety.  You must operate and maintain the Franchised Restaurant to meet 
the health and life safety standards and ratings applicable to the operation.  You must furnish to us, within 
five days after receipt thereof, a copy of all inspection reports, warnings, citations, certificates and/or 
ratings resulting from inspections conducted by any federal, state or municipal agency with jurisdiction 
over the Franchised Restaurant.  The Franchised Restaurant’s failure of any health, sanitation, food-
related or life safety inspection is a material breach of this Agreement and must be remedied within the 
time frame specified in the applicable regulations or code. 

(i) Material Contracts.  You must timely comply with your obligations under the 
Lease and any note, indebtedness, mortgage, deed of trust, security deed, equipment lease, supply 
agreement, utility contract, service agreement and other material contracts (“Material Contracts”) 
applicable to you or the Franchised Restaurant and necessary to operate the Franchised Restaurant in 
compliance with System Standards.  You shall furnish to us, within 10 days after your receipt, a copy of 
all notices, letters, warnings, or any other communications from the counterparty of any Material Contract 
regarding any default under or termination of any Material Contract.  You must furnish a copy of any 
amendment, modification, replacement or supplement to the Lease. 

9. Technology, Communications And Internet.   

(a) Computer Systems and Required Software.  We have the right to specify in the 
Operations Manual or otherwise in writing that you acquire and use in the operation of the Franchised 
Restaurant electronic data collection, storage, reporting, exchange and  interchange capability and 
services, including certain brands, types, makes and models of communications, hardware and software 
systems, peripherals and equipment, including without limitation: (i) back office accounting, inventory 
and management systems, (ii) storage, retrieval and transmission systems for data, audio, video and voice 
files, (iii) point of sale systems or such other types of cash registers as we may designate or approve 
(“Cash Register Systems”), (iv) physical, electronic and other security systems and procedures, (v) 
archival back-up systems, (vi) internet access capability and connectivity, and (vii) customer-facing 
marketing, ordering, entertainment, audio, video, internet access points and service systems (together, the 
“Technology”).  We have the right, but not the obligation, to develop or have developed for us, or to 
designate computer software programs and accounting system software that you must use as part of the 
Technology (“Required Software”).  You shall install, learn, use and integrate all updates, supplements, 
modifications or enhancements to the Required Software when we so require.  We may specify in the 
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Operations Manual or otherwise the tangible media upon which you shall record data, the database file 
structure of the Technology and the requirements to ensure your compliance with legal and payment card 
industry security standards.  You shall implement and periodically make upgrades and other changes to 
the Technology as we request in writing (together, “Technology Upgrades”) for all Franchised System 
Restaurants.  We may be the sole supplier of proprietary Technology or Technology Upgrades that we 
develop or acquire for use at all Franchised Restaurants 

(b) Data.  We may specify in the Operations Manual or otherwise in writing the 
information that you shall collect and maintain on the Technology.  You will maintain your Cash Register 
and management systems on-line so that we may access them remotely at our discretion, copy stored data, 
update software, and view all records, files and reports available on or from those systems.  You shall 
provide to us such reports as we may reasonably request from the data so collected and maintained.  All 
data you provide to us, transfer to us from your Technology and download from us to your Technology 
will be owned exclusively by us or the data source we identify.  We will have the right to use such data in 
any manner that we deem appropriate without compensation to you.  All other data you capture, create or 
collect in the operation of the Franchised Restaurant or from your affiliation with us (including, without 
limitation, consumer and transaction data), is and will be owned exclusively by us during the Term of, 
and following termination or expiration of, this Agreement.  You must provide to us in the format we 
require copies or original files of such data at our request.  We license the use of such data back to you, at 
no additional cost, solely for the Term and solely for your lawful use in the business franchised under this 
Agreement or in any other business that you own.  You may not lease, sell or rent such data to others. 

(c) Customer Facing Technology.  We may mandate that you offer free wireless 
internet access or other accepted means of communication for customers of the Franchised Restaurant.  
We may also mandate customer facing technology to accept and process food and beverage orders, 
payments, entertainment options and other means of providing service and an attractive environment to 
customers. 

(d) Privacy & Security.  You shall abide by all applicable laws and payment card 
industry standards pertaining to the privacy and security of consumer, employee and transactional 
information (“Privacy Laws”).   You shall comply with our System Standards and policies pertaining to 
Privacy Laws.  If there is a conflict between our Standards and policies pertaining to Privacy Laws and 
applicable law, you shall: (a) comply with the requirements of applicable law; (b) immediately give us 
written notice of said conflict; and (c) promptly and fully cooperate with us and our counsel to determine 
the most effective way, if any, to meet our System Standards and policies pertaining to Privacy Laws 
within the bounds of applicable law.  You shall not publish, disseminate, implement, revise or rescind a 
data privacy policy without our prior written consent.  You shall encrypt personally identifiable 
information about customers and employees as required by Privacy Laws or the Operations Manual and 
follow all notification requirements, with a copy of all of your outbound notices to us, if any data breach, 
hack or unauthorized access event occurs. 

(e) Extranet.  We may, but are not required to, establish a dedicated website with 
secure access for communication with and among franchisees and to offer information content relevant to 
operation of the Franchised Restaurant (the “Extranet”).  If we establish an Extranet, then you shall 
comply with our requirements set forth in the Manuals or otherwise in writing for connecting to the 
Extranet and utilizing the Extranet in the operation of the Franchised Restaurant.  The Extranet may 
include, without limitation, and if so, will satisfy our obligations under this Agreement to provide to you, 
the Manuals, training and other assistance materials, and management reporting solutions (both upstream 
and downstream, as we may direct).  

(f) Websites.  Unless we otherwise approve in writing, you shall not establish a 
separate Website (the term “Website” is defined to mean a group of related documents that can be 
accessed through a common internet address), but shall only have one or more references or webpage(s), 
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as we designate and approve in advance, within our Website.  However, you may request to establish a 
separate Website and shall submit to us with your request, for our prior written approval, a sample of the 
proposed Website domain name, format, visible content (including, without limitation, proposed screen 
shots) and non-visible content (including, without limitation, meta tags) in the form and manner we may 
reasonably require.  You may activate the Website only if we so approve in advance in writing (which we 
are not obligated to approve and which approval we have the right to revoke at any time), in which case 
then the following conditions shall apply: 

1. Any Website owned or maintained by or for your benefit shall be 
deemed “advertising” under this Agreement, and will be subject to (among other things) our 
approval of content and appearance under Section 16. 

2. You may not add inbound or outbound hyperlinks to or from, or modify 
the Website without our prior written approval as to such proposed hyperlinks or modification. 

3. You shall comply with System Standards for Websites that we may 
prescribe in the Operations Manual or otherwise in writing. 

4. You will establish such hyperlinks to our Website and others as we may 
request in writing. 

5. You will not permit the entry, acceptance or confirmation of delivery or 
catering orders on the Website that would violate Section 3. 

(g) Online Use of Marks and E-mail Solicitations.  You shall not use the Proprietary 
Marks or any abbreviation or other name associated with the Franchised System or us as part of any e-
mail address, domain name and/or other identification of you or your Owners in any electronic medium.  
You will not transmit or cause any other party to transmit on your behalf advertisements or solicitations 
by e-mail or other electronic media without first obtaining our written consent as to:  (a) the content of 
such e-mail advertisements or solicitations and (b) your plan for transmitting such advertisements.  You 
shall be solely responsible for compliance with any laws pertaining to sending e-mails including but not 
limited to the Controlling the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2003 (known 
as the “CAN-SPAM Act of 2003”).  Under no circumstances shall you send any e-mail to a person or 
address outside the United States. 

(h) No Outsourcing without Prior Written Approval. You shall not hire third party or 
outside vendors other than our Affiliates to perform any services or obligations related to the Technology, 
Required Software, or any other of your obligations under this Section, without our prior written 
approval.  We may condition our consideration of any proposed outsourcing vendor(s) upon, among other 
things, such third party or outside vendor’s entry into a confidentiality agreement with us and you in a 
form we provide.   

(i) Changes to Technology.  The parties acknowledge that technology used in the 
restaurant business is dynamic and not subject to predictable patterns of development and change.  To 
keep pace with technological needs and opportunities and to support the competitiveness of the 
Franchised System, you acknowledge that we shall have the right to establish, in writing, new and revised 
System Standards for the implementation of technology as part of the System.  You shall abide by those 
new or revised System Standards as implemented on a System-wide basis. 

10. E-Mail Communication.  You acknowledge that we are entitled to rely upon e-mail to 
communicate with you as part of the economic bargain underlying this Agreement.  To facilitate the use 
of e-mail to exchange information between you and us, you will maintain e-mail capabilities as specified 
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in the Operations Manual.  You authorize the transmission of e-mail from and to us, vendors and our 
affiliates on matters pertaining to the business contemplated under this Agreement.  You will provide us 
with the current e-mail address, and shall immediately notify us of any change of e-mail address and any 
technical problems with the e-mail account of you and your Owners that would make communications 
delayed or impossible.  If any such e-mail account becomes disabled for any reason, you shall 
immediately provide us with an alternative e-mail address.  You will cause your officers, directors, 
members and employees (as a condition of their association or position with you) to give their consent (in 
an e-mail, electronically, or in a pen-and-paper writing, as we may reasonably require) to transmission of 
our e-mails to them, and such persons shall not opt-out, or otherwise ask to no longer receive e-mails 
from us during the time that such person works for or is affiliated with you.  You acknowledge that if you 
opt-out, or otherwise ask to no longer receive e-mails from us during the Term you will be in material 
breach of this Agreement. 

11. Covenants Not to Compete.  During the Term, you may not engage, either directly or 
indirectly through any financial or beneficial interest in any other Person, in any Competing Business, 
other than a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant licensed by us.  For a period of two years after the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason, you may not engage in any Competing 
Business, other than a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant licensed by us, within your Assigned Area 
and within the Applicable Radius from any existing Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant, as then 
listed on our website or any directory we provide to you.  We may reduce the duration and/or geographic 
scope of this provision by written notice to you for applicable law.  You will not employ or seek to 
employ any individual who, at the time, currently works or worked during the preceding three months for 
any of our other licensees or franchisees or for us, except with the consent of the affected licensee or 
franchisee or with our consent (as applicable).  We will not employ or seek to employ any individual who, 
at the time, currently works or worked during the past three months for you, except with your consent. 

12. Confidential Information.  You acknowledge you have no interest whatsoever in the 
Franchised System except the license in this Agreement.  You acknowledge that the Franchised System 
constitutes our proprietary information including some Confidential Information and that the use or 
duplication of the Franchised System other than as permitted under this Agreement will constitute an 
unfair method of competition.  You will not use the Franchised System in any business or any capacity 
for the benefit of any Person except as permitted under this Agreement or another written agreement with 
us. You will take all appropriate actions to preserve the confidentiality of all Confidential Information.  
Access to Confidential Information should be limited to persons who need the Confidential Information to 
perform their jobs and are subject to your general policy on maintaining confidentiality as a condition of 
employment or who have first signed a confidentiality agreement.  You will not permit copying of 
Confidential Information (including, as to computer software, any translation, decompiling, decoding, 
modification or other alteration of the source code of such software).  You will use Confidential Information 
only for the Facility and to perform under this Agreement.  Upon termination (or earlier, as we may request), 
you shall return to us all originals and copies of the System Standards Manual, policy statements and 
Confidential Information “fixed in any tangible medium of expression,” within the meaning of the U.S. 
Copyright Act, as amended.  Your obligations under this subsection commence when you sign this 
Agreement and continue for trade secrets (including computer software we license to you) as long as they 
remain secret and for other Confidential Information, for as long as we continue to use the information in 
confidence, even if edited or revised, plus three years.  We will respond promptly and in good faith to your 
inquiry about continued protection of any Confidential Information. 

13. Franchised System Management.   

(a) Ownership.  We represent with respect to the Proprietary Marks that we, or one 
of our affiliates, is the owner of all rights, title and interests in and to the Proprietary Marks.  We and our 
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affiliates have taken and will take all steps reasonably necessary to preserve and protect the ownership 
and validity in and of the Proprietary Marks. 

(b) Display of Marks.  Your use and display of the Proprietary Marks will be subject 
to the following: (i) You shall use only the Proprietary Marks we designate, and use such Proprietary 
Marks only in the manner we authorize and permit; (ii) you shall use the Proprietary Marks only for the 
operation of the Franchised Restaurant and only at the Location authorized under this Agreement, or in 
advertising for the Franchised Restaurant; (iii) unless we otherwise authorize or require, you shall operate 
and advertise the Restaurant only under the name “Taziki’s Mediterranean Cafe,” without prefix or suffix; 
(iv) during the Term, you shall identify yourself (in a manner reasonably acceptable to us) as the owner of 
the Franchised Restaurant when you make any use of the Proprietary Marks, including, but not limited to, 
uses on invoices, order forms, receipts and contracts, as well as the display of a notice in such content and 
form and at such conspicuous locations on the premises of the Franchised Restaurant as we may designate 
in writing; (v) your right to use the Proprietary Marks is limited to such uses as are authorized under this 
Agreement and the Operations Manual, and any unauthorized use thereof shall constitute an infringement 
of the rights of the owner of the Proprietary Marks; and (vi) you shall execute any documents deemed 
necessary by us or our counsel to obtain protection for the Proprietary Marks or to maintain their 
continued validity and enforceability. 

(c) Prohibitions.  You are prohibited from using the Proprietary Marks, including 
“Taziki’s Mediterranean Cafe” to: (i) incur any obligation or indebtedness on behalf of yourself or us; and 
(ii) be all or part of your entity name or other legal name, or as part of any e-mail or other electronic 
media address, domain name, URL, social media identifier, user name or other identification of you or 
your Owners in any electronic medium, or as a metatag, paid search term, or in any search engine 
optimization program, except as we expressly authorize in writing, in the Operations Manual or in any 
policy regarding Internet activity.    

(d) Internet Use.  We reserve the right to establish, modify and terminate policies 
and procedures about Internet marketing, publicity, social media, blogging and other activity as part of 
System Standards included in the Operations Manual.  You shall not register, purchase or obtain the right 
to control the content offered under any domain name or website that includes any Proprietary Mark 
except with the prior written consent of or as part of the marketing program controlled or approved by us. 

(e) Infringements.  You shall promptly notify us of any suspected infringement of 
the Proprietary Marks, any known challenge to the validity of the Proprietary Marks, or any known 
challenge to our ownership of, or your right to use, the Proprietary Marks we license to you.  You 
acknowledge that we shall have the sole right to direct and control any civil, administrative or other 
proceeding involving the Proprietary Marks, including any settlement.  We shall also have the sole right, 
but not the obligation, to take action against uses by others that may constitute infringement of the 
Proprietary Marks.  If we undertake the defense or prosecution of any litigation relating to the Proprietary 
Marks, you shall execute any and all documents and do such acts and things as may, in the opinion of our 
counsel, be necessary to carry out such defense or prosecution, including, without limitation, becoming a 
nominal party to any legal action.   

(f) Our Defense of You.  If you use the Proprietary Marks in compliance with this 
Agreement, we will defend you at our expense against any third party claim, suit or demand involving the 
Proprietary Marks arising out of your proper use thereof.  We will reimburse you for your out-of-pocket 
costs in doing what we request under this Section, excluding the compensation costs of your employees, 
and we will pay the costs of any judgment or settlement.  If such litigation is the result of your use of the 
Proprietary Marks in a manner not in compliance with this Agreement, you shall reimburse us for the 
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costs of such litigation, including, without limitation, our attorney’s fees and the cost of any judgment or 
settlement.   

(g) Reservation of Rights.  You expressly understand and acknowledge that:  (i) we 
and our affiliates are the owners of all rights, title and interests in and to the Proprietary Marks and the 
goodwill associated with and symbolized by them; (ii) the Proprietary Marks are valid and serve to 
identify the Franchised System and those who are authorized to operate under the Franchised System; (iii) 
neither you nor any of your Owners shall directly or indirectly contest the validity or the ownership of the 
Proprietary Marks, nor shall you, directly or indirectly, seek to register the Proprietary Marks with any 
government agency, except with our express prior written consent; (iv) your use of the Proprietary Marks 
does not give you any ownership interest or other interest in or to the Proprietary Marks, except the 
license granted by this Agreement; (v) any and all goodwill arising from your use of the Proprietary 
Marks shall inure solely and exclusively to our benefit, and upon expiration or termination of this 
Agreement and the license granted under this Agreement, no monetary amount shall be assigned as 
attributable to any goodwill associated with your use of the System or the Proprietary Marks; and (vi) the 
right and license of the Proprietary Marks granted to you is not exclusive, and we have and retain the 
rights, among others: 

1. To use the Proprietary Marks ourselves to offer and sell products and 
services; 

2. To grant other licenses for the Proprietary Marks, in addition to those 
licenses already granted to existing franchisees; and 

3. To develop and establish, or to become affiliated with, other systems 
using the same or similar Proprietary Marks, or any other proprietary marks, and to grant licenses 
or franchises thereto without providing any rights therein to you. 

(h) Substitute Marks.  We reserve the right to substitute different Proprietary Marks 
for use in identifying the Franchised System and the restaurant businesses operating thereunder if our 
currently owned Proprietary Marks no longer can be used, or if we determine that substitution of different 
Proprietary Marks will be beneficial to the Franchised System. 

(i) Control of Franchised System.  We will control and establish requirements for all 
aspects of the System.  We may, in our discretion, change, delete from or add to the Franchised System, 
including any of the Proprietary Marks or Standards, in response to changing market conditions.  We 
may, in our discretion, permit deviations from System Standards, based on local conditions and our 
assessment of the circumstances.  

(j) Improvements.  All present and future distinguishing characteristics, 
improvements and additions to or associated with the Franchised System by us, you or others, including, 
without limitation, all new and improved recipes and preparation instructions for menu items, ingredients, 
new menu items and the like, and all present and future service marks, trademarks, copyrights, and 
service mark and trademark registrations used and to be used as part of the Franchised System, and the 
associated goodwill, shall be our property and will inure to our benefit.  You acknowledge that Standards 
include non-functional trade dress that is an integral part of the System, and you covenant that you will 
not, directly or indirectly through an affiliate, use the trade dress in any structure that is not the Franchised 
Restaurant.  You also acknowledge that such Intellectual Property includes any recipes, ideas, inventions, 
concepts, instructions, techniques of cooking, preparation, display or service, or other know-how 
developed, marketed, or licensed as part of the Franchised System, whether created by us, an Affiliate, a 
predecessor, licensor or by you with our approval as outlined in the Operations Manual.  You grant to us a 
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non-exclusive, perpetual, royalty-free worldwide license of all recipes, concepts, instructions, ideas, 
inventions, techniques of cooking, preparation, display or service, or other know-how, advertising 
materials and trade secrets created by or for you for use in, by or for the Franchised Restaurant, and you 
acknowledge that we and our Affiliates may incorporate, modify, supplement, sublicense or otherwise 
commercialize such information as part of the Franchised System or in any other manner.  At our request 
and expense, we may require you to execute and deliver an assignment of the ownership rights to any 
such Intellectual Property or such other writing as we may request to transfer ownership to us, or pursue 
registration or other legal protection for such Intellectual Property. 

(k) Operations Manual.  During the Term, we will provide you with access to the 
Operations Manual, one copy of which you acknowledge having received on loan from us, in a format we 
choose (including, without limitation, paper, CD/DVD or online).  We may from time to time revise the 
contents of the Operations Manual, and you will follow our instructions to make corresponding revisions 
to all of your copies of the Operations Manual and to comply with each change in any System Standard.  
If there is any dispute as to the contents of the Operations Manual, the master copy of the Operations 
Manual we maintain in our home office shall be controlling.   

(l) Manual Controls.  The Operations Manual shall at all times remain our sole 
property regardless of format and shall at all times be kept, and the access codes and procedures for 
electronic versions shall be kept, in a secure place on the Franchised Restaurant premises.  You shall at all 
times treat the Operations Manual, any other written material created for or approved for use in the 
operation of the Franchised Restaurant and the information contained therein as confidential and shall use 
all reasonable efforts to maintain such information as proprietary and confidential.  Except for those 
portions of the Operations Manual that we designate in writing as appropriate for copying and use at the 
Franchised Restaurant, you shall not at any time copy, duplicate, record or otherwise reproduce the 
foregoing materials, in whole or in part, nor otherwise make the same available to any unauthorized 
person.  

14. Reports and Records.  On Tuesday of each week, you will deliver to us a statement of the 
Net Cash Sales of the Franchised Restaurant for the preceding week of the Reporting Period.  Within 20 
days after the end of each Reporting Period, you will deliver to us a complete profit and loss statement for 
the Franchised Restaurant in a form prescribed by us (and any other statistical reports which we may 
require under the Operations Manual) for the Reporting Period upon written request.  You also will send 
us a copy of all sales tax returns filed for the Franchised Restaurant as and when filed with each 
appropriate taxing authority.  Within 90 days after the end of each fiscal year, you will deliver to us a 
complete profit and loss statement covering the operations of the Franchised Restaurant for the preceding 
fiscal year and a balance sheet dated as of the close of that fiscal year.  You will keep all records of the 
Franchised Restaurant for at least seven years after the end of the fiscal year in which they are created in a 
manner and form satisfactory to us and will deliver any additional financial, operating and other 
information and reports which we may request on the forms and in the manner we prescribe in the 
Operations Manual.  We will have the right to assemble and disseminate to third parties financial and 
other information regarding you and other franchisees to the extent required by law or to the extent 
necessary or appropriate to further the interests of the Franchised System as a whole.  We will have the 
right to disclose your business name, address and telephone number as they appear in our records in our 
franchise disclosure documents and to any Person making inquiry as to the ownership of the Franchised 
Restaurant.  We will not disclose specific financial information regarding you or the Franchised 
Restaurant to any Person without (a) your consent or (b) compulsion of law. 

15. Inspection, Testing and Audit.  We will have the right to inspect your Franchised 
Restaurant at any time during or immediately before or after regular business hours during the Term, with 
or without notice to you as part of our evaluation and quality assurance programs.  You will also permit 
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us or our agents, at any reasonable time, to remove samples of food or non-food items from your 
inventory, or from the Franchised Restaurant, without payment for such items, in amounts reasonably 
necessary for testing by us or an independent laboratory to determine whether said samples meet our then 
current Standards and specifications.  In addition to any other remedies we may have under this 
Agreement, we may require you to bear the cost of such testing if the supplier of the item has not 
previously been approved by us or if the sample fails to conform to our specifications.  We also will have 
the right to audit your accounts, books of original entry, records and tax returns (including, without 
limitation, state and local sales tax reports and federal, state and local income tax returns) at all times 
during and after the Term.  You will make copies of those items available for audit at our corporate 
offices at your cost.  If the audit discloses that Net Cash Sales actually exceeded the amount you reported, 
you immediately must pay us any additional fees required by Section 5 plus interest at the rate specified 
in Section 5.  If the audit discloses that Net Cash Sales actually exceeded the amount reported by an 
amount equal to 2% of the originally reported Net Cash Sales or more, you also must reimburse us for our 
out-of-pocket costs and allocable administrative costs and overhead incurred for the audit and its 
enforcement. 

16. Local Marketing.  During each fiscal quarter, we require that you spend at least 1% of 
Net Cash Sales for local marketing and promotional expenses of the Franchised Restaurant.  We 
recommend that you spend at least 2% of Net Cash Sales for local marketing and promotional expenses of 
the Franchised Restaurant.  Local marketing and promotional expenses include the cost of direct mail 
solicitations, public relations activities, community events and sponsorships, newspaper advertisements, 
telephone book listings and advertisements, and other distributed promotional materials.  Local marketing 
and promotional expenses do not include amounts spent on sign rental, paper products, or food items 
which may contain one or more of the Proprietary Marks.  You will conduct all marketing and 
promotional activities that use the Proprietary Marks or refer to the Franchised Restaurant in a dignified 
manner and in compliance with the System Standards and requirements we specify.  You will submit for 
our approval samples of all advertising and promotional materials that you wish to use at least 30 days 
before making any financial commitment to use the materials.  We will give you notice of any objections 
to the proposed materials within 10 days after their receipt.  If you fail to discontinue the use of any 
unapproved materials within five days after notice from us, we may enter the Franchised Restaurant, 
remove any unapproved materials and hold the materials for proper disposition according to your 
instructions. 

17. Advertising Cooperative.  We may establish one or more advertising cooperatives from 
time to time and, further, may modify, terminate and reform any existing advertising cooperative at any 
time in our sole discretion.  If the Franchised Restaurant operates within a DMA for which an approved 
advertising cooperative exists, you will contribute to the advertising cooperative the amounts required by 
the cooperative up to 2% of the Net Cash Sales of the Franchised Restaurant during each Reporting 
Period.  Any such payments made to any cooperative will count towards satisfaction of your minimum 
local advertising spending under Section 16.  All Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurants that we or our 
Affiliates operate will participate in any advertising cooperative that we establish for the DMA in which 
they are located on the same basis as the Franchised Restaurants in the DMA.  We will administer the 
cooperative unless we designate another party to perform the administrative functions.  The cooperative 
may have written governing documents that we must provide or approve, which will be available for all 
participants in the cooperative to review.  Each cooperative will maintain accounting records and compile 
financial statements that will be available for review by all participants.  We retain the power to require 
any cooperative to be formed, changed, dissolved or merged with another cooperative. 

18. Gift Cards.  You shall participate in promotional programs we develop for the Franchised 
System in the manner we direct in the Operations Manual or otherwise in writing.  Additionally, we may 
sell or otherwise issue gift cards or certificates (together, “Gift Cards”) that have been prepared utilizing 
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the standard form of Gift Card we provide or designate.  You shall fully honor all Gift Cards that are in 
the form we provide or approve, regardless of whether a Gift Card was issued by us or another sponsor.  
You will sell, issue and redeem Gift Cards in compliance with procedures and policies we specify in the 
Operations Manual or otherwise in writing, including those relating to procedures by which you shall 
request reimbursement for Gift Cards issued by other Franchised System Restaurants and for making 
timely payment to us or other franchisees of Gift Cards issued from your Franchised Restaurant honored 
elsewhere. 

19. Marketing Fund.  We have established a marketing fund (the “Marketing Fund”).  You 
will pay a Marketing Fee to us in an amount equal to up to 1.00% (as we designated in the Operations 
Manual) of the Net Cash Sales of the Franchised Restaurant.  Attachment A lists the Marketing Fee in 
effect on the Effective Date.  We will account for all Marketing Fees we collect in a separate account.  
We also may deposit the marketing, promotional and other payments we receive from suppliers into the 
Marketing Fund.  We will disburse the Marketing Fund to pay for marketing, advertising, promotional, 
public relations, and other similar activities intended to benefit Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurants, 
and their administration.  Those activities may include (without limitation) (a) market research, (b) 
marketing technology development and implementation, (c) customer service, loyalty and reward 
programs, (d) media purchases, (e) advertising production, (f) advertising and public relations agency fees 
and expenses, and (g) product research and development.  We also may use the Marketing Fund to pay or 
reimburse us for our administrative overhead incurred for activities supported by the Marketing Fund.  
Any moneys in the Marketing Fund not spent at the end of each fiscal year will remain in the Marketing 
Fund, provided that amounts contributed to the Marketing Fund may be used to pay taxes associated with 
unspent amounts on deposit in the Marketing Fund.  We will have the sole and exclusive discretion to 
direct all activities and programs funded by the Marketing Fund.  We generally will administer the 
Marketing Fund for the benefit of all Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurants.  You acknowledge that we 
have no obligation expend Marketing Fund amounts for your benefit equivalent or proportionate to your 
Marketing Fees, and we do not warrant or guaranty that you will receive or derive any benefit from 
Marketing Fund activities.  We will make all studies and reports produced by the Marketing Fund 
available to you at no cost as Confidential Information.  We will make copies of all materials produced by 
the Marketing Fund for franchisee use available to you at your expense.  We may suspend, terminate and 
reinstate the Marketing Fund at any time.  The Marketing Fund will not terminate, however, until we have 
spent all moneys in the Marketing Fund for the purposes set forth above. 

20. Publicity and Promotional Materials.  We will have the right to photograph the 
Franchised Restaurant and to use the photographs in any of our publicity or advertising programs.  You 
consent to such photography and use, and covenant to cooperate in securing the photographs and the 
consents of any individuals pictured.  You will place franchised recruitment advertising and promotional 
materials for Taziki’s Mediterranean Café franchises in the Franchised Restaurant if and when we so 
request. 

21. Insurance.   

(a) Before opening the Franchised Restaurant, you must obtain and thereafter 
maintain during the Term the following minimum amounts and policy forms of insurance from a 
responsible carrier or carriers authorized to write coverage in your state having an A.M. Best rating of at 
least A-VI and that we find acceptable.  The type of coverage includes: 

1. Commercial General Liability coverage ($1 million single limit per 
occurrence; $2 million general aggregate limit, for both general liability and products /completed 
operations liability) for personal injury and property damage, including premises, independent 
contractors, products and completed operations, contractual, personal and advertising liability, on 
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an occurrence basis, with coverage on a 1986 or later ISO commercial general liability form 
policy;  

2. “All Risk” property coverage including a property damage limit for the 
full cost of replacement of the Franchised Restaurant and business interruption coverage for up to 
twelve months of projected earnings; 

3. Business Automobile Liability covering liability arising out of any auto 
(including owned, hired and non-owned autos), with a minimum of $1 million combined single 
limit each accident; 

4. Workers’ Compensation or legally appropriate alternative covering all 
employees and contractors working at the Franchised Restaurant for statutory limits and 
Employers Liability with minimum limits of $1 million bodily injury for each accident, $500,000 
bodily injury by disease for each employee and $500,000 bodily injury disease aggregate; 

5. A $2 million Umbrella Policy on an occurrence basis excess of covering 
excess of the underlying insurance described in (1), (3) and (4) above which is at least as broad as 
each and every underlying policy, provided that you may purchase more underlying coverage and 
less umbrella coverage under such policies as long as you maintain the total amount of the limits 
specified for each coverage area 

6. Liquor Liability insurance (if applicable) (Minimum Limit $1 million); 

7. Other insurance as may be required by the state or locality of the 
Franchised Restaurant; 

8. Employment practices liability insurance with a limit of $500,000; and  

9. Employee Dishonesty/Fidelity insurance with a limit of $100,000. 

(b) Other Provisions.  All of the liability insurance policies, other than Workers’ 
Compensation, must name us, Taziki’s Inc. and our respective officers, directors, members, shareholders, 
partners and employees as additional insureds on a primary noncontributory basis for operations of the 
Franchised Restaurant.  The form of additional insured endorsement will be ISO CG 2010 11 85 Form B 
or its equivalent.  If the additional insured has other insurance applicable to a loss, it will be on an excess 
or contingent basis.  The additional insured’s insurance coverage will not be reduced by the existence of 
such other insurance.  Your policies must constitute primary policies of insurance with regard to other 
insurance, must contain a waiver of subrogation provision in favor of us as it relates to the operation of 
the Franchised Restaurant, and must provide for at least 30 days’ notice to us prior to cancellation, non-
renewal or amendment.  Your policies may provide the minimum limits set forth above through a single 
policy or through the combination of primary and umbrella policies.  We may modify the policy limits, 
policy requirements and coverage types during the Term in the Operations Manual. 

(c) Certificate of Insurance.  Before you commence renovation or construction of the 
Franchised Restaurant, you must furnish us with certificates of insurance evidencing that you have 
obtained the required insurance in the forms and amounts as specified above.  You must deliver evidence 
of the continuation of the required insurance policies at least 30 days prior to the expiration dates of each 
existing insurance policy.  If you fail to acquire and maintain the required insurance coverage, we will 
have the right (but not the obligation), at your expense, to acquire and administer the required minimum 
insurance coverage on your behalf.  We may end all of our duties with respect to the administration of any 
required insurance policies by giving you 10 days’ notice. 

(d) Remedial Insurance.  If you, for any reason, shall fail to procure or maintain the 
insurance required by this Agreement and the Operations Manual, we shall have the right and authority 
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(without any obligation to do so) immediately to procure such insurance and to charge the cost to you, 
together with a reasonable fee for acquiring each policy.  You shall pay the same to us immediately upon 
notice.   

22. Assignments & Transfers.   

(a) Our Assignments.  We may assign, delegate or subcontract all or any part of our 
rights and duties under this Agreement, including by operation of law, without notice and without your 
consent.  You are not the third party beneficiary of any contract with a third party to provide services to 
you under this Agreement, but we are responsible for the performance of all of our obligations to you 
under this Agreement.  We may dissolve, terminate and wind up our business under applicable law but we 
will transfer the System and this Agreement to a party that will perform the franchisor’s obligations and 
that will assume this Agreement in writing.  We will have no obligations to you after you are notified that 
our transferee has assumed our obligations under this Agreement except those that arose before we assign 
this Agreement. 

(b) Your Assignments.  This Agreement is personal to you (and your Owners if you 
are an entity).  We are relying on your experience, skill and financial resources (and that of your Owners 
and the guarantors, if any) to sign this Agreement with you. You may not directly or indirectly engage in 
a Transfer, without our prior consent, which we may withhold or condition in our sole discretion, except 
as expressly permitted under this Agreement.  We condition our consent on satisfaction of one or more of 
the following: (i) the proposed transferee must satisfy all of the requirements and conditions then being 
used to qualify as a new franchisee of ours; (ii) the proposed transferee must comply with Section 24; (iii) 
you must satisfy all of your monetary obligations then due and owing to us and our Affiliates; (iv) you 
must cure all existing defaults under this Agreement; (v) you and your guarantors must execute and 
deliver a general release of all claims and causes of action against us and our Affiliates; (vi) the transferee 
must execute and deliver our then current form of franchise agreement with the same Royalty Fee and the 
same expiration date and remaining renewal term (if any) as set forth in this Agreement; and (vii) you 
must pay us a transfer fee equal to 50% of the initial fee we would then charge for the Franchised 
Restaurant if you transfer this Agreement or the Franchised Restaurant, or in the event of an ownership 
change (a "Control Change") involving Control of 50% or more of your equity interests, or effective 
Control over the management of your business by modification of your Core Agreement (defined below).  
A proposed transferee is not eligible for our consideration if the transferee or any of its owners has had a 
Franchise Agreement with us or any affiliated franchise system terminated for cause, is affiliated with a 
competitor, or would be in breach of Section 11 immediately upon closing of the transaction.  However, a 
Transfer that is (1) an initial transfer of the Franchised Restaurant and this Agreement from an individual 
to an entity owned by the individual, or (2) other than a Control Change, conveyance of the equity 
interests conveyed by any the Owners listed on Attachment A to any of the other Owners listed on 
Attachment A or any member of their immediate family does not require our consent or payment of a 
transfer fee.  We will waive the transfer fee if the Control Change results from conveyance of the equity 
interests between the persons listed on Attachment A so long as you obtain our consent prior to executing 
the transaction.  We may withhold or condition our consent to such a transaction among existing equity 
Owners in our sole discretion.  If you are an individual, then in the event of your death, permanent 
disability or appointment of a guardian for you, this Agreement will terminate 90 days after your death, 
permanent disability or appointment of a guardian unless we give our consent within that 90-day period to 
the assignment of this Agreement to a successor in compliance with this paragraph.  You will notify us in 
writing of any change in the information stated on Attachment A before or within 10 days after such 
events.  If our consent and the transfer procedures stated above are not required, we will produce and send 
to you a revised Attachment A that will be a unilateral amendment to this Agreement not requiring your 
signature to be effective.  
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23. Right of First Refusal.  Prior to the sale or transfer of any interest that constitutes Control 
(the “Offered Interest”) of the Franchised Restaurant or of you, you must notify us of the proposed sale or 
transfer and deliver to us the name and address of the proposed purchaser or transferee, the proposed 
purchase price, and all other terms and conditions of the proposed sale or transfer of the Offered Interest.  
In addition, you must deliver to us one photocopy of all proposed purchase agreement, if any and all other 
agreements and instruments signed and to be signed in the transaction, and copies or electronic access to 
all diligence, offering and other materials furnished to the proposed purchaser as part of the selling 
process.  Within 30 days after we receive the foregoing notice and materials, we will have the right and 
option to send notice to you that we intend to acquire the Offered Interest on the same terms and 
conditions as contemplated by the third party.  If we do not send notice of our intent to acquire the 
Offered Interest within the 30-day period, you may proceed with the sale or transfer as disclosed to us, 
subject to our rights as set forth in Section 22 of this Agreement, as long as the terms and conditions of 
the sale or transfer stay identical to those as originally disclosed to us.  Our failure to exercise our right of 
first refusal will not constitute a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement, or our right of first 
refusal as to any subsequent proposed sale or transfer.  Any material change in the terms of the proposed 
sale or transfer prior to closing will constitute a new sale or transfer, subject to the same right of first 
refusal by us as for the initial sale or transfer.  Any sale or transfer attempted without first giving us the 
right of first refusal specified in this Section 23 will render the attempted sale or transfer null and void.  
We may utilize the remedy of specific performance to enforce this right. 

24. Business Entity Franchisee.  If you constitute a business entity, each of your Owners 
must execute the Guaranty and Restriction Agreement attached as Attachment C. Your certificate of 
incorporation, shareholders’ agreement, partnership agreement, trust agreement, operating agreement, or 
other similar agreement (a “Core Agreement”) must provide that your purpose will consist only in the 
development, ownership, operation and maintenance of Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurants.  The 
Core Agreement must prohibit the issuance of any additional equity ownership interests or the transfer, 
assignment or pledge of any issued equity ownership interests without our consent and must provide that 
each certificate or document issued to evidence any equity ownership interest will contain a legend 
disclosing the foregoing restriction.  In giving our consent under Section 22 to any issuance or transfer of 
your equity interests, we may in our discretion impose one or more conditions, including (without 
limitation) the requirement that the individual beneficial owner of the equity ownership interest execute 
the form of Guaranty and Restriction Agreement attached as Attachment C or a supplement to the original 
such Agreement acceptable to us in form and substance adding such person as a guarantor.  You must 
deliver to us of the documents demonstrating compliance with this Section when we so request. 

25. Death or Appointment of Guardian or Conservator of a Principal.  Upon the death of an 
Owner, or the appointment of a permanent guardian or conservator to manage the Owner’s affairs, the 
Owner’s trustee, conservator or other personal representative may hold the deceased’s equity interest in 
the franchisee entity for up to one year and may only transfer the deceased’s interest from the estate, a 
testamentary trust or inter vivos trust to a third party we approve under the procedures set forth in this 
Agreement.  If the Owner was the Owner-Operator, then we may treat the personal representative, trustee 
or conservator as the Owner-Operator until you appoint someone else.  Any failure to commence 
administration of the decedent’s estate within 90 days after death or any distribution of the decedent’s 
equity interest in the franchisee entity without our consent if such distribution operates as an assignment 
and our consent is required under this Agreement, is a material breach of this Agreement.   

26. Temporary Disability of An Owner.  If a physician, court or administrative agency 
determines that an Owner-Operator or an Owner owning a controlling interest in you has become 
temporarily disabled and incompetent to manage his or her own affairs, we have the right to require that a 
different Owner-Operator be appointed until the Owner’s permanent status is determined.  We may 
require that the Owner’s equity interest be transferred to a third party acceptable to us following the 
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assignment conditions and procedures in this Agreement if the temporary disability does not resolve 
within six months after the temporary disability is determined.   

27. Securities Offerings.  If you intend to engage in a public or private offering of your 
equity interests, then you must submit for our review your offering materials or prospectus before you file 
the document or commence its use.  No offering by you or any affiliate shall imply (by use of the 
Proprietary Marks or otherwise) that we are participating in an underwriting, issuance or offering of your 
securities or those of affiliates.  Our review of any offering material shall be limited solely to the 
relationship between you and us (and any of our affiliates, if applicable), an accurate description of our 
System, and the absence of any disclosure of confidential information about us or the System.  We may, 
at our option, require that the offering materials make a written statement we prescribe about the 
limitations stated in the preceding sentence.  Your indemnification obligations in Section 35 include 
claims relating to your securities offering, disclosure materials and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations.  For each proposed offering, you shall pay us a non-refundable fee of $10,000 or such greater 
amount as is necessary to reimburse us for our reasonable costs and expenses (including legal and 
accounting fees) for reviewing the proposed offering materials.  You must submit your offering materials 
for our review at least 30 days in advance of the anticipated filing or release date.  Any such offering shall 
be subject to our approval as to the structure and voting control of the offeror (and you, if you are not the 
offeror) after the financing is completed.   

28. Termination by You.  If we substantially fail to perform any of our material obligations to 
you under this Agreement, you must give us written notice of non-performance and at least 60 days to 
cure the failure.  If the failure continues at the end of such 60 day cure period, you may terminate this 
Agreement on written notice to us delivered at any time before we cure the failure.  You may not 
withhold the payment of any fees due under this Agreement during the pendency of cure period, and any 
payment by you of fees accruing after the expiration of the cure period will be deemed a waiver of our 
default by you.   

29. Termination by Us for Incurable Defaults.  We may terminate this Agreement effective 
immediately (or at the earliest time allowed under applicable law) upon written notice to you for any of 
the following events: 

(a) You close or abandon the Franchised Restaurant for a period of three or more 
days in any seven day period except for any remodeling or vacation we approve in advance; 

(b) You or any of your Owners request the appointment of a receiver or have a 
receiver appointed for the Franchised Restaurant, you or any of your or their assets; 

(c) You or any of your Owners become insolvent or make a general assignment for 
the benefit of your or their creditors; 

(d) You or any of your Owners commence a case for relief or have an order for relief 
entered for you or them under the United States Bankruptcy Code; 

(e) You or any of your Owners suffer a conviction for, or plead guilty or nolo 
contendere to a crime involving moral turpitude or any other offense reasonably likely, in our opinion, to 
have an adverse effect on the goodwill of the Proprietary Marks or name and reputation with the 
consuming public of Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurants; 

(f) We discover a material inaccuracy in any of your representations in this 
Agreement or in any application you submitted to us to become a franchisee; 
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(g) You maintain false books or records, including tax records; 

(h) You breach the same provision of this Agreement on three occasions within any 
12-month period, with our having given you the required notice of the first two breaches (whether or not 
timely cured by you); or 

(i) You commit a breach which, by its nature, you cannot cure or with regard to 
which you notify us that you do not intend to cure. 

30. Termination by Us for Curable Defaults.  We may terminate this Agreement if you fail to 
cure any monetary default after at least five business days’ notice of the monetary default.  We may 
terminate this Agreement if you fail to cure any non-monetary default after at least 30 days’ notice of the 
non-monetary default.  A monetary default means your failure to make any payments as and when due to 
us or to our Affiliates, or to maintain the insurance required under this Agreement.  A non-monetary 
default means (a) any default in the performance of any of your other obligations under this Agreement or 
any other agreement with us or our Affiliates, other than the failure to make any payments as and when 
due to us or our Affiliates; or (b) any condition which makes the continued operation of the Franchised 
Restaurant more likely than not a danger to public health or safety.   

31. Termination by Us for Commercial Impracticability.  The parties agree that the 
commercial purpose of this Agreement is for Franchisor to license the System specified by Franchisor to 
Franchisee for use in operating the Franchised Restaurant strictly in accordance with the Operations 
Manual, in exchange for payment of the fees and under the conditions set forth in this Agreement.  This 
Agreement intends for Franchisee to control the terms and conditions of employment for the employees 
of the Franchised Restaurant, and to supervise such employees as their employer, as set forth in Section 
38, without constituting Franchisor as a joint employer of Franchisee or Franchisee’s employees.  
Franchisee acknowledges that Franchisor is not in the business of owning and operating any Franchised 
Restaurant, and Franchisee has independently decided to enter into this Agreement to obtain the right to 
use the System so as to enter into the trade and business contemplated by the System.  Franchisor may 
terminate this Agreement by written notice to Franchisee without penalty and without payment of any 
refunds or damages to Franchisee, and Franchisee will follow its post-termination obligations under 
Section 33 at its expense, if Franchisor determines in its sole discretion that either (i) a law or regulation 
is enacted, promulgated, repealed, modified or amended, (ii) a judicial or administrative tribunal or 
administrative agency has issued, published or released a decision, ruling or opinion in a matter not 
involving the parties directly or indirectly that Franchisor reasonably expects will affect applicable law or 
its interpretation, or (iii) an administrative agency, arbitrator or judge has issued an interim or final 
decision in a matter in which the parties are involved directly or indirectly, which (A) frustrates or 
adversely affects or could reasonably be expected to affect adversely the purposes of this Agreement, (B) 
makes performance of this Agreement commercially impracticable, (C) effectively modifies the allocation 
of risk, benefits and burdens agreed by the parties, (D) deprives any Party of its benefits of the bargain 
struck by the parties, as originally set forth in this Agreement, or (E) determines that an employment or a 
joint employment relationship exists between Franchisor and Franchisee.  

32. Certain Waivers.   

(a) You and we waive the right to pursue and receive any exemplary and punitive 
damages against the other party in any dispute arising under this Agreement or relating to the franchise 
relationship, whether asserted as a related or independent tort, as a breach of contract, or as any other 
claim or cause of action based on constitutional, statutory or common law.   
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(b) THE PARTIES WAIVE THE RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL IN ANY 
ACTION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE 
FRANCHISOR, THE FRANCHISEE, ANY GUARANTOR, AND THEIR RESPECTIVE 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. 

33. Obligations Upon Termination or Expiration.   

(a) Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason, all of your 
rights under this Agreement will terminate and you will (a) abide by the non-competition and 
confidentiality provisions contained in Sections 11 and 12 of this Agreement; (b) promptly pay us and our 
Affiliates all amounts then due us and them; (c) not use or adopt the Franchised System or any of the 
Proprietary Marks or Intellectual Property; (d) remove from the Franchised Restaurant all signs, emblems 
and displays using any Proprietary Marks or identifying it as associated with the Franchised System; (e) 
cease to use and return to us the Operations Manual and other proprietary materials delivered to you 
under this Agreement; (f) change the exterior and interior design and decor of the Franchised Restaurant 
and make any and all changes in signs, buildings and structures which we direct to distinguish the 
building from its former appearance as a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant; (g) cease to hold 
yourself out in any way as our franchisee or to do anything which would indicate any relationship 
between you and us, except pursuant to the terms of a separate agreement with us; and (h) transfer to us 
all telephone listings, domain names, and web pages for the Franchised Restaurant or which contain, use 
or display any of our Proprietary Marks or Intellectual Property.  You will complete all modifications 
within 30 days after the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  If you fail to complete such 
modifications or fail to transfer or return such property within 30 days as contemplated above in this 
Section, or should you indicate at such time earlier than 30 days that you do not intend or are unable to 
comply with this Section, you appoint us as your attorney-in-fact to perform such acts in your stead and 
for your account.  You will reimburse us for all of our costs and expenses, including without limitation 
administrative overhead and employee salaries, that we may incur in acting as your attorney-in-fact to 
perform such acts. 

(b) You acknowledge that the parties cannot determine the exact amount of damages 
resulting from termination prior to the expiration of a term.  If this Agreement terminates for any reason 
other than our material breach and our failure to cure the breach within a reasonable time after you give 
us written notice of the breach but not less than 60 days, then in addition to any and all other remedies and 
causes of action available to us, you will pay us liquidated damages in addition to amounts due to us 
accruing under this Agreement prior to termination.   The amount of liquidated damages shall equal the 
average monthly Royalties payable to us for the twelve months preceding the date of termination, 
multiplied by the lesser of 24 or the number of months remaining in the term at the time of termination.  
You and we agree that it is a reasonable estimate of the actual damages which we will sustain as a result 
of the breach and is not a penalty.  The liquidated damages will constitute neither a waiver of your 
obligation to comply with the foregoing post-termination requirements nor a license to use the Franchised 
System. 

34. Our Option to Purchase.  Upon the termination or expiration of this Agreement for any 
reason, we will have the option to purchase the Franchised Restaurant, including the land or leasehold 
interest in the Location, improvements, fixtures and equipment comprising the Franchised Restaurant, at 
the fair market value of the Franchised Restaurant.  We will have the right to set off all amounts you owe 
us against any payment for the assets purchased.  We will exercise our option under this Section by giving 
you notice of the exercise of the option at least 30 days prior to the expiration of this Agreement or within 
30 days after the early termination of this Agreement.  We will close the transaction within 60 days after 
the exercise of our option.  At the closing, you will transfer the assets comprising the Franchised 
Restaurant to us by special warranty deed (or assignment of leasehold estate) and bill of sale in form and 
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substance acceptable to us.  You and we will resolve any dispute regarding the fair market value of the 
Franchised Restaurant by arbitration, provided that the arbitrator shall be an accountant or investment 
banker experienced with the valuation of businesses similar to the Franchised Restaurant.  Such 
proceeding will be final and binding arbitration under the Rules for Commercial Arbitration of the 
American Arbitration Association.  The Federal Arbitration Act will apply.  The arbitration will take 
place before one arbitrator selected by the American Arbitration Association.  The arbitration will take 
place in the city in which we then have our principal place of business. Currently our principal place of 
business is located in Vestavia Hills, Alabama in Jefferson County.  The parties will conduct any 
arbitration proceeding and resolve any dispute on an individual basis only and not on a class-wide or 
multiple-party basis.  The prevailing party will have the right to enter the award of the arbitrator in any 
court having jurisdiction.  The award will not have any precedential or collateral estoppel effect on any 
other dispute.  Our option under this Section will not affect or limit our rights under any security 
agreement or our subrogation rights under any guaranty or surety agreement. 

35. Indemnification by Franchisee.   

(a) You will, at all times, indemnify and hold harmless to the fullest extent permitted 
by law, us, our parent entity (member), our affiliates, the respective shareholders, members, directors, 
officers, employees, agents and representatives of each of them, and their respective successors and 
assigns, from all Losses and Expenses incurred in any action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, 
investigation or inquiry (formal or informal), or any settlement thereof (whether or not a formal 
proceeding or action has been instituted) which arises out of or is based upon any of the following:  

1. Your infringement, alleged infringement or any other violation or alleged 
violation of any trademark, copyright or other proprietary right owned or controlled by third 
parties;  

2. Your violation, breach or alleged violation or breach (i) of any contract, 
federal, state or local law, regulation, ruling, standard or directive or (ii) arising out of your 
business activities hereunder;  

3. Libel, slander or any other form of personal injury by you or arising out 
of your business activities hereunder;  

4. Your violation or breach of any warranty, representation, agreement or 
obligation in this Agreement; or  

5. Acts, errors or omissions of you or any of your agents, servants, 
employees, contractors, Owners, partners, affiliates or representatives.  

(b) Notice of Claims.  You will give us notice of any such action, suit, proceeding, 
claim, demand, inquiry or investigation.  At your expense and risk, we may elect to assume (but under no 
circumstance is obligated to undertake), the defense and/or settlement of any such action, suit, 
proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or investigation. Such an undertaking by us shall, in no manner or 
form, diminish your obligations under this Section.  

(c) Risk of Loss.  All Losses and Expenses incurred under this Section shall be 
chargeable to and paid by you as your obligations of indemnity under this Section, regardless of any 
actions, activity or defense undertaken by us or the subsequent success or failure of such actions, activity 
or defense.  
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(d) No Assumption of Liability.  The persons or parties indemnified do not assume 
any liability whatsoever for acts, errors, or omissions of those with whom Franchisee may contract, 
regardless of the purpose.  Franchisee’s hold harmless and indemnity obligation shall include all losses 
and expenses that may arise out of any acts, errors or omissions of these third parties.  

(e) Remedial Action.  In order to protect persons or property, or its reputation or 
goodwill, or the reputation or goodwill of others, we may, at any time and without notice, as we, in our 
Reasonable Business Judgment deem appropriate, order, consent or agree to settlements or take such 
other remedial or corrective action as it deems expedient with respect to any action, suit, proceeding, 
claim, demand, inquiry or investigation if, in our sole judgment, there are reasonable grounds to believe 
that:  

1. Any of the acts or circumstances enumerated in this Section have 
occurred; or 

2. Any act, error or omission of yours may result directly or indirectly in 
damage, injury or harm to any person or any property. 

(f) Survival.  This Section shall survive expiration or earlier termination of this 
Agreement without regard to the cause of termination. 

36. Force Majeure.  If an act of nature or any other cause beyond the reasonable control of 
the party whose performance is affected which cannot be overcome despite the party’s exercise of 
reasonable diligence to overcome the cause prevents a party from performing any obligation under this 
Agreement despite the party’s exercise of reasonable diligence, the act of nature or other cause will toll 
the due date for the performance of that obligation for the duration of the act of nature and for a 
reasonable time thereafter.  However, no force majeure or other cause shall excuse the timely payment of 
amounts due under this Agreement.  Should the Franchised Restaurant close for any reason relating to 
natural disaster, accident or other unforeseeable events, you will vigorously pursue reopening at the same 
or a new location in the Territory that we first approve.  If you have not resumed operations within 180 
days after closing, we may terminate this Agreement without penalty to you so long as you have paid us a 
royalty on your business interruption insurance proceeds and not breached the covenants in Section 11. 

37. Relationship of Parties.   

(a) Limitations.  Neither this Agreement nor the performance of the obligations set 
forth in this Agreement will operate to make you our partner or agent.  Neither party will have the 
authority to act or contract on behalf of the other.  Neither party will have any responsibility for the 
obligations of the other party.  The relationship created by this Agreement is that of an independent 
contractor, and no fiduciary relationship is created or intended.  You must indicate clearly the 
independent ownership of your business in all public records and in all of your dealings with third parties. 

(b) Reserved Rights.  Whenever we reserved in this Agreement a right to take or 
withhold an action, or are deemed to have a right and/or discretion to take or withhold an action, or to 
grant or decline to grant you a right to take or omit an action, except as otherwise expressly and 
specifically provided in this Agreement, we may make our decision or exercise our rights, on the basis of 
the information readily available to us and our judgment of what is in our best interests and/or in the best 
interests of the our franchise network, at the time the decision is made, without regard to whether:  (i) 
other reasonable alternative decisions or actions could have been made by us; (ii) our decision or action 
will promote our financial or other individual interest; (iii) our decision or the action we take applies 
differently to you and one or more other franchisees or our company-owned operations; or (iv) our 
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decision or the exercise of our right or discretion is adverse to your interests.  In the absence of an 
applicable statute, we will have no liability to you for any such decision or action.  We and you intend 
that the exercise of our right or discretion will not be subject to limitation or review.  If applicable law 
implies a covenant of good faith and fair dealing in this Agreement, the parties acknowledge that such 
covenant shall not imply any rights or obligations that are inconsistent with a fair construction of this 
Agreement and that this Agreement grants us the right to make decisions, take actions and/or refrain from 
taking actions not inconsistent with your rights and obligations hereunder. 

(c) Reasonable Business Judgment.  You and we agree that we may use our 
Reasonable Business Judgment in the exercise of our rights, obligations and discretion under this 
Agreement except where otherwise indicated.  “Reasonable Business Judgment” means that our 
determination shall prevail even in cases where other alternatives are also reasonable so long as we intend 
to benefit or its actions or omissions could benefit the Franchised System.  Examples of benefits to the 
Franchised System would include, without limitation, protecting or enhancing the value of the Proprietary 
Marks, promoting economic efficiency or gain for the Franchised System Restaurants, increasing 
customer satisfaction, increasing brand identification, or minimizing possible customer brand or location 
confusion.  We shall not be required to consider your particular economic or other circumstances when 
exercising our Reasonable Business Judgment.  At no time are you or any third party (including, but not 
limited to other franchise owners or any trier of fact) entitled to substitute your or its judgment for a 
judgment, which has been made by or on behalf of us which meets the definition of Reasonable Business 
Judgment.  You and we agree that the long-term goals of a franchise system, and the long-term interests 
of both us and all the franchisees, taken together, require that we have the latitude to exercise our 
Reasonable Business Judgment. 

(d) Time.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

38. Employment Decisions.  You have and will continue to have sole responsibility for 
recruitment, selection, training, supervision, discipline and termination of your employees, all acts and 
omissions of your employees, and all employment related decisions involving compensation, benefits, 
hours of work, scheduling, record keeping, and all other terms and conditions of employment. 

39. Holidays.  If the due date for any payment of funds under this Agreement falls on a legal 
holiday, the due date for the payment will extend until the next business day. 

40. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement (including all attachments, exhibits and schedules) 
constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with regard to the subject matter of this Agreement and 
replaces and supersedes all other prior written, electronic and oral agreements and statements of the 
parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  Neither party is relying on any writing to enter 
into this Agreement other than as set forth in this Agreement and the Franchise Disclosure Document 
delivered to you. 

41. Disclaimer Limitation.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement shall 
disclaim or require you to waive reliance on any representation that we made in the most recent Franchise 
Disclosure Document (including its exhibits and amendments) that we delivered to you or your 
representative, subject to any agreed-upon changes to the contract terms and conditions described in that 
Franchise Disclosure Document and reflected in this Agreement (including any riders or addenda signed 
at the same time as this Agreement). 

42. Approvals and Waivers.  You must request any prior approval or consent required under 
this Agreement from us by means of a timely written request.  Any such approval or consent must be 
obtained in writing.  No delay, waiver, omission or forbearance on our part to exercise any right, option, 
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duty or power arising out of any breach or default by you under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver 
by us to enforce any right, option, duty or power as against you, or shall apply as to subsequent breach or 
default by you.  Subsequent acceptance by us of any payments due to us hereunder shall not be deemed to 
be a waiver by us of any preceding breach by you of this Agreement.  The failure of a party to insist in 
any one or more instances on the performance of any term or condition of this Agreement will not operate 
as a waiver of any future performance of that term or condition. 

43. Notice.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, when this Agreement requires 
notice, the sending party must deliver or address the notice to the other party by certified mail, or delivery 
service with receipted delivery, or by electronic mail followed by transmittal of the original by first class 
United States Mail, to the following address: 

 Us:  3755 Corporate Woods Dr.  
    Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242  
    Attention: Franchising Department 
    Email: franchise@tazikiscafe.com  
 
  You:  ________________________ 
    ________________________ 
    ________________________ 

   Email:___________________ 
 
All notices will be deemed delivered and received if transmitted to the proper address on the 

earlier of (a) the date that the other party receives or refuses delivery of the notice or (b) three business 
days after the party places the notice in the United States mail, first class postage prepaid.  Each party 
may change the party’s address by giving written notice to the other party. 

44. Cumulative Rights.  No right or remedy conferred upon or reserved to us or you by this 
Agreement is intended to be, nor shall be deemed, exclusive of any other right or remedy in this 
Agreement or by law or equity provided or permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other right or 
remedy.  The parties retain all rights and remedies available at law or in equity. 

45. Survival.  The provisions of this Agreement which, by their terms, survive the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement will survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement 
for any reason. 

46. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of Alabama (without 
regard to any conflicts of law principles). 

47. Venue.  Except for any third party dispute in which the Parties may be involved subject 
to Section 35, the proper, sole and exclusive venue and forum for any action arising out of or in any way 
related to this Agreement shall in the federal and state court districts in which we then have our principal 
place of business.  As of the Effective Date, the proper venue is in the United States District Court for the 
Northern District of Alabama and Jefferson County, Alabama.  Each party to this Agreement hereby 
consents to any of those courts’ exercise of personal jurisdiction over the party in that type of action and 
expressly waives all objections the party otherwise might have to that exercise of personal jurisdiction. 

48. Legal Fees.  If either party succeeds in any arbitration or legal action to enforce this 
Agreement, the losing party will reimburse the prevailing party for its outside and inside attorneys’ fees 
and costs related to the action, in addition to any other relief obtained by the prevailing party.   
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49. Construction.  The rule of construction requiring the resolution of any ambiguities in this 
Agreement against the drafting party will not apply to the construction of this Agreement. 

50. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement (other than Section 5) is held to be 
invalid or ineffective with respect to any Person or circumstance, the holding will not affect the remainder 
of this Agreement or the application of this Agreement to any other Person or circumstance.   

51. Counterparts.  The parties may execute this Agreement in counterparts, each of which 
will constitute an original and all of which, when taken together, will constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

52. Amendment.  No amendment to this Agreement will become effective or binding on the 
parties, unless it is in writing and signed by all of the parties; provided, that we may modify or change the 
Franchised System or Operations Manual unilaterally at any time, effective 30 days after notice of the 
change or modification is sent to you, unless health and safety concerns compel us to provide a shorter 
notice period.   

53. Third Party Beneficiaries.  Except for the benefits reserved for our parent, Taziki’s, Inc. 
and our Affiliates, there are no third party beneficiaries for this Agreement.    

54. Definitions.  Unless the context of their use in this Agreement requires otherwise, the 
following words and phrases have the following meanings when used in initially-capitalized form in this 
Agreement. 

(a) Affiliate means (1) any Person who Controls, is Controlled by, or is under 
common Control with a Person, and (2) any Owner of any Person. 

(b) Certified Training Store means a Taziki's Mediterranean Café Restaurant at 
which all managers and shift leaders in the Training Group have been trained by a Certified Trainer and 
we certify as meeting our System Standards for such designation.  We specify procedures to obtain and 
maintain certification of a Restaurant as a Certified Training Store in the Operations Manual.  A Certified 
Training Store must employ a Certified Trainer as a General Manager, have passed a "Certified Training 
Store Assessment" initially and have passed all of its subsequent Taziki's Standards Assessments.    

(c) Competing Business means any restaurant serving as its primary menu offering  
Greek or Mediterranean cuisine in a quick service, fast casual, casual dining, diner or buffet format, 
featuring pre-made and prepared to order salads, dolmades, gyros, lavash wraps and grilled proteins.   

(d) Confidential Information means any trade secrets we own or protect and other 
proprietary information not generally known to the restaurant industry including confidential portions of 
the Operations Manual and information we otherwise impart to you and your representatives in 
confidence.  Confidential Information includes recipes, food preparation instructions, proprietary software 
and other valuable property.    

(e) Control means the possession, direct or indirect, of the power to direct or cause 
the direction of the management and policies of a Person, whether through the ownership of voting 
securities, by contract, or otherwise. 

(f) DMA means a Designated Market Area, as defined by Neilsen Media Research 
or its successors in interest from time to time.  We may designate a substitute independent source for 
providing the boundaries of a single television advertising market in the Operations Manual. 
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(g) Effective Date means the date we enter immediately below our signature block 
on this Agreement as the date on which you and we are legally bound under this Agreement, provided 
that if no such date is entered, then the Effective Date shall be the date on which we execute and deliver 
this Agreement. 

(h) Franchised Restaurant means the Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant you 
establish and operate at the Location. 

(i) Franchised System means the distinctive, unique and proprietary marks and trade 
dress, products, presentation styles and services, know-how, methods of operation, identification, décor, 
furnishings, equipment, training, service, production, technology, marketing, advertising, promotion and 
development that we may designate in written or electronic form or through usage from time to time that 
define and distinguish a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant, including (without limitation) (1) plans 
and specifications for interior and exterior signs, designs, layouts and color schemes; (2) methods, 
techniques, formats, systems, menus, ingredients, recipes, specifications, procedures, information, trade 
secrets, sales and marketing programs; (3) methods of business operations and management; (4) System 
Standards; (5) the Operations Manual; and (6) knowledge and experience regarding the operation and 
franchising of Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurants. 

(j) Losses and Expenses means, without limitation, all losses, compensatory, 
exemplary or punitive damages, penalties, fines, charges, costs and expenses of investigation, defense and 
resolution, lost profits, attorneys’ fees, court costs, settlement amounts, judgments, compensation for 
damages to our and our Affiliates’ reputation and goodwill, costs of or resulting from delays, financing, 
costs of advertising material and media time/space, and costs of changing, substituting or replacing the 
same, and any and all expenses of recall, refunds, compensation, public notices and other such amounts 
incurred in connection with the matter described.  

(k) Intellectual Property means the Proprietary Marks, patents, copyrights, 
copyrightable material, ideas, concepts, inventions, know-how, trade secrets, Confidential Information, 
and other proprietary information that we designate in written or electronic form or through usage from 
time to time as part of or prescribed for use with the Franchised System. 

(l) “Net Cash Sales” means all revenues accrued from all business conducted at or 
from your Franchised Restaurant, whether paid by cash, check, credit card, charge account, barter 
exchange or otherwise, without deduction for bad debt, credit card fees or other costs of collection or 
processing.  Net Cash Sales does not include:  (i) any exchange of goods or services between your 
Restaurants where such exchange is made solely for the convenient operation of your Restaurant business 
and not for the purpose of consummating a sale made in, at or from an Approved Location, (ii) returns to 
shippers, suppliers or manufacturers, (iii) cash or credit refunds to customers on transactions otherwise 
included in Net Cash Sales, (iv) sales of fixtures, machinery or equipment which are not stock in trade, 
(v) receipts from vending machines;  (vi) sales taxes, consumer's excise taxes, gross receipts taxes and 
other similar taxes now or hereafter imposed upon the sale of meals, food, beverages, merchandise or 
services at the Restaurant,  but only if charged and collected separately from the sales prices of such 
items; (vii) any portion of a sale that is deemed a non-cash sale such as the discounted portion of a sale, or 
any sale that is complimentary; and (viii) gratuities and delivery fees included to the extent they are paid 
over to servers and delivery providers.   

(m) Nontraditional Concept Restaurant means a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café 
Restaurant that uses all or some portion of the Franchised System and is located in a limited access host 
facility venue such as an airport, transportation center, sports and entertainment venue, educational 
institution dining hall, hospital cafeteria, mall food court, and in-plant cafeteria.  A Nontraditional 
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Concept Restaurant may offer a different menu from a standard Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant 
that we approve, share seating and beverage dispensing with other restaurant counters, offer service hours 
to match the traffic in the host facility, have server uniforms that match uniforms worn by other food 
servers at the host facility, and have limited use of Mark-bearing signage and other System elements.   

(n) Location means the address identified in Attachment A as the site of your 
Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant. 

(o) Opening Date means the date on which you open your Taziki’s Mediterranean 
Café Restaurant for business, after receiving our consent to open. 

(p) Operations Manual means the manual or collection of materials in written or 
electronic form which we designate from time to time as containing the System Standards, specifications, 
procedures, policies, methods of operating the Franchised Restaurant, other elements of the Franchised 
System and any information designated in this Agreement for inclusion or modification in the Operations 
Manual. 

(q) Owner means any Person that holds a direct or indirect equity ownership interest 
(including beneficial and record interests) in you. 

(r) Owner-Operator means the Owner who is primarily responsible for supervising 
the operation of the Franchised Restaurant, as you designate in writing to us in Attachment A or 
otherwise. 

(s) Person means any individual or business entity, including (without limitation) 
corporation, joint venture, general partnership, limited partnership, limited liability company, or trust. 

(t) Proprietary Marks means the registered and unregistered distinctive and 
characteristic trade names, domain names, trademarks, service marks, logotypes, and trade dress elements 
that we designate in written or electronic form or through usage from time to time as prescribed for use 
with the Franchised System. 

(u) Assigned Area means the geographic area described on Attachment A. 

(v) Reporting Period “Reporting Period” means each 28 day period beginning on the 
date specified in the Operations Manual.  Our accounting system operates on 13 periods of 28 days each 
for each fiscal year, with an extra day attached to one or two periods at our discretion.  Our fiscal year 
typically ends on the Sunday closest to December 31.   

(w) System Standards means the standards for the Franchised Restaurant and using 
the Franchised System published in the Operations Manual and elsewhere, including but not limited to 
standards for design, furnishings, fixtures and equipment, use and display of the Proprietary Marks, 
operations, technology and any other standards, policies, rules and procedures we promulgate about 
Franchised System operation and usage. 

(x) Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant means a restaurant operating under the 
Franchised System using the Taziki’s name and mark, or such other name and mark as we may specify 
under the Operations Manual, as amended. 

(y) Training Group means two or more Franchised Restaurants owned by Affiliates 
having Owners with at least 50% aggregate equity interests in common in all of the franchisees. 
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(z) Transfer means, for the purposes of Section 22, any transaction that is or results 
in (i) an assignment of this Agreement or delegation of any of your rights and obligations under this 
Agreement, (ii) grant of a security interest, pledge, lien or encumbrance on this Agreement, (iii) a change 
in ownership of an equity interest, or any issuance of additional equity interests to new persons or entities 
not listed on Attachment A, (iv) any merger, consolidation or sale of substantially all assets, if you are an 
entity, (v) any sale or lease of the Franchised Salon, or a sale of the Location if you own it, or any 
eviction, detainer, foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure that results in the loss of possession of and 
control over the Franchised Restaurant, (vi) any delegation of management rights or responsibilities of the 
Franchised Restaurant, or (vii) any distribution, gift or donation of any interest in the Franchised 
Restaurant.  The creation of any profits interest, synthetic equity, phantom equity or similar interest that 
does not create ownership economic rights or voting rights is not a transfer.    

55. Your Representations.  You represent to us as follows: 

(a) Independent Investigation.  You have conducted an independent investigation of 
the business contemplated by this Agreement and recognize that it involves substantial business risks, 
making the success of the venture largely dependent on your management skills and resources.  You have 
not received from us or our Affiliates, and have not relied upon, any oral or written, express or implied 
projection, representation, warranty or guaranty regarding the potential sales, revenues, income, profits or 
success of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement.   You have had the opportunity to 
consult with independent advisors of your own selection such as a lawyer or accountant before making 
your decision to sign this Agreement and develop and operate a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant. 

(b) This Transaction.  You and the persons signing this Agreement for you have full 
power and authority and have been duly authorized, to enter into and perform or cause performance of 
your obligations under this Agreement.  You have obtained all necessary approvals of your Owners, 
Board of Directors and lenders.  No executory franchise, brand license or affiliation agreement for the 
Location exists other than this Agreement.  Attachment A accurately states your Owners.  Your 
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement will not violate, create a default under or breach 
of any charter, bylaws, agreement or other contract, license, permit, indebtedness, certificate, order, 
decree or security instrument to which you or any of your Owners is a party or is subject or to which the 
Location is subject.  Neither you nor the Location is the subject of any current or pending merger, sale, 
dissolution, receivership, bankruptcy, foreclosure, reorganization, insolvency, or similar action or 
proceeding on the date you execute this Agreement and was not within the three years preceding such 
date, except as disclosed in your franchise application.  To the best of your knowledge, neither you, your 
Owners, your officers, directors, contractors, or employees or anyone else affiliated or associated with 
you, whether by common ownership, by contract, or otherwise, has been designated as, or are, a terrorist, 
a “Specially Designated National” or a “Blocked Person” under U.S. Executive Order 13224, in lists 
published by the U.S. Department of Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets Control, or otherwise. 

(c) No Misrepresentations or Implied Covenants.  All written information you 
submit to us about the Location, you, your Owners, any guarantor, or the finances of any such person or 
entity, was or will be at the time delivered and when you sign this Agreement, true, accurate and 
complete, and such information contains no misrepresentation of a material fact, and does not omit any 
material fact necessary to make the information disclosed not misleading under the circumstances. There 
are no express or implied covenants or warranties, oral or written, between we and you except as 
expressly stated in this Agreement. 

(d) We and our representatives have made or communicated to you no claims of 
assured or guaranteed success of the business contemplated by this Agreement prior to signing this 
Agreement.  You voluntarily enter into this Agreement and undertake all the terms and conditions thereof 
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without any such inducements, promises, or representations.  Without limiting the foregoing, we 
expressly disclaim the making of, and you acknowledge that you have not received or relied upon, any 
representations, warranties or guarantees, express or implied, as to the potential volume, profits or success 
of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement, or as to the suitability of any selected or 
proposed Location as a successful location for the Franchised Restaurant. 



 
33 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Agreement, 
intending to be legally bound, as of the Effective Date. 

Taziki’s Franchising, LLC    ___________________________________ 

 
By: ____________________________  By: _______________________________ 
Its: ____________________________  Its: _______________________________ 
Effective Date:___________________  Date: _____________________________ 
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Attachment A 

Transaction Details 

 1. Location of Franchised Restaurant:          
              
 
 2. Time to complete and open Franchised Restaurant:  nine (9) months after the 
Effective Date. 
 
 3. Assigned Area:   The geographic area within a radius (the “Applicable Radius”) 
from the Franchised Restaurant of (i) one mile in counties having a population over 750,000; (ii) 
two miles in counties having a population under 750,000 and at least 250,000, or (iii) five miles in 
counties with a population of less than 250,000.  The population of the county where the Franchised 
Restaurant will be located is: _______________________ 
 
 4. Address and Contact Information of Franchisee: 
 
 5. Initial Franchise Fee: $35,000.00 
 
 6. Marketing Fee as of Effective Date:  ___% of Net Cash Sales 
 
 7. Your Owners: 
 

Name Address Telephone Email Percentage 
Ownership 

     
     
     
     
 
* Person designated as Owner-Operator. 
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Attachment B 

Automated Clearing House Payment Authorization 
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ACH Authorization Form 
***This form MUST be accompanied by a Printed Voided Check or Bank Letter*** 

 
Add   Delete   Change     

 
Company Name:         
Address:            
City:      State:  Zip:    
Phone:       

 
Funds Settlement Information 

 
Bank Name:          
Account Owner:         
Account Name:         
Address:          
City:      State:  Zip:   
Routing # (9 digits)       
Account #       

 
       (hereinafter referred to as User) authorizes Taziki’s 
Franchising, LLC to initiate ACH transfer entries and to credit and/or debit the account identified 
herein. This authorization shall remain in effect unless and until Taziki’s Franchising, LLC 
receives written notification from User that this authorization has been terminated in such time 
and manner to allow Taziki’s Franchising, LLC to act. Undersigned represents and warrants to 
Taziki’s Franchising, LLC that the person executing this form is an authorized signatory on the 
Account referenced above and all information regarding the Account and Account Owner is true 
and correct. 
 

              /     /      
Account Owner Signature      Date 
 
            
Print Name and Title 
 

 
ATTACH PRE-PRINTED VOIDED CHECK 

OR 
BANK LETTER

   



C-1 
 

Attachment C 

Guaranty and Restriction Agreement



C-2 
 

GUARANTY AND RESTRICTION AGREEMENT 

The undersigned owners (the “Guarantors”) of _______ (the “Franchisee”) enter into this 
Guaranty and Restriction Agreement (this “Agreement”) as of the Effective Date. 

1. Guaranty of Obligations.  To induce Taziki’s Franchising, LLC, its successors and 
assigns (“you”) to sign the Franchise Agreement (the “Agreement”) with the party named as the 
“Franchisee,” to which this Guaranty is attached, the undersigned, jointly and severally (“we, “our” or 
“us”), irrevocably and unconditionally (i) warrant to you that Franchisee’s representations and warranties 
in the Agreement are true and correct as stated, and (ii) guaranty that Franchisee’s obligations under the 
Agreement, including any amendments and note, will be punctually paid and performed.  Upon default by 
Franchisee and notice from you we will immediately make each payment and perform or cause 
Franchisee to perform, each unpaid or unperformed obligation of Franchisee under the Agreement.  
Without affecting our obligations under this Guaranty, you may without notice to us extend, modify or 
release any indebtedness or obligation of Franchisee, or settle, adjust or compromise any claims against 
Franchisee.  We waive notice of amendment of the Agreement.  Upon the death of an individual 
guarantor, the estate of the guarantor will be bound by this Guaranty for obligations of Franchisee to you 
existing at the time of death, and the obligations of all other guarantors will continue in full force and 
effect.  This Guaranty may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original but all of which together shall constitute one in the same instrument. 

2. Restrictions on Transfer of Equity Ownership of Franchisee.  The Guarantors will not 
transfer, assign or pledge any of their direct or indirect equity interests in the Franchisee to any person 
without the prior consent of the Franchisor, except as authorized under the Franchise Agreement. 

3. Other Provisions.  The Guarantors, as owners of the Franchisee, acknowledge that this 
Agreement and the Franchise Agreement inure to the benefit of the Franchisee and to the undersigned.  
The Guarantors expressly adopt, ratify, incorporate into this Agreement, and agree to be bound 
individually by the following provisions of the Franchise Agreement as if they were parties to such 
Franchise Agreement:  Sections 11 (Covenants Not to Compete); 12 (Confidential Information); 22 
(Assignment); 23 (Right of First Refusal); 24 (Business Entity Franchisee); 32 (Certain Waivers); 34 
(Resolution of Disputes); 34 (Our Option to Purchase); 46 (Governing Law); 47 (Venue); and 48 (Legal 
Fees). 

Executed and delivered as of the Effective Date. 

The Guarantors:       
 
 
 By:_________________________________________ 
 
 Printed Name:  ________________________________ 

 

 By:_________________________________________ 
 
 Printed Name:  ________________________________ 
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Attachment D 

Management Confidentiality 
and Non-Competition Agreement 
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MANAGEMENT CONFIDENTIALITY 
AND NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT 

The undersigned Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant on-premises manager (“Manager”), in 
consideration of the access to training and confidential information he or she has received or will receive 
from Taziki’s Franchising, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company, and/or its affiliates (collectively, 
the “Company”) in connection with Manager’s employment with the Company’s franchisee named below 
(the “Franchisee”), hereby covenants and agrees as follows: 

1. Confidentiality Agreement.  Manager acknowledges that, while employed by the 
Franchisee, Manager has and will receive certain confidential information and knowledge concerning the 
Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant business of the Company which the Company wishes to protect, 
including (without limitation) information, knowledge, know-how, recipes, formulae, materials, 
equipment, techniques, systems, and other data relating to or comprising the Taziki’s Mediterranean Café 
Restaurant franchise system.  Confidential information includes the Operations Manual and other 
materials and information supplied by Company to the Franchisee that is identified as confidential at the 
time of disclosure or before.  Manager shall not reveal that confidential information to any other party, 
except the Company’s or the Franchisee’s independent public accountants, Manager’s legal counsel (if 
that counsel also agrees to maintain the confidentiality of the confidential information), or as otherwise 
required by law.  Manager shall not use or disclose the confidential information at any time for the 
purpose of competition with the Company, its successors and assigns, or Franchisee.  When Manager’s 
employment with Franchisee terminates for any reason, the Manager promptly shall surrender to 
Franchisee all papers, documents, writings and other property produced by Manager or coming into 
Manager’s possession by or through Manager’s employment with the Franchisee containing confidential 
information or related in any way to confidential information.  All of the foregoing materials shall remain 
the property of the Company, its successors, or its assigns. 

2. Covenant Not to Compete.  During the term of Manager’s employment with the 
Franchisee and for a period of 24 months after the termination of Manager’s employment with the 
Franchisee for any reason, Manager shall not engage in, directly or indirectly as a principal, agent, trustee, 
employee, consultant, independent contractor or through any corporation, partnership, association, or 
other entity, any business or be employed in a restaurant or prepared food retailer that is the same or 
similar to a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant at any location within a 10-mile radius of any 
Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant location at which Manager worked or within a 10-mile radius of 
any then-existing Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant location. 

3. Indemnification and Injunctive Relief.   Manager shall indemnify and hold the Company 
and the Franchisee harmless against any losses, damages, costs, expenses, claims or actions, including 
attorneys’ fees and costs, proximately caused by any breach of this Agreement by Manager.  Manager 
shall pay to the Company any compensation, profits or economic benefits realized by the Manager 
resulting from any breach of this Agreement.  The Company shall have the right to injunctive and other 
equitable relief prohibiting the Manager from any violation or threatened violation of this Agreement, 
without posting any bond or security. 

4. Governing Law.  The laws of Alabama shall govern this Agreement. 

5. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with 
regard to the subject matter of this Agreement and replaces and supersedes all other written and oral 
agreements and statements of the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 
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6. Limitations.  This is not a contract of employment and this creates no employment 
relationship between Manager and the Company.  Manager is not a third party beneficiary of any contract 
between the Company and the Franchisee.  Franchisee remains the sole employer of Manager and is 
solely responsible for the recruitment, selection, training, supervision, compensation, benefits, insurance, 
worker’s compensation, discipline and termination of Manager.  During any period of on the job training 
of Manager by the Company, Franchisee shall remain the sole employer of Manager and shall be 
responsible for controlling all aspects of Manager’s employment. 

Executed and delivered this _____ day of ________________________, 20___. 

 
Manager:       
 
__________________________________ 
Signature 
 
__________________________________ 
Printed Name 

 

Franchisee: __________________________________________ 
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Attachment E 

Lease Rider 
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LEASE RIDER 

This Lease Rider is made and entered into as of ____________, 20___ by and among Taziki’s 
Franchising, LLC, an Alabama limited liability corporation (“Franchisor”), ____________________, a 
____________________ (“Tenant/Operator”) and _____________________, a 
_____________________ (“Landlord”). 

Recitals.  Tenant/Operator and Landlord desire to enter into a lease (the “Lease”) pursuant to 
which Tenant/Operator will occupy and finish the premises located at __________________________ 
(the “Premises”) for use and operation of a Taziki’s Mediterranean Cafe® restaurant (the “Restaurant”) 
authorized under a Franchise Agreement to be executed between Franchisor and Tenant/Operator prior to 
the opening of the Restaurant (the “Franchise Agreement”).  As a condition to Franchisor’s approval of 
the Premises as the location for the Restaurant, the Tenant/Operator is required under the Franchise 
Agreement to execute this Lease Rider along with the Landlord and Franchisor; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual undertakings and commitments set forth 
herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

(1) During the term of the Franchise Agreement, the Premises shall be used only for the 
operation of the Restaurant. 

(2) Landlord consents to Tenant/Operator’s use and display of such proprietary marks (the 
“Proprietary Marks”) and signs, decor items, color schemes, plans, specifications and related components 
of the Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant system (the “System”) as Franchisor has prescribed, and 
may in the future prescribe, for the Restaurant.  Landlord affirms that the Lease does not prohibit the 
service of any menu items of the current System, based on the menu provided to Landlord. 

(3) Landlord agrees to send Franchisor conformed, legible copies of any and all letters and 
notices sent to Tenant/Operator pertaining to the Lease and the Premises at the same time that such letters 
and notices are sent to Tenant/Operator. 

(4) Franchisor shall have the right, and Landlord consents to allow Franchisor, to enter the 
Premises during hours when the Premises is available for tenant entry to make any modification or 
alteration necessary to protect the Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant, the System and Proprietary 
Marks or to cure any default under the Franchise Agreement, or under the Lease, without being guilty of 
trespass or any other crime or tort. 

(5) In the event of Tenant/Operator’s default under the Lease, Franchisor may, but has no 
obligation, to cure the default.  Franchisor shall make this determination within thirty (30) days after 
Franchisor receives notice of the Lease default from Landlord.  If Franchisor elects to cure the default, 
Franchisor shall cure the default within thirty (30) days of such election or, if the default cannot be 
reasonably cured within such thirty (30) day period, then Franchisor shall commence and proceed to act 
diligently to cure the default within such time as is reasonably necessary to cure the default.   

(6) Franchisor has an option to acquire the Restaurant from Tenant/Operator if the Franchise 
Agreement expires or terminates.  If Franchisor exercises the option, it will notify Landlord when it 
notifies Tenant/Operator.  If Franchisor so exercises its option, or makes a different arrangement with 
Tenant/Operator to acquire the Restaurant, then Landlord shall permit Tenant/Operator to assign the 
Lease to Franchisor or to Franchisor’s affiliated assignee or designee as successor in interest 
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(“Successor”) to Tenant/Operator, which shall be obligated to assume Tenant/Operator’s obligations 
under the Lease.   Successor shall attorn to Landlord under the Lease and Landlord shall attorn to and 
agree not to disturb the tenancy of Successor. In such event Successor shall assume Tenant/Operator’s 
occupancy rights, rights under any renewal or purchase options, and the right to sublease the Premises, for 
the remainder of the term of the Lease including any applicable renewal periods.   

(7)  Landlord hereby consents to such assignment and agrees not to impose or assess any 
assignment fee or similar charge or increase or accelerate rent under the Lease in connection with such 
assignment, or require Successor to pay any rent or other financial obligation of Tenant/Operator to 
Landlord arising prior to the assignment.  Landlord agrees to look solely to the Tenant/Operator and its 
guarantors for any rents or other financial obligations owed to Landlord arising prior to such assignment.  
Landlord and Tenant/Operator acknowledge that Franchisor is not a party to the Lease and shall have no 
liability under the Lease, unless and until the Lease is assigned to, and assumed by Franchisor as 
Successor. 

(8) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Lease Rider and in the Lease, Successor is 
expressly authorized, without the consent of the Landlord, to sublet the Leased Premises to an authorized 
System franchisee, provided such subletting is specifically subject to the terms of the Lease and further 
provided the franchisee expressly assumes in writing all obligations of the Lease.  Franchisor agrees to 
notify Landlord as to the name of the franchisee within then (10) days after such subletting. 

(9) Tenant/Operator shall not assign the Lease or renew or extend the term thereof without 
the prior written consent of Franchisor. 

(10) Landlord and Tenant/Operator shall not amend or otherwise modify the Lease in any 
manner that could materially affect any of the foregoing without the prior written consent of Franchisor. 

(11) This Lease Rider will supersede any conflicting terms of the Lease. 

[remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease Rider as of the date first above 
written. 

 
FRANCHISOR: 
 
TAZIKI’S FRANCHISING, LLC 
 
 
By: ________________________________________ 
Name:    
Title:    

TENANT/OPERATOR: 

____________________________________________ 
 
 
By:  
Name:    
Title:    

LANDLORD: 

___________________________________________ 
 
 
By:  
Name:    
Title:   
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Attachment F 

Nontraditional Concept 
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NONTRADITIONAL CONCEPT 

ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

This Addendum to Franchise Agreement (this “Addendum”) is made and entered into as of 
_______________, by and between Taziki’s Franchising, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company 
(“we,” “us” or “our”), as franchisor, and _________________________, a _________________ (you” or 
“your”), as franchisee.  This Addendum relates to and modifies that certain Franchise Agreement (“the 
“Prime Agreement”) between the parties.  This Addendum shall be controlling in the event of any conflict 
between the Prime Agreement and this Addendum.  All definitions in the Prime Agreement shall apply to 
this Addendum unless the context otherwise indicates.  The parties mutually agree, for good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which the parties mutually acknowledge, as follows: 

1. Nontraditional Concept Restaurant.  You have requested, and we have approved, the 
development and operation of a Nontraditional Concept Restaurant to be located in 
___________________________ (the “Host Facility”) and within the Host Facility, in the 
following location (the “Location”): 

2. Lease with Host Facility.  You represent and warrant to us that the Lease of the Location (the 
“Host Lease”) with the owner or landlord of the Host Facility (“Host Operator”) (i) allows for 
the operation of the Restaurant under the Franchised System without material modification, 
supplier or menu limitations, (ii) provides for [a common seating area convenient to the 
Restaurant][no common seating area but contemplates carry out servings for all food concepts 
in the vicinity of the Location], (iii) allows for the installation and operation of all equipment 
necessary to prepare the menu items of the Franchised System as of the Effective Date, (iv) 
permits display of the Proprietary Marks in signage over the Location serving area, (v) [allows 
you to serve beer subject to licensure and compliance with applicable alcoholic beverage 
regulations][does not allow you to serve beer], and (v) [permits the Restaurant to open and 
operate during lunch and dinner hours 365 days per year][limits operation to certain event 
dates and times or periods when active food service at the Host Facility is permitted]. 

3. Confidential Information.  No inspection right in the Lease shall allow or imply our consent to 
grant to Host Operator or its representatives access to any confidential or proprietary 
information we provide to you. 

4. Rent Payments.  You will provide us with copies of any rental reports and forms you submit to 
Host Operator that show the Net Cash Sales of the Restaurant or calculate any percentage rent 
payable under the Lease. 

5. Indemnification.  You acknowledge that the indemnification set forth in Section 28 of the 
Prime Agreement extends to any claim arising from the condition, premises or events 
occurring at the Host Facility, whether the Host Operator or you control the space or activity 
from which the claim arises. 

6. Local Marketing.  You will receive credit toward your local marketing expense requirement 
under Section 13 of the Prime Agreement for the documented amounts you contribute to the 
marketing or advertising cooperative of the Host Facility. 

7. Upgrade of Restaurant.  You represent to us that the Lease will permit you to upgrade the 
Restaurant as and when contemplated by the Prime Agreement, subject only to Host Operator 
approval, which it may not unreasonably withhold or delay. 
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8. Technology & Communications.  You represent to us that the Host Facility will support and 
the Lease allows you to install and maintain the technology and communications we require 
for the Restaurant as of the Effective Date under the Franchised System. 

9. New Menu Items.  Notwithstanding the Prime Agreement, you will not be obligated to prepare 
and serve any new menu item that we mandate under the Franchised System after the 
Effective Date if such item is prohibited under the Lease. 

In witness whereof, the parties have executed and delivered this Agreement, intending to be legally 
bound, as of the Effective Date. 

Taziki’s Franchising, LLC    ___________________________________ 

 
By: ________________________________  By: ______________________________ 
Its: ________________________________  Its: _______________________________ 
Effective Date:_______________________  Date: _____________________________ 
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Attachment G 

Receipt of Operations Manual 
and Confidentiality Agreement 
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RECEIPT FOR OPERATIONS MANUAL 

The undersigned franchisee (“Franchisee”), acknowledges receipt of Taziki’s Mediterranean Café 
Operations Manual No. ______ and/or receipt of access codes and instructions to access the on-line 
version of the Operations Manual.  The Manual is being loaned, and access is being granted, to 
Franchisee under the Franchise Agreement between Franchisee and Taziki’s Franchising, LLC 
(“Company”).  Franchisee expressly agrees as follows: 

1. Operations Manual.  If the Operations Manual is misplaced, destroyed (in whole or in 
part), or otherwise lost, the Franchisee must pay for a replacement Operations Manual from the Company 
at a cost of $500.00 and must sign a new receipt.  The Franchisee shall not copy or otherwise reproduce 
any portion of the Operations Manual.  The Operations Manual shall not be removed from the premises of 
the Location identified in the Franchise Agreement.  The Franchisee shall not loan or disclose the 
Operations Manual to any third party.  The Franchisee shall not communicate, transmit, describe, 
summarize, or otherwise convey the information contained in the Operations Manual, in whole or in part, 
to any third party not employed by the Franchisee to operate the Franchised Restaurant.  The Operations 
Manual shall at all times remain the property of the Company, its successors and assigns. 

2. Confidentiality Agreement.  The Franchisee acknowledges that the Franchisee will 
receive certain confidential information and knowledge contained in the Operations Manual that is the 
subject of confidentiality obligations in the Franchise Agreement.  When the Franchise Agreement with 
the Company terminates for any reason, the Franchisee promptly shall surrender to the Company the 
Operations Manual identified above, along with all papers, documents, writings and other property 
produced to the Franchisee or coming into the Franchisee’s possession by or through the relationship with 
the Company and related in any way to the confidential information.  All of the foregoing materials shall 
remain the property of the Company, its successors, or its assigns. 

3. Indemnification and Injunctive Relief.  The Franchisee’s obligations to indemnify the 
Company and accept injunctive relief described in the Franchise Agreement shall apply to breaches of 
Franchisee’s undertakings regarding the Operations Manual 

4. Supplement to Franchise Agreement.  This Receipt is a supplement and subject to the 
Franchise Agreement in all respects.  

Executed and delivered this _____ day of ________________________, 2________. 

Franchisee: 

__________________________________ 
 
__________________________________ 
Signature 
__________________________________ 
Printed Name 
__________________________________ 
Title: 
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Help Desk Services Agreement 

HELP DESK 
SERVICE AGREEMENT 

  

THIS AGREEMENT is made on April 6, 2015 
 
BETWEEN  

 

1. [the Buyer] (the "Buyer"); and  
2. Bodnar Group Consulting, LLC (the "Service Provider"),  

collectively referred to as the "Parties".  
 
 
RECITALS  

The Buyer wishes to be provided with the Services (defined below) by the Service Provider and the Service Provider 
agrees to provide the Services to the Buyer on the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

1. Key Terms  

1.1 Services 

The Service Provider shall provide the following services ("Services") to the Buyer in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement: 
 
Help Desk Plan 

 24/7 “Help Desk Support” 

 No Call Limit 

 “Remote Menu Changes” 

 POS Data Backup 

 Remote Support 
 
1.2 Definition of Services  

 
Services are defined specifically below and subject to the below Terms and Conditions: 
 

a. Definition of Remote Menu Changes: “Remote Menu Changes” is a service including price 

changes, promotions set ups, routine additions of new menu items, and POS layout. Minimum lead 
time on “Remote Menu Changes” is 3 business days. Any “Remote Menu Changes” requested in 
less than 3 business days will be billed separately as “emergency” “Remote Menu Changes.” 
“Remote Menu Changes” does not include building new menus, re-designing existing menus, or 
emergency menu setups or redesigns. Any service provided outside the scope of Remote Menu 
Changes will be billed hourly at $85/hr.  

 
b. Definition of Help Desk Support: “Help Desk Support” is a service including Email support and 

Phone support to troubleshoot problems related to “Covered Products and Services.” Help Desk 
Support does not include services such as on-site technical support, on-site hardware repair, on-
site installation, on-site replacement, upgrade labor, virus eradication, training, report/cash or credit 
card balancing, processor charges, programming, database management, network security, or 
Windows/Mac PC software or hardware support. This contract does not include the cost of 
replacement hardware parts. This contract does not include management of other vendors. Any 
service rendered by the Service Provider to the Buyer outside the scope of Covered Products and 
Services will be billed hourly at $85/hr.  
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c. Definition of Covered Products and Services: “Covered Products and Services” are limited 

exclusively to NCR POS terminals, POS printers, Back of House Computer (only if supplied by the 
Service Provider), network hardware (only if supplied by the Service Provider), NCR Video 
hardware, NCR Credit Card software module, NCR POS software and other products and services 
to be specified by Service Provider. All Covered Products and Services are limited to products and 
services provided exclusively by Service Provider, no third party provided products or services shall 
be supported. Covered Products and Services do not include any hardware without current, valid 
and up to date Aloha/NCR maintenance agreements in place. Covered Products and services do 
not include any third party configured network setup or any network setup not running on Service 
Provider’s managed network, Freshlink.  

 
d. On-Site Support: On-site support is not included in Services. Service Provider reserves the right to 

refer Buyer to a local or national provider for any and all on-site service requests. Buyer is 
responsible for contacting and coordinating on-site repairs directly with third party providers. 

 
e. Replacement Hardware – Any and all replacement hardware ordered, shipped, or handled by 

Service Provider shall be paid for by Buyer same day with Credit Card unless there is an 
independent legal agreement between the Buyer and the Service Provider stating otherwise. 

 
f. Refusal of Service - Service Provider reserves the right to refuse to perform any service outside 

the scope or nature of this agreement for any reason.  
 

g. Emergency Service – Any demand for services outside the normal scope of the services offered 

herein shall be billed at twice the normal rate.   

1.3 Delivery of the Services 

a. Start date: The Service Provider shall commence the provision of the Services upon installation, 

training and or usage of said products and services.  

1.4 Site 

The Service Provider shall provide the Services to the following site(s):  

a. Number of Sites: [Fill in] 
b. Site List (list of each site with address):  

[insert details here if applicable] 

1.5 Price  

a. As consideration for the provision of the Services by the Service Provider, the price for the 
provision of the Services is ("Price"). 

 $250/month per site 

b. The Buyer shall pay for the Service Provider’s out-of-pocket expenses and billable time by the hour 
for any and all services provided outside the scope of Terms & Conditions in Clause 1.2 (a), Clause 
1.2 (b), Clause 1.2 (c), Clause 1.2 (d), and Clause 1.2 (e). 

1.6 Payment  

a. The Buyer agrees to pay the Price to the Service Provider on the following dates:  
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At the beginning of each period (monthly) for that period, Service Provider will submit an invoice to 
the Buyer for services commencing on installation, training and or usage of said products and 
services. Partial periods may be pro-rated. 
 

b. The Service Provider will pull amount due via ACH transfer from the Buyer on the 8th day of the 
period (monthly) or next business day. 
  

c. Service Provider reserves the right to refuse service for any and all services provided outside the 
scope of Terms & Conditions in Clause 1.2 (a), Clause 1.2 (b), Clause 1.2 (c), Clause 1.2 (d), and 
Clause 1.2 (e) without payment via Credit Card same day.  
 

d. Any charges payable under this Agreement are exclusive of any applicable taxes, tariff surcharges 
or other like amounts assessed by any governmental entity arising as a result of the provision of 
the Services by the Service Provider to the Buyer under this Agreement and such shall be payable 
by the Buyer to the Service Provider in addition to all other charges payable hereunder.  
 

2. General terms  

2.1 Limitation of liability  

a. Subject to the Buyer’s obligation to pay the Price to the Service Provider, either party’s liability in 
contract, tort or otherwise (including negligence) arising directly out of or in connection with this 
Agreement or the performance or observance of its obligations under this Agreement and every 
applicable part of it shall be limited in aggregate to the Price.  

b. To the extent it is lawful to exclude the following heads of loss and subject to the Buyer’s obligation 
to pay the Price, in no event shall either party be liable for any loss of profits, goodwill, loss of 
business, loss of data or any other indirect or consequential loss or damage whatsoever.  

c. Buyer agrees to indemnify Service Provider against any liability for loss or damage associated with 
any EDC Batch settlement including, but not limited to, loss or damage resulting from duplicate 
batches, failed transactions or charges associated with re-settling a batch.  Buyer also agrees to 
indemnify Service Provider against any liability for loss or damages including, but not limited to, 
charges from the a credit card processor, credit card companies, reversal charges, bank fees or 
any other charges that may be incurred from re-settling an EDC batch.  This also includes 
instances where a failed batch has, in fact, settled and Service Provider has been directed to re-
settle the batch.  The Buyer assumes all liability and responsibility for any loss or damage, 
monetary or otherwise related thereto if any should be incurred. 

2.2 Term and Termination  

a. This Agreement shall be effective on the date hereof and shall continue, unless terminated sooner 
in accordance with Clause 2.2(b), for as long as the Buyer and Taziki’s Franchising, LLC’s 
Franchise Agreement(s) for the site(s) listed in Section 1.4  of this Agreement remains in full force 
and effect. 

b. Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon notice in writing if:  
i. the other is in breach of any material obligation contained in this Agreement, which is not 

remedied (if the same is capable of being remedied) within 30 days of written notice from 
the other Party so to do; or  

ii. a voluntary arrangement is approved, a bankruptcy or an administration order is made or 
a receiver or administrative receiver is appointed over any of the other Party's assets or an 
undertaking or a resolution or petition to wind up the other Party is passed or presented 
(other than for the purposes of amalgamation or reconstruction) or any analogous 
procedure in the country of incorporation of either party or if any circumstances arise 
which entitle the Court or a creditor to appoint a receiver, administrative receiver or 
administrator or to present a winding-up petition or make a winding-up order in respect of 
the other Party.  

c. Any termination of this Agreement (howsoever occasioned) shall not affect any accrued rights or 
liabilities of either Party nor shall it affect the coming into force or the continuance in force of any 
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provision hereof which is expressly or by implication intended to come into or continue in force on 
or after such termination.  

2.3 Relationship of the Parties 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that the Services performed by the Service Provider, its employees, 
agents or sub-contractors shall be as an independent contractor and that nothing in this Agreement shall be 
deemed to constitute a partnership, joint venture, agency relationship or otherwise between the parties. 

2.4 Confidentiality 

Neither Party will use, copy, adapt, alter or part with possession of any information of the other which is 
disclosed or otherwise comes into its possession under or in relation to this Agreement and which is of a 
confidential nature. This obligation will not apply to information which the recipient can prove was in its 
possession at the date it was received or obtained or which the recipient obtains from some other person 
with good legal title to it or which is in or comes into the public domain otherwise than through the default or 
negligence of the recipient or which is independently developed by or for the recipient. 

2.5 Notices 

Any notice which may be given by a Party under this Agreement shall be deemed to have been duly 
delivered if delivered by hand, first class post, facsimile transmission or electronic mail to the address of the 
other Party as specified in this Agreement or any other address notified in writing to the other Party. Subject 
to any applicable local law provisions to the contrary, any such communication shall be deemed to have 
been made to the other Party, if delivered by: 

a. first class post, 2 days from the date of posting;  
b. hand or by facsimile transmission, on the date of such delivery or transmission; and  
c. electronic mail, when the Party sending such communication receives confirmation of such delivery 

by electronic mail.  

2.6 Miscellaneous  

a. The failure of either party to enforce its rights under this Agreement at any time for any period shall 
not be construed as a waiver of such rights.  

b. If any part, term or provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal or unenforceable neither the 
validity nor enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement shall be affected.  

c. Neither Party shall assign or transfer all or any part of its rights under this Agreement without the 
consent of the other Party.  

d. This Agreement may not be amended for any other reason without the prior written agreement of 
both Parties.  

e. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties relating to the subject 
matter hereof unless any representation or warranty made about this Agreement was made 
fraudulently and, save as may be expressly referred to or referenced herein, supersedes all prior 
representations, writings, negotiations or understandings with respect hereto.  

f. Neither Party shall be liable for failure to perform or delay in performing any obligation under this 
Agreement if the failure or delay is caused by any circumstances beyond its reasonable control, 
including but not limited to acts of god, war, civil commotion or industrial dispute. If such delay or 
failure continues for at least 7 days, the Party not affected by such delay or failure shall be entitled 
to terminate this Agreement by notice in writing to the other.  

g. This Clause 2.6(g) and Clauses 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4, 2.5 and 2.6 of this Agreement shall survive any 
termination or expiration.  

h. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the jurisdiction in which the Buyer is located (or if 
the Buyer is based in more than one country, the country in which its headquarters are located) 
(the "Territory") and the parties agree to submit disputes arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement to the non-exclusive of the courts in the Territory.  
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AS WITNESS the hands of the Parties hereto or their duly authorized representatives the day and year first above 
written. 

SIGNED by  [Name]  ) 
for and on behalf of ) 
[the Buyer] ) 
 

 

SIGNED by  [Name] ) 
for and on behalf of ) 
Bodnar Group Consulting, LLC ) 
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    BGC TOOLS AND SERVICES 
          SITE SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is made on April 6, 2015 
 
BETWEEN  

1. [the Buyer]  (the "Buyer"); and  
2. Bodnar Group Consulting, LLC (the "Service Provider"),  

collectively referred to as the "Parties".  
 
RECITALS  

The Buyer wishes to be provided with the Services (defined below) by the Service Provider and the Service Provider agrees to 
provide the Services to the Buyer on the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

1. Key Terms  

1.1 Services 

The Service Provider shall provide the following services ("Services") to the Buyer in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement: 

a. Licensing and Access to BGC Tools (the “Tools”) Software as a Service (SaaS) 
b. Database Management 
c. Software Maintenance 
d. Help Desk Support 
e. Software as a Service (SaaS) & Support for FreshKDS  
f. Software as a Service (SaaS) & Support for FreshRecipes 
g. Managed Network Service & Support for Freshlink  

Defined in Clause 1.2 

1.2 Definition of the Services 

Services are defined specifically below and subject to the below Terms and Conditions: 
 

a. The Tools software functionality is described below: 
 

i. Inventory Functions  

1. Food Cost Ideal v. Actual 
2. Recipe Database 
3. Raw Materials Database 
4. Invoicing 

ii. Financial Functions  

1. Flash PNL 
2. Sales Projections 
3. Daily Sales Reporting 

iii. Production Functions  

1. Order Guides 
2. Prep Sheets 
3. Advanced Orders 

iv. Labor Functions 

1. Employee Maintenance 
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2. Scheduling 
v. Cloud access and Integration 

 
b. Database Management: “Database Management” is a service including recipe fixes, data hosting, data 

management, regular system updates, backup service, and ongoing preventive maintenance. Database 
Management does not include building new recipes, new menus, re-designing existing menus, or new menu 
rollouts. Any service provided outside the scope of Database Management will be billed hourly at $85/hr.  
 

c. Definition of Software Maintenance: “Software Maintenance” includes regular software updates and bug 

fixes designed to keep the software operating and functioning properly. Software maintenance does not 
include developing new functionality at Buyer’s request. Any software development service rendered by the 
Service Provider to the Buyer outside the scope of Software Maintenance will be billed hourly at $100/hr. or 
on a project basis.  

 
d. Definition of Help Desk Support: “Help Desk Support” is a service including Email support and Phone 

support to troubleshoot technical software problems related to “Covered Products and Services.” Help Desk 
Support does not include services such as operational analysis, food cost analysis, invoice reconciliation, 
food cost reconciliation, operational consulting, on-site technical support, on-site hardware repair, on-site 
installation, upgrade labor, virus eradication, training, programming, database management, network 
security, or Windows/Mac PC software or hardware support. This contract does not include management of 
other third party vendors. Any service rendered by the Service Provider to the Buyer outside the scope of 
Covered Products and Services will be billed hourly at $85/hr. 

 
e. Definition of SaaS & Support for FreshKDS: A proprietary mobile and/or tablet based Kitchen Display 

System that integrates data from Buyer’s Point of Sale system. 
 

f. Definition of SaaS & Support for FreshRecipes: A proprietary mobile and/or tablet based Recipe Book. 

 
g. Definition of Managed Network Service & Support for Freshlink:  Freshlink is a complete managed 

network for your business. The backbone of your systems, segregating guest services and POS services for 
PCI compliance, and fully monitored for performance, health and uptime of devices. Up-front costs for data 
circuits, hardware and installation apply. 
  

h. Definition of Covered Products and Services: ”Covered Products and Services” are limited exclusively to 

the Tools and related products and databases.  
  

i. Operational Consulting: If the Service Provider is asked to provide Help Desk Support for the Buyer and at 

any point discovers user error on the part of the Buyer or its agents or incorrect data input by the Buyer or its 
agents is the cause of the problem the Service Provider reserves the right to bill the Buyer on an hourly 
basis at $85/hr. with a one hour minimum for all operational consulting services rendered. 
 

j. On-Site Support: On-site support is not included in Services. Service Provider reserves the right to refer 

Buyer to a local or national provider for any and all on-site service requests. Buyer is responsible for 
contacting and coordinating on-site repairs directly with third party providers. 

 
k. Setup and Installation: This service agreement does not cover the initial installation of Tools on any 

computer or the reinstallation of Tools on a new computer for an existing site. Setup and installation of Tools 
is not covered for remote users under this service agreement. Installation will be billed at an hourly rate of 
$85/hr.  

 
l. Remote users: This contract does not cover Services provided to remote users. Remote users are defined 

as users who use Services outside the sites listed in Clause 1.4 (a) and Clause 1.4 (b). Services will only be 
provided to remote users with a valid Remote User Service Agreement.  

1.3 Delivery of the Services 

a. Start date: The Service Provider shall commence the provision of the Services upon installation, training 
and or usage of said products and services.  
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1.4 Site 

The Service Provider shall provide the Services to the following site(s):  

a. Number of Sites: [Fill in] 
b. Site List (list of each site with address):  

[insert details here if applicable] 

1.5 Price  

a. As consideration for the provision of the Services (a) (b) (c) & (d) by the Service Provider, the price for the 
provision of the Services (a) (b) (c) & (d) is $400 per month per site ("Tools Price" includes cloud access 

license for one user, subsequent users are $50 additional each per month. Also includes the data integration 
fee of $50 per month). 
 

b. As consideration for the provision of the Services (e) by the Service Provider, the price for the provision of 
the Services (e) is $25 per month per site (" KDS Price"). 

 
c. As consideration for the provision of the Services (f) by the Service Provider, the price for the provision of 

the Services (f) is $25 per month per site ("Recipes Price"). 

 
d. As consideration for the provision of the Services (f) by the Service Provider, the price for the provision of 

the Services (f) is $50 per month per site (“Managed Network Services Price). 

 
e. Tools Price, KDS Price, and Recipes Price, Managed Network Service Price and other pricing are also 

known in conjunction as “Prices. 
 

f. The Buyer shall pay for the Service Provider’s out-of-pocket expenses and billable time by the hour for any 
and all services provided outside the scope of Terms & Conditions in Clause 1.2 (a), Clause 1.2 (b), Clause 
1.2 (c), Clause 1.2 (d), Clause 1.2 (e), Clause 1.2 (f), Clause 1.2 (g), Clause 1.2 (h),and Clause 1.2 (i). 

1.6 Payment  

a. The Buyer agrees to pay the Prices to the Service Provider on the following dates:  

At the beginning of each period (monthly) for that period, Service Provider will submit an invoice to the Buyer 
for services commencing on installation, training and or usage of said products and services. Partial periods 
may be pro-rated. 
 

b. The Service Provider will pull amount due via ACH transfer from the Buyer on the 8th day of the period 
(monthly) or next business day. 
 

c. Service Provider reserves the right to refuse service for any and all services provided outside the scope of 
Terms & Conditions in Clause 1.2 (a), Clause 1.2 (b), Clause 1.2 (c), Clause 1.2 (d), Clause 1.2 (e), Clause 
1.2 (f), Clause 1.2 (g), Clause 1.2 (h),and Clause 1.2 (i). without payment via Credit Card same day.  
 

d. Any charges payable under this Agreement are exclusive of any applicable taxes, tariff surcharges or other 
like amounts assessed by any governmental entity arising as a result of the provision of the Services by the 
Service Provider to the Buyer under this Agreement and such shall be payable by the Buyer to the Service 
Provider in addition to all other charges payable hereunder.  
 

2. General terms  

2.1 Limitation of liability  
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a. Subject to the Buyer’s obligation to pay the Price to the Service Provider, either party’s liability in contract, 
tort or otherwise (including negligence) arising directly out of or in connection with this Agreement or the 
performance or observance of its obligations under this Agreement and every applicable part of it shall be 
limited in aggregate to the Price.  

b. To the extent it is lawful to exclude the following heads of loss and subject to the Buyer’s obligation to pay 
the Price, in no event shall either party be liable for any loss of profits, goodwill, loss of business, loss of 
data or any other indirect or consequential loss or damage whatsoever.  

2.2 Term and Termination  

a. This Agreement shall be effective on the date hereof and shall continue, unless terminated sooner in 
accordance with Clause 2.2(b), for as long as the Buyer and Taziki’s Franchising, LLC’s Franchise 
Agreement(s) for the site(s) listed in Section 1.4  of this Agreement remains in full force and effect. 

b. Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon notice in writing if:  
i. the other is in breach of any material obligation contained in this Agreement, which is not remedied 

(if the same is capable of being remedied) within 30 days of written notice from the other Party so 
to do; or  

ii. a voluntary arrangement is approved, a bankruptcy or an administration order is made or a receiver 
or administrative receiver is appointed over any of the other Party's assets or an undertaking or a 
resolution or petition to wind up the other Party is passed or presented (other than for the purposes 
of amalgamation or reconstruction) or any analogous procedure in the country of incorporation of 
either party or if any circumstances arise which entitle the Court or a creditor to appoint a receiver, 
administrative receiver or administrator or to present a winding-up petition or make a winding-up 
order in respect of the other Party.  

c. Any termination of this Agreement (howsoever occasioned) shall not affect any accrued rights or liabilities of 
either Party nor shall it affect the coming into force or the continuance in force of any provision hereof which 
is expressly or by implication intended to come into or continue in force on or after such termination.  

2.3 Relationship of the Parties 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that the Services performed by the Service Provider, its employees, agents or 
sub-contractors shall be as an independent contractor and that nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to 
constitute a partnership, joint venture, agency relationship or otherwise between the parties. 

2.4 Confidentiality 

Neither Party will use, copy, adapt, alter or part with possession of any information of the other which is disclosed or 
otherwise comes into its possession under or in relation to this Agreement and which is of a confidential nature. This 
obligation will not apply to information which the recipient can prove was in its possession at the date it was received 
or obtained or which the recipient obtains from some other person with good legal title to it or which is in or comes 
into the public domain otherwise than through the default or negligence of the recipient or which is independently 
developed by or for the recipient. 

2.5 Notices 

Any notice which may be given by a Party under this Agreement shall be deemed to have been duly delivered if 
delivered by hand, first class post, facsimile transmission or electronic mail to the address of the other Party as 
specified in this Agreement or any other address notified in writing to the other Party. Subject to any applicable local 
law provisions to the contrary, any such communication shall be deemed to have been made to the other Party, if 
delivered by: 

a. first class post, 2 days from the date of posting;  
b. hand or by facsimile transmission, on the date of such delivery or transmission; and  
c. electronic mail, when the Party sending such communication receives confirmation of such delivery by 

electronic mail.  
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2.6 Miscellaneous  

a. The failure of either party to enforce its rights under this Agreement at any time for any period shall not be 
construed as a waiver of such rights.  

b. If any part, term or provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal or unenforceable neither the validity nor 
enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement shall be affected.  

c. Neither Party shall assign or transfer all or any part of its rights under this Agreement without the consent of 
the other Party.  

d. This Agreement may not be amended for any other reason without the prior written agreement of both 
Parties.  

e. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the Parties relating to the subject matter 
hereof unless any representation or warranty made about this Agreement was made fraudulently and, save 
as may be expressly referred to or referenced herein, supersedes all prior representations, writings, 
negotiations or understandings with respect hereto.  

f. Neither Party shall be liable for failure to perform or delay in performing any obligation under this Agreement 
if the failure or delay is caused by any circumstances beyond its reasonable control, including but not limited 
to acts of god, war, civil commotion or industrial dispute. If such delay or failure continues for at least 7 days, 
the Party not affected by such delay or failure shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement by notice in 
writing to the other.  

g. This Clause 2.6(g) and Clauses 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4, 2.5 and 2.6 of this Agreement shall survive any 
termination or expiration.  

h. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the jurisdiction in which the Buyer is located (or if the 
Buyer is based in more than one country, the country in which its headquarters are located) (the "Territory") 
and the parties agree to submit disputes arising out of or in connection with this Agreement to the non-
exclusive of the courts in the Territory.  

AS WITNESS the hands of the Parties hereto or their duly authorized representatives the day and year first above written. 

SIGNED by   [Name] ) 
for and on behalf of ) 
[the Buyer] ) 
 

SIGNED by   [Name] ) 
for and on behalf of ) 
Bodnar Group Consulting, LLC ) 
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ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 

THIS ADDENDUM (“Addendum”) is made and entered into on   , 20____, by and 
between Taziki’s Franchising, LLC (“Franchisor”), located at 3755 Corporate Woods Drive, 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama  35242, and      
(“Franchisee”), located at   . 

Franchisor and Franchisee entered into a Franchise Agreement on _______________, 20___ 
(such Agreement, together with any amendments, the “Franchise Agreement”). Franchisee is 
applying for a loan (“Loan”) from a lender in which funding is provided with the assistance of the U. 
S. Small  Business  Administration (“SBA”). SBA requires the execution of this Addendum as a 
condition for obtaining the SBA-assisted financing. 

In consideration of the mutual promises below and for good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which the parties acknowledge, the parties agree that notwithstanding any 
other terms in the Franchise Agreement: 

1. Change of Ownership.  If Franchisee is proposing to transfer a partial interest in 
Franchisee and Franchisor has an option to purchase or a right of first refusal with respect to that 
partial interest, Franchisor may exercise such option or right only if the proposed transferee is not a 
current owner or family member of a current owner of Franchisee. If the Franchisor’s consent is 
required for any transfer (full or partial), Franchisor will not unreasonably withhold such consent. In 
the event of an approved transfer of the franchise interest or any portion thereof, the transferor will 
not be liable for the actions of the transferee franchisee. 

2. Forced Sale of Assets.  If Franchisor has the option to purchase the business personal 
assets upon default or termination of the Franchise Agreement and the parties are unable to agree on 
the value of the assets, the value will be determined by an appraiser chosen by both parties. If the 
Franchisee owns the real estate where the franchise location is operating, Franchisee will not be 
required to sell the real estate upon default or termination, but Franchisee may be required to lease 
the real estate for the remainder of the franchise term (excluding additional  renewals) for fair 
market value. 

3. Covenants.  If the Franchisee owns the real estate where the franchise location is 
operating, Franchisor may not record against the real estate any restrictions on the use of the 
property, including any restrictive covenants, branding covenants or environmental use restrictions. 

4. Employment.  Franchisor will not directly control (hire, fire or schedule) 
Franchisee’s employees. 

This Addendum automatically terminates on the earlier to occur of the following: (i) the 
Loan is paid in full; or (ii) SBA no longer has any interest in the Loan. 
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Except as amended by this Addendum, the Franchise Agreement remains in full force and 
effect according to its terms. 

 
FRANCHISOR:       FRANCHISEE: 
TAZIKI’S FRANCHISING, LLC             
 
By:   By:       
 
Print Name:  ____________________    Print Name:     __________________
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ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

BROADWAY BOWLS™ KITCHEN OPTION 

This “Addendum” is made and entered into as of [the same date as that certain Franchise 
Agreement] [______________, 202___] (the “Addendum Effective Date”) by and between 
Taziki’s Franchising, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company (“we,” “us” or “our”), as 
franchisor, and _______________________, a ______________________(you” or “your”), as 
franchisee.  This Addendum amends and supplements the Franchise Agreement between you and 
us dated [_____________, ______]  (the “Franchise Agreement”) under which you [will develop 
and] operate a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café restaurant, adding special stipulations that supersede 
the corresponding provisions of the Franchise Agreement.  Defined terms have the meaning 
assigned to them in the Franchise Agreement unless the context indicates otherwise.  In the event 
of any conflict between this Addendum and the Franchise Agreement, this Addendum shall be 
controlling.  

Recitals.  We have introduced a product line extension to enable Taziki’s Mediterranean 
Café operators to leverage their existing kitchen resources with a delivery-only concept under the 
name and mark “Broadway Bowls” (the “Virtual Kitchen Concept”).  All marketing and 
advertising for the Virtual Kitchen Concept will be controlled and coordinated by us through 
digital advertising.  This is an experimental concept intended to require minimal investment and 
minimal continuing costs.  After a test period, the parties will decide whether to continue with 
the Virtual Kitchen Concept.   

In consideration of the mutual promises in this Addendum, and for other good and 
valuable consideration, we and you mutually agree to the following terms and conditions, 
intending to be legally bound: 

1. Authorized Operation.  We license and authorize you to undertake operating the Virtual 
Kitchen Concept at and from the Franchised Restaurant commencing when your General 
Manager or Assistant General Manager completes the MIT supplemental training 
certification we specify in the Operations Manual and we authorize you to operate the Virtual 
Kitchen Concept.  The System Standards for hours of operation, menu, recipes and product 
instructions, inventory, supplies and other operational aspects will be specified in the 
Operations Manual.  You must complete all pre-opening requirements for and open the 
Virtual Kitchen Concept for business to receive and fulfill orders [within thirty (30) days 
after your execution and return of this Addendum][when you first open the Franchised 
Restaurant.]   

2. Delivery Arrangements.  You are responsible for contracting with a third party delivery 
service provider, a standby/backup delivery service provider, or using your Franchised 
Restaurant delivery vehicles (as a primary or backup delivery service)to deliver Virtual 
Kitchen Concept orders within the required delivery windows set out in the Operations 
Manual.  You are responsible for obtaining, using, maintaining and replacing when necessary 
or appropriate, all equipment we specify to maintain orders at proper temperatures through 
the delivery process.  You will notify us about your preferred third party delivery service and 
a standby/backup provider as we instruct in the Operations Manual. 



 

J-3 
 

3. Fees.  There is no initial franchise fee or pre-opening fee payable to us for the Virtual 
Kitchen Concept.  All revenues generated by and from the Virtual Kitchen Concept will be 
deemed to be revenues of the Franchised Restaurant, and Net Cash Sales from the Virtual 
Kitchen Concept will be subject to the Royalty and Marketing Fees specified in Section 5 of 
the Franchise Agreement.  Payment terms remain governed by Section 5.   

4. Term.  You will notify us when you are ready to receive and fulfill orders (the “Concept 
Opening Date”).  The term of this Addendum commences on the Addendum Effective Date 
and expires one year after the Concept Opening Date (the “Initial Term”).  Either party may 
terminate this Addendum without penalty and without cause on 90 days’ prior written notice 
to the other party.  We may, in our sole discretion, give you written notice at least 60 days 
before the end of the Initial Term that you may elect to renew this Addendum, provided that 
you are at the time of notice and then at the expiration of the Initial Term, in good standing 
under the Franchise Agreement, compliant with System Standards for Virtual Kitchen 
Concept operation, and you meet the applicable criteria for renewal in Section 4(c). [We may 
establish an additional condition to renewal that the Virtual Kitchen Concept generate a 
minimum level of Net Cash Sales.]  

5. Proprietary Marks; Name Change.  The name, marks and branding of the Virtual Kitchen 
Concept will be deemed Proprietary Marks for purposes of the Franchise Agreement.  We or 
one of our affiliates is the owner of the Virtual Kitchen Concept, which is subject to Section 
13 of the Franchise Agreement in all respects.  The “Broadway Bowls” name and mark is not 
registered as of March 31, 2021.  We may change the branding, name and mark that 
identifies the Virtual Kitchen Concept at any time in our sole discretion.  We will use 
commercially reasonable efforts to allow for a run-off of branded supplies at the name 
change to avoid discarding usable materials with branding that is being discontinued.     

6. Non-Exclusive Grant.  The grant of a authority to operate a Virtual Kitchen Concept is 
limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable and non-delegable, except as permitted for third 
party delivery service delegation.  We may authorize other Franchised Restaurants to license 
and use the Virtual Kitchen Concept, and will assign orders based primarily on our 
assessment of each franchisee’s Assigned Area, we reserve the right to manage and allocate 
delivery orders for the Assigned Area and your DMA in our sole discretion.   

7. No Further Amendments.  There are no other amendments or supplements to the Franchise 
Agreement intended by the parties.   
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Addendum, 

intending to be legally bound, as of the Addendum Effective Date. 

Taziki’s Franchising, LLC     

 
By: ________________________________  By: ______________________________ 
Its: ________________________________  Its: _______________________________ 
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AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Area Development Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the 
Effective Date, by and between Taziki's Franchising, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company 
(“we,” “us” or “our”), as franchisor, and _________________________, a _________________ 
(you” or “your”), as developer.  The parties mutually agree, for good and valuable consideration, 
the receipt and sufficiency of which the parties mutually acknowledge, as follows: 

1. Definitions.  Words and phrases used in initially-capitalized form in this 
Agreement have the meanings set forth in Section 31 of this Agreement and Section 54 of the 
form of Franchise Agreement attached as Attachment B unless the context indicates otherwise. 

2. Exclusive Development Territory.  During the Development Term, you will have 
the exclusive right to develop Taziki's Mediterranean Café Restaurants in the Development 
Territory (“Development Units”).  We may, without any restriction or obligation to you, develop, 
operate, franchise and license other Persons to develop and operate Taziki's Mediterranean Café 
Restaurants at any location outside the Development Territory.  We may, without any restriction 
or obligation to you, develop operate, franchise and license Nontraditional Concept Restaurants 
within or outside the Development Territory.  After the Development Term, each Franchise 
Agreement will govern any territorial rights by means of the Protected Area of each 
Development Unit. 

3. Performance Schedule.  You must develop and put in operation at least three (3) 
Development Units within the Development Territory in accordance with the following schedule 
and the desired market area: 

 
Development Unit 

Number 
Franchise 

Agreement and 
Location Approval 

Deadline 

Opening Deadline Desired Market Area 

1 30 days after 
Effective Date 

9 months after 
Effective Date 

 

2 90 Days after Unit 
1 Opening 

9 months after Unit 1 
Opening 

 

3 90 Days after Unit 
2 Opening 

9 months after Unit 2 
Opening 

 

    
 
 
You may develop and open any number of additional Development Units within the 
Development Territory during the Development Term, so long as you follow our standard 
application and approval process for each Development Unit.   

4. Development Term.  The “Development Term” of this Agreement commences on 
the Effective Date and the rights granted to you under this Agreement will expire on the earlier 
of __________ ____, 20___, [or the Opening Date of the last Taziki's Mediterranean Café  
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Restaurant in operation pursuant to the Performance Schedule], unless terminated earlier in 
accordance with this Agreement. 

5. Development & Initial Fees.  When you sign this Agreement, you will pay us a 
non-refundable development fee consisting of (i) a First Unit Fee of $35,000 for the first 
Development Unit, and (ii) an Additional Unit Fee of $5,000 for each additional Development 
Unit, for a minimum of $35,000.  A reduced initial franchise fee of $30,000 will be due when 
you sign the Franchise Agreement for each additional Development Unit, provided that you sign 
the Franchise Agreement and obtain our approval of the location on or before the deadline 
specified in Section 3.  If you do not meet that deadline, the initial franchise fee for the additional 
Development Unit will be $35,000.  The First Unit fee will be credited to payment of the initial 
franchise fee of $35,000 of the first Development Unit.  Each Additional Unit Fee will be 
credited to the initial franchise fee of each additional Development Unit when you pay the 
balance of the initial franchise fee.  If you do not complete the Performance Schedule by the 
relevant Opening Deadline, we will retain any portion of the Development Fee that has not been 
applied to initial franchise fees.  The Development Fee is not refundable. 

6. Site Submission.  You must submit the information we may then require using our 
form of Franchised Restaurant site evaluation request to evaluate a proposed site for a 
Development Unit.  We will review the submitted information and conduct any evaluation of the 
proposed site we deem appropriate.  We may request any supplemental information we deem 
appropriate to evaluate the proposed site at any time and you will promptly provide such 
supplemental information. 

7. Site Acceptance or Rejection.  We retain the right to accept or reject each site 
selected by you, in our sole discretion.  Within 30 days after your submission of all initial and 
supplemental information we request regarding a proposed site, we will give you notice of our 
acceptance or rejection of the site.  If we accept the site, the notice will set forth any remaining 
conditions to that acceptance.  If we reject the site, the notice will set forth the reasons for the 
rejection.  If we do not give you notice of our acceptance of the site within 30 days after your 
submission of all initial and supplemental information we request regarding the site, you may 
deem us to have rejected the site.  You acknowledge that we have not authorized and will not 
empower or authorize any officer, employee or agent of ours to accept or reject any proposed site 
except in accordance with this Section 7.  You agree not to rely upon any representations, written 
or oral, to the contrary. 

8. Responsibility for Site Selection.  You will have sole responsibility for selecting 
the Location of your Development Unit and all aspects of the site acquisition, negotiation and 
development process, including (without limitation) compliance with all applicable zoning, 
licensing, building codes, leasing and other requirements.  Neither we nor our Affiliates will 
have any responsibility, obligation or liability to you in connection with our efforts, assistance 
and/or advice in the selection and securing of a Location for your use, nor will we have any 
liability for any consequences of your selection of a site or any aspect of the site acquisition, 
negotiation and development process.  You acknowledge that our acceptance of a site does not 
constitute any representation, warranty or guaranty by us that the site will constitute a successful 
location for a Taziki's Mediterranean Café Restaurant and you waive and release us and our 
Affiliates from any claims and causes of action in that regard.  You confirm that, except as 
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provided in Section 10 below, we will not become involved in any way in the site acquisition, 
negotiation or development process. 

9. Issuance of Franchise Agreement.  When we accept your proposed site, we will 
forward to you the completed Franchise Agreement for the Development Unit using as a 
template the form of Franchise Agreement attached as Attachment B.  You must sign and return 
to us the completed Franchise Agreement in accordance with our instructions, along with any 
remaining portion of the required initial franchise fee calculated as provided in Section 5, within 
15 days after we tender the Franchise Agreement to you.  If you fail to return the executed 
franchise agreement and the balance of the initial franchise fee to us within that 15-day period, 
we may revoke our acceptance of the proposed site.  You will not begin construction or 
remodeling work at the accepted site until you have executed the Franchise Agreement, paid the 
balance of the initial franchise fee to us, and obtained our approval of the lease and your plans 
and specifications as provided in the Franchise Agreement. 

10. Our Services.  During the Development Term, we will provide you with the 
following services: 

(a) Site Selection Services.  We will provide you with our experience in the 
selection of sites for Taziki's Mediterranean Café Restaurants through the use of the forms, 
criteria and materials that we make available to developers, as well as the benefit of our review 
and evaluation of any proposed sites you select. 

(b) Advice.  We will provide you with periodic individual or group advice, 
consultation and assistance by personal visit, by telephone, or by newsletters or bulletins that we 
then make available to developers. 

(c) Other Services.  We will provide you with other resources and assistance 
that we may develop and then make available to new developers.  We have no obligation to 
make any such other resources and assistance available. 

11. Nature of Agreement.  This Agreement only grants you the exclusive right to 
select sites for the construction of Development Units in the Development Territory and to 
submit those sites to us for our acceptance in accordance with this Agreement.  This Agreement 
does not grant a license to use the name “Taziki's Mediterranean Café ” or any other trade name, 
service mark, or trademark of ours.  This Agreement does not grant you the right to open or 
operate any Taziki's Mediterranean Café restaurant.  You will obtain those rights only under a 
Franchise Agreement with us, if and when fully executed and delivered by you and us. 

12. Additional Covenants.  During the Development Term you and your Owners 
covenant with us that you will not engage, either directly or indirectly through any financial or 
beneficial interest in any other Person, in any Competing Business, other than a Taziki’s 
Mediterranean Café Restaurant licensed by us.  For a period of two years after the termination or 
expiration of this Agreement for any reason, you may not engage in any Competing Business, 
other than a Taziki’s Mediterranean Café Restaurant licensed by us, within your Development 
Area and within the Applicable Radius from any existing Taziki’s Mediterranean Café 
Restaurant, as then listed on our website or any directory we provide to you.  We may reduce the 
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duration and/or geographic scope of this provision by written notice to you for applicable law.  
You will not employ or seek to employ any individual who, at the time, currently works or 
worked during the preceding three months for any of our other licensees or franchisees or for us, 
except with the consent of the affected licensee or franchisee or with our consent (as applicable).  
We will not employ or seek to employ any individual who, at the time, currently works or 
worked during the past three months for you, except with your consent.  The terms "Competing 
Business" and "Applicable Radius" are defined in the form of Franchise Agreement attached as 
Attachment B. 

13. Default.  A default by you will occur under this Agreement if (a) you default in 
the performance of any of your obligations under this Agreement or any other agreement with us 
or our Affiliates, including (without limitation) the failure to meet the Performance Schedule or 
to make any payments as and when due to us or our Affiliates; (b) you request the appointment 
of a receiver or have a receiver appointed for any of your business or assets, make a general 
assignment for the benefit of your creditors, or commence a case for relief or have an order for 
relief entered against you under the United States Bankruptcy Code; or (c) we discover a 
material inaccuracy in any of your representations in this Agreement or in your application for 
this Agreement. 

14. Remedies.  Upon the occurrence of a default by you, we will have the right to 
terminate this Agreement upon not less than 30 days’ notice to you, or such longer period as may 
be required by applicable law.  If you do not cure the default within that notice period, we may 
terminate this Agreement.  If you cannot cure the default within the notice period because of the 
nature of the default or if you notify us orally or in writing that you do not intend to cure the 
default, we may terminate this Agreement immediately upon notice to you. Upon the termination 
of this Agreement, you immediately will cease to select and acquire sites for Development Units 
or hold yourself out as a Taziki's Mediterranean Café Restaurant developer.  The termination of 
this Agreement will not affect your right to complete development of and operate Taziki's 
Mediterranean Café Restaurants in accordance with any executory Franchise Agreement with us.   

15. Termination by Us for Commercial Impracticability.  The parties agree that the 
commercial purpose of this Agreement is for Franchisor to license the System specified by 
Franchisor to Franchisee for use in operating the Franchised Restaurant strictly in accordance 
with the Operations Manual, in exchange for payment of the fees and under the conditions set 
forth in this Agreement.  This Agreement intends for Franchisee to control the terms and 
conditions of employment for the employees of the Franchised Restaurant, and to supervise such 
employees as their employer, as set forth in Franchise Agreement Section 38, without 
constituting Franchisor as a joint employer of Franchisee or Franchisee’s employees.  Franchisee 
acknowledges that Franchisor is not in the business of owning and operating any Franchised 
Restaurant, and Franchisee has independently decided to enter into this Agreement to obtain the 
right to use the System so as to enter into the trade and business contemplated by the System.  
Franchisor may terminate this Agreement by written notice to Franchisee without penalty and 
without payment of any refunds or damages to Franchisee, and Franchisee will follow its post-
termination obligations under Franchise Agreement Section 33 at its expense, if Franchisor 
determines in its sole discretion that either (i) a law or regulation is enacted, promulgated, 
repealed, modified or amended, (ii) a judicial or administrative tribunal or administrative agency 
has issued, published or released a decision, ruling or opinion in a matter not involving the 
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parties directly or indirectly that Franchisor reasonably expects will affect applicable law or its 
interpretation, or (iii) an administrative agency, arbitrator or judge has issued an interim or final 
decision in a matter in which the parties are involved directly or indirectly, which (A) frustrates 
or adversely affects or could reasonably be expected to affect adversely the purposes of this 
Agreement, (B) makes performance of this Agreement commercially impracticable, (C) 
effectively modifies the allocation of risk, benefits and burdens agreed by the parties, (D) 
deprives any Party of its benefits of the bargain struck by the parties, as originally set forth in 
this Agreement, or (E) determines that an employment or a joint employment relationship exists 
between Franchisor and Franchisee.  

16. CERTAIN WAIVERS.   

(a) YOU AND WE WAIVE THE RIGHT TO PURSUE AND RECEIVE 
ANY EXEMPLARY AND PUNITIVE DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER PARTY IN 
ANY DISPUTE ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR RELATING TO THE 
FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP, WHETHER ASSERTED AS A RELATED OR 
INDEPENDENT TORT, AS A BREACH OF CONTRACT, OR AS ANY OTHER CLAIM 
OR CAUSE OF ACTION BASED ON CONSTITUTIONAL, STATUTORY OR 
COMMON LAW.   

(b) THE PARTIES WAIVE THE RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL IN ANY 
ACTION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN 
THE FRANCHISOR, THE FRANCHISEE, ANY GUARANTOR, AND THEIR 
RESPECTIVE SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. 

17. Assignment.   

(a) We may transfer, assign or pledge this agreement, in whole or in part, to 
any Person.   

(b) The rights granted under this Agreement, and decision to enter into this 
Agreement with you, are personal to you and your Owners, based on their individual 
qualifications, resources, finances, experience, background, commitment and business acumen.  
You will not have any right to transfer, assign or pledge this Agreement or any of its rights under 
this Agreement, in whole or in part, to any Person without our express written consent, which we 
may withhold in our sole discretion. 

(c) You may raise additional equity by the sale of your equity interests in 
exchange for cash or property (but not services) so long as you comply with the following 
procedures: 

(1) The proposed transferee must satisfy all of the requirements and 
conditions then being used to qualify as a new franchisee of ours, including submission of a 
completed  franchise application at least 30 days before the investment transaction; 

(2) You must satisfy all of your monetary obligations then due and 
owing to us and our Affiliates;  
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(3) You must cure all existing defaults under this Agreement;  

(4) You and your Owners must execute and deliver a general release 
of all claims and causes of action against us and our Affiliates; and  

(5) You must pay us an administrative fee equal to $1,000.00 when we 
approve the new Owner.  

(d) If you are an individual, then in the event of your death, permanent 
disability or appointment of a guardian for you, this Agreement will terminate 90 days after your 
death, permanent disability or appointment of a guardian unless we give our consent within that 
90-day period to the assignment of this Agreement to a successor in compliance with this 
paragraph. 

(e) You may designate a Person that is a business entity that your Owners 
Control as the franchisee party to a Franchise Agreement at the time you submit your site 
information for the Development Unit.  You will use our then current form of franchise 
application to provide information on all Persons who are to be Owners of the franchisee of that 
Development Unit.  We may disapprove of any Person you propose to be an Owner and provide 
notice of our disapproval when we provide you with the Franchise Agreement.  We may delay 
tender of the Franchise Agreement to complete our evaluation of the proposed Owners of the 
franchisee. 

18. Indemnification.  You will indemnify and hold us and our Affiliates harmless 
from any and all costs and damages, including (without limitation) attorneys’ fees and expenses, 
arising from your performance under this Agreement, your activities as developer of 
Development Units, including (without limitation) the identification, investigation, acquisition 
and financing of any site and the construction, remodeling and operation of any Development 
Unit, and including any claims or causes of action alleging our negligence or that you are acting 
as our agent in any way. You must provide and pay the costs of defense and resolution for us and 
our Affiliates, using legal counsel acceptable to us and our Affiliates.  We and our Affiliates will 
have the right (but not the obligation) to participate in that defense.  This Section shall survive 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

19. Relationship of Parties.  Neither this Agreement nor the performance of the 
obligations set forth in this Agreement will operate to make you our partner or agent.  Neither 
party will have the authority to act or contract on behalf of the other.  Neither party will have any 
responsibility for the obligations of the other party.  You will indicate clearly the independent 
ownership of your business in all public records and in all of your dealings with third parties. 

20. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement will constitute the entire agreement of the 
parties with regard to the subject matter of this Agreement and will replace and supersede all 
other written and oral agreements and statements of the parties relating to the subject matter of 
this Agreement.  Neither party is relying on any writing to enter into this Agreement other than 
as set forth in this Agreement and the Franchise Disclosure Document delivered to you. 
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21. Waiver.  The failure of a party to insist in any one or more instances on the 
performance of any term or condition of this Agreement will not operate as a waiver of any 
future performance of that term or condition. 

22. Notices.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, when this Agreement 
requires notice, the sending party must deliver or address the notice to the other party by certified 
mail, or delivery service with receipted delivery, or by electronic mail followed by transmittal of 
the original by first class United States Mail, to the following address: 

Us:      Taziki's Franchising, LLC 
      3755 Corporate Woods Dr.  

       Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242  
       Attention: Franchising Department 
       Email: franchise@tazikiscafe.com 

     
 
 

 
You:      ________________________ 
      ________________________ 

________________________ 
Email:________________________ 

All notices will be deemed delivered and received if transmitted to the proper address on the 
earlier of (a) the date that the other party receives or refuses delivery of the notice or (b) three 
business days after the party places the notice in the United States mail, first class postage 
prepaid.  Each party may change the party’s address by giving notice to the other party. 

23. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of Alabama 
(without regard to any conflicts of law principles). 

24. Venue. Subject to Section 18, the proper, sole and exclusive venue and forum for 
any action arising out of or in any way related to this Agreement shall be the federal and state 
courts where our principal place of business is located at the time of filing.  As of the Effective 
Date, venue shall be in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Alabama or 
Jefferson County, Alabama.  Each party to this Agreement hereby consents to any of those 
courts’ exercise of personal jurisdiction over the party in that type of action and expressly waives 
all objections the party otherwise might have to that exercise of personal jurisdiction. 

25. Legal Fees.  In the event either party succeeds in any legal action to enforce the 
provisions of this Agreement, the losing party will reimburse the prevailing party for its 
attorneys’ fees and costs related to the action, in addition to any other relief obtained by the 
prevailing party. The award will include an amount for that portion of the prevailing party’s 
administrative overhead reasonably allocable to the time devoted by the prevailing party’s in-
house legal staff. 
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26. Construction.  The parties acknowledge that each party and/or its legal counsel 
have reviewed and made revisions to this Agreement.  The rule of construction requiring the 
resolution of any ambiguities in this Agreement against the drafting party will not apply to the 
construction of this Agreement or any attachments to this Agreement. 

27. Authority.  Each individual executing this Agreement in a representative capacity 
represents and warrants that he or she has the authority to execute this Agreement in the capacity 
indicated. 

28. Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this 
Agreement invalid or ineffective with respect to any Person or circumstance, the holding will not 
affect the remainder of this Agreement or the application of this Agreement to any other Person 
or circumstance.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this Agreement too 
broad to allow enforcement to its full extent, the court will have the power and authority to 
enforce the provision to the maximum extent permitted by law and may modify the scope of the 
provision accordingly pursuant to an order of the court. 

29. Amendment.  No amendment to this Agreement will become effective or binding 
on the parties, unless agreed to by all of the parties. 

30. Counterparts.  The parties may execute this Agreement in counterparts, each of 
which will constitute an original and all of which, when taken together, will constitute one and 
the same instrument. 

31. Definitions.  Unless the context of their use in this Agreement requires otherwise, 
the following words and phrases will have the following meanings when used in initially-
capitalized form in this Agreement: 

(a) Development Territory means the cities, counties and other political 
subdivisions listed below, in accordance with their boundaries as of the date of this Agreement, 
as shown on Attachment A to this Agreement, less and except any protected radius previously 
granted by us currently in effect under any existing franchise agreement and as increased or 
reduced in the future through the renewal of any existing franchise agreement. 

(b) Effective Date  means the date we enter immediately below our signature 
block on this Agreement as the date on which you and we are legally bound under this 
Agreement, provided that if no such date is entered, then the Effective Date shall be the date on 
which we execute and deliver this Agreement. 

(c) In Operation means (1) the delivery to us of an executed franchise 
agreement and required initial franchise fee for the restaurant, (2) the opening of the restaurant to 
the general public, and (3) the continuous operation of the restaurant in accordance with the 
terms of the franchise agreement for the restaurant. 

(d) Performance Schedule means the schedule set forth in Section 3 of this 
Agreement. 

32. Your Representations.  You represent to us as follows: 
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(a) Variances to Other Developers and Franchisee.  You understand that other 
developers and franchisees may operate under different forms of agreements and, consequently, 
that our rights and obligations with regard to our various developers and franchisees may differ 
materially in certain circumstances. 

(b) This Transaction.  You and the persons signing this Agreement for you 
have full power and authority and have been duly authorized, to enter into and perform or cause 
performance of your obligations under this Agreement.  You have obtained all necessary 
approvals of your Owners, Board of Directors and lenders.  No executory franchise, license or 
affiliation agreement for the Development Territory exists other than this Agreement.  
Attachment A accurately states the names, addresses and ownership percentages of your Owners.  
Your execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement will not violate, create a default 
under or breach of any charter, bylaws, agreement or other contract, license, permit, 
indebtedness, certificate, order, decree or security instrument to which you or any of your 
Owners is a party or is subject or to which the Location is subject.  Neither you nor the Location 
is the subject of any current or pending merger, sale, dissolution, receivership, bankruptcy, 
foreclosure, reorganization, insolvency, or similar action or proceeding on the date you execute 
this Agreement and was not within the three years preceding such date, except as disclosed in 
your franchise application.  To the best of your knowledge, neither you, your Owners, your 
officers, directors, contractors, or employees or anyone else affiliated or associated with you, 
whether by common ownership, by contract, or otherwise, has been designated as, or are, a 
terrorist, a “Specially Designated National” or a “Blocked Person” under U.S. Executive Order 
13224, in lists published by the U.S. Department of Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets Control, 
or otherwise. 

(c) No Misrepresentations or Implied Covenants.  All written information you 
submit to us about the Location, you, your Owners, any guarantor, or the finances of any such 
person or entity, was or will be at the time delivered and when you sign this Agreement, true, 
accurate and complete, and such information contains no misrepresentation of a material fact, 
and does not omit any material fact necessary to make the information disclosed not misleading 
under the circumstances. There are no express or implied covenants or warranties, oral or 
written, between we and you except as expressly stated in this Agreement. 
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In witness whereof, the parties have executed and delivered this Agreement, intending to 
be legally bound, as of the Effective Date. 

FRANCHISOR:     DEVELOPER: 
Taziki's Franchising, LLC    ___________________________________ 
 
By: ________________________________  By: ________________________________ 
Its: ________________________________  Its: ________________________________ 
Effective Date: _____________________  Date: ______________________________ 
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Attachment A 
 

Development Territory 
 
 1. Location of Development Territory:        
            ______ 

 

 2. Your Owners: 

 
Name Address Telephone Email Percentage 

Ownership 
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Attachment B 
 

Form of Franchise Agreement 
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Exhibit C 
Addenda Required by Certain States 
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4836-2893-1257 

ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
FOR THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

 
Total Investment 
 

We do not know the amount of the total required investment in a Franchised Restaurant over the 
term of the franchise.  We do not request, obtain or receive this information from franchisees. We refer 
you to Item 7 for the known initial investment.  Additional capital investments in the Franchised 
Restaurant will be necessary over the term of the franchise to maintain the Franchised Restaurant 
according to the System. 
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ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT PURSUANT TO 
THE INDIANA FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE LAW 

AND THE INDIANA DECEPTIVE FRANCHISE PRACTICES ACT 

The following provisions supersede the Disclosure Document and apply to all franchises offered 
and sold in the State of Indiana: 

1. The laws of the State of Indiana supersede any provisions of this Disclosure Document, 
the Franchise Agreement, the other agreements or Alabama law if such provisions are in 
conflict with Indiana law. 

2. The prohibition by Indiana Code 23-2-2.7-1(7) against unilateral termination of the 
franchise without good cause or in bad faith, good cause being defined therein as a 
material breach of the Franchise Agreement, shall supersede the provisions of Sections 
29, 30, and 31 of the Franchise Agreement in the State of Indiana to the extent that may 
be inconsistent with such prohibition. 

3. Notwithstanding the Franchise Agreement, you recognize that in the event of any use of 
the Franchised System not in accord with that Agreement, we shall be entitled to seek 
injunctive and other relief. 

4. No release language set forth in the Disclosure Document or Franchise Agreement, 
including but limited to Item 17, shall relieve us or any other person, directly or 
indirectly, from liability imposed by the laws concerning franchising of the State of 
Indiana. 

5. Section 46 of the Franchise Agreement, is amended to provide that each such agreement 
(as applicable) will be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana. 

6. Any provision in the Disclosure Document or Franchise Agreement which designates 
jurisdiction or venue, or requires franchisee to agree to jurisdiction or venue, in a forum 
outside of Indiana, may not be enforceable. 

7. Section 32(b) (Jury Trial Waiver) of the Franchise Agreement is deleted from all 
Agreements entered into in Indiana. 
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ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO 
THE INDIANA FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE LAW 

AND THE INDIANA DECEPTIVE FRANCHISE PRACTICES ACT 
 

This Addendum to the Franchise Agreement by and between TAZIKI’S FRANCHISING LLC 
(“we”, “our” or “us”) and ______ (“you”) is dated __________, 20__. 

1. The laws of the State of Indiana supersede any provisions of this Franchise Agreement, 
the other agreements or Alabama law if such provisions are in conflict with Indiana law. 

2. The prohibition by Indiana Code 23-2-2.7-1(7) against unilateral termination of the 
franchise without good cause or in bad faith, good cause being defined therein as a 
material breach of the Franchise Agreement, shall supersede the provisions of Sections 
29, 30, and 31 of the Franchise Agreement in the State of Indiana to the extent that may 
be inconsistent with such prohibition. 

3. Notwithstanding the Franchise Agreement, you recognize that in the event of any use of 
the Franchised System not in accord with that Agreement, we shall be entitled to seek 
injunctive and other relief. 

4. No release language set forth in the Franchise Agreement shall relieve us or any other 
person, directly or indirectly, from liability imposed by the laws concerning franchising 
of the State of Indiana. 

5. Section 46 of the Franchise Agreement, is amended to provide that each such agreement 
(as applicable) will be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana. 

6. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement which designates jurisdiction or venue, or 
requires franchisee to agree to jurisdiction or venue, in a forum outside of Indiana, may 
not be enforceable. 

7. Section 32(b) (Jury Trial Waiver) of the Franchise Agreement is deleted from all 
Agreements entered into in Indiana. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Addendum as of the date set forth 
above. 

TAZIKI’S FRANCHISING LLC 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ Attest:  ___________________________ 
Title: ___________________________ 
 
 
YOU, AS FRANCHISEE: 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ Attest: ___________________________ 
Title: ___________________________ 
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ADDENDUM TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
FOR THE STATE OF INDIANA 

 
This “Addendum” is made and entered into by and between TAZIKI'S FRANCHISING, LLC, an 

Alabama limited liability company (“we”, “our” or “us”), as franchisor and __________________, a 
________________ (“you”), as franchisee, to amend and supplement that certain Area Development 
Agreement that we and you have executed, and is dated as of the same date.  The following provisions 
supersede and control any conflicting provisions of the Area Development Agreement: 

 
1. The prohibition by Indiana Code 23-2-2.7-1(7) against unilateral termination of the Area 

Development Agreement without good cause or in bad faith, good cause being defined therein as a 
material breach of the Area Development Agreement, shall supersede the provisions of Sections 14 and 
15 of the Area Development Agreement in the State of Indiana to the extent they may be inconsistent with 
such prohibition. 
 

2. Section 23 is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 
 

“This Area Development Agreement and any claims arising under it or in 
relation to it or to the relationships between the parties shall be governed, 
construed, interpreted and enforced by and under the laws of the State of 
Indiana.” 
 

3. Section 24 amended by adding the following: 
 

“With respect to any claims, controversies or disputes which are not 
finally resolved through mediation or as otherwise provided above, You, 
us, and your owners hereby irrevocably submit themselves to the 
jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located in Indiana having 
subject matter jurisdiction of the claim, and hereby waive all objections 
to personal jurisdiction for the purpose of carrying out this provision.  
You and your owners hereby agree that service of process may be made 
upon any of them in any proceeding relating to or arising out of this Area 
Development Agreement or the relationship created by this Area 
Development Agreement by any means allowed by the laws and 
applicable rules of procedure of the United States, the State of Indiana, 
the state of residence of the Franchisee or any owner, or the state in 
which the Franchised Business is located.” 
 

4. No release language set forth in the Area Development Agreement shall require a party to 
release any claim arising under Indiana franchise law. 

 
All other rights, obligations, and provisions of the Area Development Agreement shall remain in 

full force and effect.  This Addendum is incorporated in and made a part of the Area Development 
Agreement for the State of Indiana. 

(Signatures Appear on Following Page) 
 

 



 

IN-4 
 
4836-2893-1257 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has caused this Addendum to be executed 
by its duly authorized representative as of the date of the Area Development Agreement. 

TAZIKI’S FRANCHISING LLC 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ Attest:  ___________________________ 
Title: ___________________________ 
 
 
YOU, AS DEVELOPER: 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ Attest: ___________________________ 
Title: ___________________________ 
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ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO 
THE MICHIGAN FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW 

This “Addendum” is made and entered into by and between TAZIKI'S FRANCHISING, LLC, an 
Alabama limited liability company (“we”, “our” or “us”), as franchisor and __________________, a 
________________ (“you”), as franchisee, to amend and supplement that certain Franchise Agreement 
that we and you have executed, and is dated as of the same date.  The following provisions supersede and 
control any conflicting provisions of the Franchise Agreement: 

(A) THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE 
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS.  IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING 
PROVISIONS ARE IN THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID 
AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU. 

(B) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees. 

(C) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver or estoppel 
which deprives franchisee of rights and protection provided in this Act.  This shall not preclude a 
franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims. 

(D) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term 
except for good cause.  Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any 
lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written 
notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure 
such failure. 

(E) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating 
the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of 
the franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and furnishings.  Personalized materials 
which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and 
furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchised business are not subject to 
compensation.  This subsection applies only if (i) the term of the franchise is less than 5 years and 
(ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct 
substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, 
advertising of other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the 
franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor’s intent 
not to renew the franchise. 

(F) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available 
to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances.  This section does not 
require a renewal provision. 

(G) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state.  This shall not 
preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct 
arbitration at a location outside this state. 
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(H) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, 
except for good cause.  This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of 
first refusal to purchase the franchise.  Good cause shall include, but is not limited to: 

(i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then current reasonable 
qualifications or standards. 

(ii) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or subfranchisor. 

(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful 
obligations. 

(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the 
franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the 
proposed transfer. 

(I) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely 
identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants a 
franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and 
conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this 
subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a 
franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the 
lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach. 

(J) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise 
transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been 
made for providing the required contractual service. 

(Signatures Appear on Following Page) 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has caused this Addendum to be executed 
by its duly authorized representative as of the date of the Franchise Agreement. 

 
TAZIKI’S FRANCHISING LLC 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ Attest:  ___________________________ 
Title: ___________________________ 
 
 
YOU, AS FRANCHISEE: 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ Attest: ___________________________ 
Title: ___________________________ 
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ADDENDUM TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO 
THE MICHIGAN FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW 

This “Addendum” is made and entered into by and between TAZIKI'S FRANCHISING, LLC, an 
Alabama limited liability company (“we”, “our” or “us”), as franchisor and __________________, a 
________________ (“you”), as franchisee, to amend and supplement that certain Area Development 
Agreement that we and you have executed, and is dated as of the same date.  The following provisions 
supersede and control any conflicting provisions of the Area Development Agreement: 

(A) THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE 
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS.  IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING 
PROVISIONS ARE IN THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID 
AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU. 

(B) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees. 

(C) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver or estoppel 
which deprives franchisee of rights and protection provided in this Act.  This shall not preclude a 
franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims. 

(D) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term 
except for good cause.  Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any 
lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written 
notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure 
such failure. 

(E) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating 
the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of 
the franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and furnishings.  Personalized materials 
which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures and 
furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchised business are not subject to 
compensation.  This subsection applies only if (i) the term of the franchise is less than 5 years and 
(ii) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct 
substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, 
advertising of other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the 
franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor’s intent 
not to renew the franchise. 

(F) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available 
to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances.  This section does not 
require a renewal provision. 

(G) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state.  This shall not 
preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct 
arbitration at a location outside this state. 
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(H) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, 
except for good cause.  This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of 
first refusal to purchase the franchise.  Good cause shall include, but is not limited to: 

(i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then current reasonable 
qualifications or standards. 

(ii) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or subfranchisor. 

(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful 
obligations. 

(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the 
franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the 
proposed transfer. 

(I) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely 
identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants a 
franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and 
conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this 
subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a 
franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the 
lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach. 

(J) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise 
transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been 
made for providing the required contractual service. 

 (Signatures Appear on Following Page) 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has caused this Addendum to be executed 
by its duly authorized representative as of the date of the Area Development Agreement. 

TAZIKI’S FRANCHISING LLC 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ Attest:  ___________________________ 
Title: ___________________________ 
 
 
YOU, AS DEVELOPER: 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ Attest: ___________________________ 
Title: ___________________________ 
 



 

VA-1 
4836-2893-1257 

ADDENDUM TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT PURSUANT TO 
THE VIRGINIA RETAIL FRANCHISING ACT 

The following provisions supersede the Disclosure Document and apply to all franchises offered 
and sold in the State of Virginia: 

1. The following is added to Item 17 h: 

a) Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act (the 
"Virginia Act"), it is unlawful for a franchisor to cancel a franchise without 
reasonable cause.  If any grounds for default or termination stated in the 
Franchise Agreement and/or the Development Agreement do not constitute 
reasonable cause, as that term may be defined in the Virginia Act or the laws of 
Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable. 

2. The proposed agreements described in Item 22, including all agreements that a franchisee 
must sign, are accurately presented in this Disclosure Document. 

3. We amend our disclosure of Item 5 of the Franchise Disclosure Document.  The Virginia 
State Corporations Commission has requested that we provide franchisees in Virginia 
with assurance of our financial capability to perform our obligations under the franchise 
agreement.  We have elected to provide those assurances by deferring payment of the 
initial franchise fees for all transactions in Virginia until the completion of all of our pre-
opening obligations and you have opened your Franchised Restaurant.  You will not pay 
the initial franchise fee or development fee when you sign the Franchise Agreement or 
Area Development Agreement, respectively.         
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ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO THE 
VIRGINIA RETAIL FRANCHISING ACT 

 
This Addendum to the Franchise Agreement by and between TAZIKI’S FRANCHISING, LLC, 

an Alabama limited liability company (“we”, “our” or “us”), as franchisor and 
_______________________, a _______________________, as franchisee (“you”) is dated 
_______________, 20__. 

The following provisions supersede and control any conflicting provisions of the Franchise 
Agreement: 

1. Notwithstanding Section 5, paragraph (a) of the Franchise Agreement, you will pay your 
initial franchise fee on the Opening Date when you open the Franchised Restaurant in 
compliance with Section 6, paragraph (h) of the Franchise Agreement.   

2. All other rights, obligations, and provisions of the Franchise Agreement shall remain in 
full force and effect.  Only the Sections specifically added to or amended by this 
Addendum shall be affected.  This Addendum is incorporated in and made a part of the 
Franchise Agreement for the State of Virginia. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Addendum as of the date set forth 
above. 

TAZIKI’S FRANCHISING LLC 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ Attest:  ___________________________ 
Title: ___________________________ 
 
 
YOU, AS FRANCHISEE: 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ Attest: ___________________________ 
Title: ___________________________ 
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ADDENDUM TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO THE 
VIRGINIA RETAIL FRANCHISING ACT 

This Addendum to the Area Development Agreement by and between TAZIKI'S 
FRANCHISING, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company (“we”, “our” or “us”), as franchisor, and 
____________________, a _______________________ (“you”), as developer, is dated 
_______________ 20__. 

The following provisions supersede and control any conflicting provisions of the Area 
Development Agreement: 

1. Section 5 of the Area Development Agreement is amended to provide that all fees are 
payable when the Franchised Restaurant opens as provided in the Unit's Franchise 
Agreement.  There is no Development Fee due and payable when you sign and deliver 
the Area Development Agreement.  

2. All other rights, obligations, and provisions of the Area Development Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect.  Only the Sections specifically added to or amended by 
this Addendum shall be affected.  This Addendum is incorporated in and made a part of 
the Area Development Agreement for the State of Virginia. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Addendum as of the date set forth above. 
 
TAZIKI’S FRANCHISING LLC 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ Attest:  ___________________________ 
Title: ___________________________ 
 
 
YOU, AS DEVELOPER: 
 
 
By:  ____________________________ Attest: ___________________________ 
Title: ___________________________ 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 

To the Board of Directors and Member 
Taziki’s Franchising, LLC 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Taziki’s Franchising, LLC (an Alabama 
limited liability corporation), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 27, 2020 and 
December 29, 2019, and the related statements of income, member’s deficit and cash flows for the 
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

2500 Acton Road
Birmingham, AL 35243
205.979.4100
warrenaverett.com
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Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Taziki’s Franchising, LLC as of December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, and 
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
 
 
Birmingham, Alabama 
April 5, 2021 
 

 
 

Jessica.Pruett
WA



TAZIKI'S FRANCHISING, LLC 
BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 27, 2020 AND DECEMBER 29, 2019 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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2020 2019

CURRENT ASSETS  
Cash 778,853$        669,081$        
Accounts receivable – trade 252,798 262,497
Other receivables 1,532 252
Due from related parties 41,520            153,983
Other current assets 30,031 15,182

Total current assets 1,104,734 1,100,995

EQUIPMENT, NET  10,984 22,249

TOTAL ASSETS  1,115,718$     1,123,244$     

CURRENT LIABILITIES  
Accounts payable – trade 100,774$        23,829$          
Due to related party 279,685 18,164            
Deferred revenue 81,029 85,615
Advertising cooperative liabilities 168,617 387,525

Total current liabilities 630,105 515,133          

DEFERRED REVENUE 563,816 666,889

MEMBER'S DEFICIT (78,203)           (58,778)           

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S CAPITAL 1,115,718$     1,123,244$     

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S CAPITAL 

ASSETS

 



TAZIKI'S FRANCHISING, LLC 
STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 27, 2020 AND DECEMBER 29, 2019 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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2020 2019

REVENUES
Royalties 3,758,315$     4,814,571$     
Franchise fees 125,506 157,058
Marketing fees 768,260 1,011,260

Total revenues 4,652,081 5,982,889

OPERATING EXPENSES
General and administrative expense 417,386 698,033
Payroll expense 863,088 870,090          
Depreciation 11,265 10,234
Provision for doubtful accounts 116,254          963                 
Marketing expense 751,680          1,011,261
Corporate overhead 416,000 416,000

Total operating expenses 2,575,673 3,006,581       

NET INCOME 2,076,408$     2,976,308$     

 

 



TAZIKI'S FRANCHISING, LLC 
STATEMENTS OF MEMBER'S DEFICIT 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 27, 2020 AND DECEMBER 29, 2019 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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MEMBER'S DEFICIT AT DECEMBER 30, 2018 (169,793)$       

Distributions to member (2,865,293)      
Net income 2,976,308

MEMBER'S DEFICIT AT DECEMBER 29, 2019 (58,778)           

Distributions to member (2,095,833)      
Net income 2,076,408

MEMBER'S DEFICIT AT DECEMBER 27, 2020 (78,203)$         

 

 

 

 

 



TAZIKI'S FRANCHISING, LLC 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 27, 2020 AND DECEMBER 29, 2019 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  
Net income 2,076,408$     2,976,308$     

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 11,265            10,234            
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable – trade and other receivables 8,419              (14,153)           
Due from related parties 112,463          (52,808)           
Other current assets (14,849)           (599)                
Accounts payable – trade 76,945            (34,087)           
Due to related party 261,521          (86,298)           
Advertising cooperative liabilities (218,908)         112,378          
Deferred revenue (107,659)         (74,558)           

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,205,605       2,836,417       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  
Purchase of equipment -                      (15,020)           

Net cash used in investing activities -                      (15,020)           

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  
Distributions to member (2,095,833)      (2,865,293)      

Net cash used in financing activities (2,095,833)      (2,865,293)      

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 109,772          (43,896)           

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 669,081          712,977          

CASH AT END OF YEAR  778,853$        669,081$        
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 27, 2020 AND DECEMBER 29, 2019 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Nature of Business 
Taziki’s Franchising, LLC (the Company) is an Alabama limited liability company formed for the 
purpose of establishing franchisees of Taziki’s Mediterranean Café restaurants. The Company’s 
franchise system consists of 91 units at December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019. The term 
“franchise” or “franchisee” within these financial statements describes both third parties and related 
parties that operate units under franchise agreements. 
 
Franchise Operations  
The Company executes store-level franchise agreements, which set out the terms of the arrangement 
with the franchisees for units operated by third parties. The Company’s franchise agreements typically 
require the franchisee to pay an initial, non-refundable fee upon an individual store opening and 
continuing fees based upon a percentage of sales. Subject to Company approval and franchisee 
payment of a renewal fee, a franchisee may generally renew the franchise agreement upon its 
expiration.  
 
Fiscal Year 
The Company operates on a fiscal year ending on the last Sunday in December. The years ended 
December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, each consisted of 52 weeks. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
The financial statements of the Company are prepared under the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. 
GAAP). 
 
Accounting Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
 
COVID-19 Pandemic 
In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel strain of coronavirus (“COVID-19”) 
a global pandemic and recommended containment and mitigation measures worldwide. In response 
to COVID-19, the Company temporarily closed all restaurant dining rooms in the U.S. as of March 
20, 2020 and shifted operations to provide only take-out and delivery service, resulting in significantly 
reduced traffic in its restaurants. In early May 2020, the Company began to reopen its restaurant 
dining rooms with limited seating capacity in compliance with state and local regulations. As of 
December 27, 2020, 85% of the Company’s restaurant dining rooms were open with many still subject 
to seating capacity restrictions. The temporary closure of the Company’s dining rooms and the 
limitations on seating capacity in its reopened dining rooms have resulted in significantly reduced 
traffic in the Company’s restaurants. The negative effect of COVID-19 on the Company’s business 
was significant during 2020.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 27, 2020 AND DECEMBER 29, 2019 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED  
 
Cash  
The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally 
insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
The Company extends credit to its franchisees in the ordinary course of business. Accounts 
receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect. Management determines the 
allowance for doubtful accounts based on past credit history with the franchisee and their current 
financial condition. On a continuing basis, management analyzes delinquent receivables, and once 
these receivables are determined to be uncollectible, they are written off through a charge against an 
existing allowance account. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its franchisees’ 
financial conditions and generally requires no collateral from its franchisees. No amounts were 
considered uncollectible at December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019. 
 
Equipment 
Equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and includes expenditures that 
substantially increase the useful lives of existing equipment. Maintenance, repairs, and minor 
renovations are charged to income as incurred. When equipment is retired or otherwise disposed of, 
the related costs and accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and any 
gain or loss on the disposition is credited or charged to income. The Company provides for 
depreciation of equipment using the straight-line method designed to amortize costs over estimated 
useful lives of 5 years. 
 
Advertising Cooperative Liabilities 
The Company maintains a marketing fund for advertising and promotional programs designed to 
increase sales and enhance the reputation of the Company and its franchise owners. Contributions 
to the fund are required for all franchisees and are generally based on a percent of franchise sales. 
 
The Company records the receipts from franchisees as a liability against which it charges specified 
marketing costs. The Company acts as a principal, in substance, with regard to these contributions 
and costs and, therefore, consolidates the revenue, expenses, and cash flows of the marketing fund 
into the Company’s statements of income and statements of cash flows. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 27, 2020 AND DECEMBER 29, 2019 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED  
 
Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is generated through royalties, initial franchise fees and marketing fees. 
 
Under franchise agreements, the Company provides franchisees with (i) a franchise license, which 
includes a license to use the Company’s intellectual property and, in those markets where the 
Company manages a marketing fund, advertising, and promotion management, (ii) pre-opening 
services, such as site selection, training, and inspections, and (iii) ongoing services, such as 
development of training materials and menu items and restaurant monitoring and inspections. The 
Company determined that services the Company provides under franchise agreements are highly 
interrelated and dependent upon the franchise license and the services are not distinct performance 
obligations. Consequently, the Company bundles the franchise license performance obligation and 
promises to provide services into a single performance obligation, which are satisfied by providing a 
right to use the Company’s intellectual property over the term of each franchise agreement. The 
Company calculates royalties, including franchisee contributions to the marketing fund managed by 
the Company, as a percentage of franchise restaurant sales over the term of the franchise agreement. 
Under the franchise agreements, the Company must spend marketing fund contributions paid by 
franchisees on advertising, product development, marketing, and related activities. Initial and renewal 
franchise fees are payable by the franchisee upon a new restaurant opening or renewal of an existing 
franchise agreement. The franchise agreement royalties, inclusive of marketing fund contributions, 
represent sales-based royalties that are related entirely to the performance obligation under the 
franchise agreement and are recognized as franchise sales occur. Initial and renewal franchise fees 
are recognized as revenue ratably over the term of the respective agreement.  
 
The Company’s performance obligation under development agreements generally consists of an 
obligation to grant exclusive development rights over a stated term. These development rights are 
not distinct from franchise agreements, therefore, upfront fees paid by franchisees for exclusive 
development rights are deferred and apportioned to each franchise restaurant opened by the 
franchisee. The pro rata amount apportioned to each restaurant is accounted for as an initial franchise 
fee. 
 
Deferred Revenue 
Deferred revenue primarily consists of initial franchise fees and additional unit fees received as a 
result of the sale of an area development agreement (ADA) and the sale of individual franchise 
locations to third parties. The initial franchise fee is typically $25,000 - $35,000 per location to be 
developed under the ADA. All area development agreements require payment of a non-refundable 
development fee consisting of (i) a First Unit Fee of $25,000 - $35,000 for the first Development Unit, 
and (ii) an Additional Unit Fee of $5,000 for each additional Development Unit included in the 
agreement. The remainder of the initial franchise fee is paid at the time an individual franchise 
agreement is signed and is recognized over the period of the franchise agreement. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 27, 2020 AND DECEMBER 29, 2019 
 
 

10 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
Advertising 
Except for costs associated with the advertising cooperative liabilities, advertising costs are expensed 
as incurred. Advertising costs totaled $363 and $1,072 for the years ended December 27, 2020 and 
December 29, 2019, respectively. 
 
Contingencies 
Estimated loss contingencies are accrued only if the loss is probable and the amount of the loss can 
be reasonably estimated. With respect to a loss contingency, it may be probable that a loss has 
occurred, but the estimate of the loss is a wide range. While the Company believes that none of these 
claims, disputes, administrative and legal matters will have a material adverse effect on the 
Company’s financial position, these matters are uncertain and the Company cannot at this time 
determine whether the financial impact, if any, of these matters will be material to the Company’s 
results of operations in the period in which such matters are resolved or a better estimate becomes 
available. 
 
Income Taxes 
The Company is a limited liability company and has elected under Section 701 of the Internal 
Revenue Code to have its income or loss taxed directly to the member. Accordingly, no income tax 
provision is required. 
 
The Company assesses its uncertain tax positions for the likelihood that they would be overturned 
upon Internal Revenue Service (IRS) examination or upon examination by state taxing authorities. 
The Company has assessed its uncertain tax positions and determined that it does not have any 
positions at December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, that it would be unable to substantiate. The 
Company has filed tax returns through 2019.  
 
Subsequent Events 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 5, 2021, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
 
 
2. EQUIPMENT 
 
Equipment consists of the following: 

2020 2019

Equipment  $          63,385  $          63,385 
Less accumulated depreciation 52,401 41,136 

 $          10,984  $          22,249 
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3. DEFERRED REVENUE 
 
The following table reflects the change in deferred revenue for the years ended December 27, 2020 
and December 29, 2019: 
 

2020 2019

Deferred franchise fees at beginning of period 752,504$        827,062$        
Revenue recognized during the period (125,506)         (157,058)         
Revenue recognized due to transfer of ownership 17,847            -                  
New deferral due to cash received and other -                      82,500            

Deferred franchise fees at end of period 644,845$        752,504$        

 
The following table illustrates estimated revenues the Company expects to recognize in the future 
related to performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as of December 27, 
2020: 
 

2021 81,029$          
2022 79,500            
2023 79,500            
2024 71,533            
2025 64,775            

Thereafter 268,508          

Total 644,845$        

 
 
4. FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS  
 
The Company did not have any new franchise or area development agreements as of 
December 27, 2020. The Company signed one new area development agreement during 2019. All 
area development agreements require payment of a non-refundable development fee consisting of 
(i) a First Unit Fee of $25,000 - $35,000 for the first Development Unit, and (ii) an Additional Unit Fee 
of $5,000 for each additional Development Unit included in the agreement.  
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5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Company receives royalty and marketing fees from stores operated by Taziki’s Restaurants, 
LLC, which is an entity under common ownership. For the year ended December 27, 2020, royalties 
from these stores amounts to $1,126,000, which is 30% of total royalties. For the year ended 
December 29, 2019, royalties from these stores amounts to $1,432,000, which is 30% of total 
royalties. During 2020 and 2019, these stores contributed to the marketing fund $228,000 and 
$271,000, respectively. 
 
The Company reimburses Taziki’s Restaurants, LLC for services performed and the use of its 
employees, office space, and equipment. During 2020 and 2019, the Company reimbursed Taziki’s 
Restaurants, LLC $1,320,000 and $1,315,000, respectively, which the Company allocates across 
various expenses in the statements of income. 
 
For the years ended December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, Taziki’s Restaurants, LLC 
contributed, and was reimbursed for, $388,000 and $433,000, respectively, for services provided for 
the marketing fund. At December 27, 2020 and December 29, 2019, amounts due to this related party 
total $279,685 and $18,164, respectively.  
 
The Company also receives royalty and marketing fees from stores owned by other related parties 
such as shareholders, board members, and officers. For the year ended December 27, 2020 and 
December 29, 2019, respectively, royalties from these stores amounts to $734,000 and $877,000, 
which comprises 20% and 18% of total royalties. These stores contributed $149,000 and $168,000 
to the marketing fund during 2020 and 2019, respectively. At December 27, 2020 and December 29, 
2019, receivables from these related parties totaled $41,520 and $153,983, respectively. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 

To the Board of Directors and Member 
Taziki’s Franchising, LLC 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Taziki’s Franchising, LLC (an Alabama 
limited liability corporation), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 29, 2019 and 
December 30, 2018, and the related statements of income, member’s deficit, and cash flows for the 
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 
 
We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 
 

2500 Acton Road
Birmingham, AL 35243
205.979.4100
warrenaverett.com
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Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Taziki’s Franchising, LLC as of December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018, and 
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
As described in Note 2 to the financial statements, Taziki’s Franchising, LLC changed its method of 
accounting for revenue in the year ended December 30, 2018 as required by the provisions of FASB 
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 606, Revenue From Contracts with Customers (ASC 
606). Our opinion is not modified with respect to that matter. 
 
 
 
Birmingham, Alabama 
April 20, 2020 
 

 
 

Jessica.Pruett
WA
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(As Restated)

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS  

Cash 669,081$         712,977$         

Accounts receivable – trade 262,497 220,745

Other receivables 252 27,851

Due from related parties 153,983           101,175

Prepaid expenses 15,182 14,583

Total current assets 1,100,995 1,077,331

EQUIPMENT, NET  22,249 17,463

TOTAL ASSETS  1,123,244$      1,094,794$      

CURRENT LIABILITIES  

Accounts payable – trade 23,829$           57,916$           

Due to related party 18,164             104,462           

Deferred revenue 85,615 77,622

Advertising cooperative liabilities 387,525 275,147

Total current liabilities 515,133 515,147           

DEFERRED REVENUE 666,889 749,440

MEMBER'S DEFICIT (58,778)           (169,793)         

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S CAPITAL 1,123,244$      1,094,794$      

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S CAPITAL 

ASSETS
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(As Restated)

2019 2018

REVENUES

Royalties 4,814,571$      4,201,249$      

Franchise fees 157,058 82,664
Marketing fees 1,011,260 1,045,415

Total revenues 5,982,889 5,329,328

OPERATING EXPENSES

General and administrative expense 698,033 446,455

Payroll expense 870,090 819,723           

Depreciation 10,234 7,975

Provision for doubtful accounts 963                  -                      
Marketing expense 1,011,261 1,045,415

Corporate overhead 416,000 416,000

Total operating expenses 3,006,581 2,735,568        

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 2,976,308 2,593,760        

OTHER INCOME -                      510                  

NET INCOME 2,976,308$      2,594,270$      
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MEMBER'S DEFICIT AT DECEMBER 31, 2017  (as restated) (375,096)$       

Distributions to member (2,388,967)      

Net income (as restated) 2,594,270

MEMBER'S DEFICIT AT DECEMBER 30, 2018 (as restated) (169,793)         

Distributions to member (2,865,293)      

Net income 2,976,308

MEMBER'S DEFICIT AT DECEMBER 29, 2019 (58,778)$         
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(As Restated)

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  

Net income 2,976,308$      2,594,270$      

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 10,234             7,975               

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable – trade and other receivables (14,153)           (44,277)           

Due from related parties (52,808)           68,908             

Prepaid expenses (599)                18,178             

Accounts payable – trade (34,087)           24,586             

Due to related party (86,298)           104,462           

Advertising cooperative liabilities 112,378           (63,767)           

Deferred revenue (74,558)           57,786             

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,836,417        2,768,121        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

Purchase of equipment (15,020)           (7,739)             

Net cash used in investing activities (15,020)           (7,739)             

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  

Distributions to member (2,865,293)      (2,388,967)      

Net cash used in financing activities (2,865,293)      (2,388,967)      

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (43,896)           371,415           

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 712,977           341,562           

CASH AT END OF YEAR  669,081$         712,977$         
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Nature of Business 
Taziki’s Franchising, LLC (the Company) is an Alabama limited liability company formed for the 
purpose of establishing franchisees of Taziki’s Mediterranean Café restaurants. The Company’s 
franchise system has 91 and 87 units at December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018, respectively. 
The term “franchise” or “franchisee” within these financial statements is meant to describe third parties 
and related parties that operate units under franchise agreements. 
 
Franchise Operations  
The Company executes store-level franchise agreements for units operated by third parties which set 
out the terms of the arrangement with the franchisee. The Company’s franchise agreements typically 
require the franchisee to pay an initial, non-refundable fee upon an individual store opening and 
continuing fees based upon a percentage of sales. Subject to Company approval and franchisee 
payment of a renewal fee, a franchisee may generally renew the franchise agreement upon its 
expiration.  
 
Fiscal Year 
The Company operates on a fiscal year ending on the last Sunday in December. The years ended 
December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018, each consisted of 52 weeks. 
 
Accounting Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash  
The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally 
insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
The Company extends credit to its franchisees in the ordinary course of business. Trade accounts 
receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect. Management provides for 
uncollectible amounts through the use of a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the 
current status of individual and historic write-offs and collections. At December 29, 2019 and 
December 30, 2018, no amounts are considered uncollectible. 
 
Equipment 
Equipment is recorded at cost. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the 
useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful life of equipment is five years.  
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
Advertising Cooperative Liabilities 
The Company maintains a marketing fund for advertising and promotional programs designed to 
increase sales and enhance the reputation of the Company and its franchise owners. Contributions 
to the fund are required for all franchisees and are generally based on a percent of franchise sales. 
 
The receipts from franchisees are recorded as a liability against which specified marketing costs are 
charged. Previously, the revenue, expenses, and cash flows of the marketing fund were not included 
in the Company’s statements of income and statements of cash flows because the contributions to 
the marketing fund were designated for specific purposes and the Company acted as an agent, in 
substance, with regard to these contributions as a result of industry-specific guidance. Under ASC 
606, which superseded the previous industry-specific guidance, the revenue, expenses, and cash 
flows of the marketing fund are fully consolidated into the Company’s statements of income and 
statements of cash flows. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is generated through royalties, initial franchise fees, and marketing fees. 
 
Under franchise agreements, the Company provides franchisees with (i) a franchise license, which 
includes a license to use the Company’s intellectual property and, in those markets where the 
Company manages a marketing fund, advertising, and promotion management, (ii) pre-opening 
services, such as site selection, training, and inspections, and (iii) ongoing services, such as 
development of training materials and menu items and restaurant monitoring and inspections. The 
Company determined that services the Company provides under franchise agreements are highly 
interrelated and dependent upon the franchise license and the services are not distinct performance 
obligations. Consequently, the Company bundles the franchise license performance obligation and 
promises to provide services into a single performance obligation under ASC 606, which are satisfied 
by providing a right to use the Company’s intellectual property over the term of each franchise 
agreement.  Royalties, including franchisee contributions to the marketing fund managed by the 
Company, are calculated as a percentage of franchise restaurant sales over the term of the franchise 
agreement. Under the franchise agreements, marketing fund contributions paid by franchisees must 
be spent on advertising, product development, marketing, and related activities. Initial and renewal 
franchise fees are payable by the franchisee upon a new restaurant opening or renewal of an existing 
franchise agreement. The franchise agreement royalties, inclusive of marketing fund contributions, 
represent sales-based royalties that are related entirely to the performance obligation under the 
franchise agreement and are recognized as franchise sales occur. Additionally, under ASC 606, initial 
and renewal franchise fees are recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
respective agreement. Under the previous standards, initial franchise fees were recognized as 
revenue when the related restaurant commenced operations and the Company’s completion of all 
material services and conditions. Renewal franchise fees were recognized as revenue upon 
execution of a new franchise agreement. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
The Company’s performance obligation under development agreements generally consists of an 
obligation to grant exclusive development rights over a stated term. These development rights are 
not distinct from franchise agreements, therefore, upfront fees paid by franchisees for exclusive 
development rights are deferred and apportioned to each franchise restaurant opened by the 
franchisee. The pro rata amount apportioned to each restaurant is accounted for as an initial franchise 
fee. 
 
Deferred Revenue 
Deferred revenue primarily consists of initial franchise fees and additional unit fees received as a 
result of the sale of an area development agreement (ADA) and the sale of individual franchise 
locations to third parties. The initial franchise fee is typically $25,000 - $35,000 per location to be 
developed under the ADA. All area development agreements require payment of a non-refundable 
development fee consisting of (i) a First Unit Fee of $25,000 - $35,000 for the first Development Unit, 
and (ii) an Additional Unit Fee of $5,000 for each additional Development Unit included in the 
agreement. The remainder of the initial franchise fee is paid at the time an individual franchise 
agreement is signed and is recognized over the period of the franchise agreement. 
 
Advertising 
Except for costs associated with the advertising cooperative liabilities, advertising costs are expensed 
as incurred. Advertising costs were $1,072 for the year ended December 29, 2019 ($1,004 for the 
year ended December 30, 2018). 
 
Contingencies 
Estimated loss contingencies are accrued only if the loss is probable and the amount of the loss can 
be reasonably estimated. With respect to a loss contingency, it may be probable that as loss has 
occurred, but the estimate of the loss is a wide range. While the Company believes that none of these 
claims, disputes, administrative, and legal matters will have a material adverse effect on the 
Company’s financial position, these matters are uncertain and the Company cannot at this time 
determine whether the financial impact, if any, of these matters will be material to the Company’s 
results of operations in the period in which such matters are resolved or a better estimate becomes 
available. 
 
Income Taxes 
The Company is a limited liability company and has elected under Section 701 of the Internal 
Revenue Code to have its income or loss taxed directly to the member. Accordingly, no income tax 
provision is required. 
 
The Company assesses its uncertain tax positions for the likelihood that they would be overturned 
upon Internal Revenue Service (IRS) examination or upon examination by state taxing authorities. 
The Company has assessed its uncertain tax positions and determined that it does not have any 
positions at December 29, 2019 and December 30, 2018, that it would be unable to substantiate. The 
Company has filed tax returns through 2018.  
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED 
 
Subsequent Events 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 20, 2020, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
 
 
2. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 
 
In May 2014, the FASB issued the ASU 2014-09 and in August 2015 issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard that 
supersedes nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP. The standard's core 
principle is that an entity will recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services 
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those goods and services. The Company adopted this guidance effective January 1, 
2018, using the full retrospective transition method. See Note 2, Revenue Recognition, for further 
information about the Company’s transition to this new revenue recognition model using the full 
retrospective transition method. 
 
The Company transitioned to FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 606, Revenue 
From Contracts with Customers (ASC 606), from ASC Topic 605, Revenue Recognition and ASC 
Subtopic 952-605, Franchisors – Revenue Recognition (together, the “Previous Standards”), on 
January 1, 2018, using the full retrospective transition method. The financial statements reflect the 
application of ASC 606 guidance beginning in 2018.  
 
The following table includes the impact on the Company’s statement of income for the retrospective 
adoption of ASC 606 during the year ended December 30, 2018: 
 

As Previously Increase
Revenues Reported (Decrease) As Restated

Royalties 4,201,249$      -$                    4,201,249$      
Franchise fees 155,450           (72,786)           82,664             
Marketing fee revenue -                      1,045,415        1,045,415        
Total revenues 4,356,699        972,629           5,329,328        

Operating Expenses
Marketing expense -                      1,045,415        1,045,415        
Total operating expenses 1,690,153        1,045,415        2,735,568        

Total Operating Income 2,666,546        (72,786)           2,593,760        
Other Income 510                  -                      510                  

Net Income 2,667,056$      (72,786)$         2,594,270$      
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2. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE – CONTINUED 
 
The following table includes the impact on the Company’s balance sheet as of December 30, 2018, 
for the retrospective adoption of ASU No. 2014-09: 
 

As Previously Increase
Reported (Decrease) As Restated

Total Assets 1,094,794$      -$                    1,094,794$      

Total current liabilities 562,525 (47,378)           515,147

Deferred Revenue 195,000 554,440 749,440

Member's Capital (Deficit) 337,269 (507,062)         (169,793)         

Total Liabilities and Member's Capital 1,094,794$      -$                    1,094,794$      

 
 
 
3. DEFERRED REVENUE 
 
Deferred revenue results from initial and renewal franchise fees paid by franchisees, which are 
generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the underlying agreement. The following 
table reflects the change in deferred revenue for the years ended December 29, 2019 and December 
30, 2018: 

2019 2018
Deferred franchise fees at beginning of period 827,062$         769,276$         
Revenue recognized during the period (157,058)         (82,664)           
New deferral due to cash received and other 82,500             140,450           

Deferred franchise fees at end of period 752,504$         827,062$         
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3. DEFERRED REVENUE – CONTINUED  
 
The following table illustrates estimated revenues expected to be recognized in the future related to 
performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as of December 29, 2019: 
 

2020 85,615$           
2021 84,000             
2022 84,000             
2023 84,000             
2024 76,033             

Thereafter 338,856           

Total 752,504$         

 
 
4. FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS 
 
During 2019, the Company signed one new area development agreement (one for the year ended 
December 30, 2018). All area development agreements require payment of a non-refundable 
development fee consisting of (i) a First Unit Fee of $25,000 - $35,000 for the first Development Unit, 
and (ii) an Additional Unit Fee of $5,000 for each additional Development Unit included in the 
agreement. 
 
In addition, three franchise agreements were signed in 2019 (six for the year ended  
December 30, 2018). Of these, two agreements related to area development agreements and 
included an initial franchise fee of $20,000. One agreement related to an area development 
agreement and included an initial franchise fee of $30,000.  
 
 
5. EQUIPMENT 
Equipment consists of the following: 

2019 2018

Equipment  $          63,385  $          48,365 

Less accumulated depreciation 41,136 30,902 

 $          22,249  $          17,463 
 

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 29, 2019, amounted to $10,234 ($7,975 for the 
year ended December 30, 2018). 
 
  



TAZIKI’S FRANCHISING, LLC 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 29, 2019 AND DECEMBER 30, 2018 
 
 

13 

6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Company receives royalty and marketing fees from stores operated by Taziki’s Restaurants, LLC 
(an entity under common ownership). For the year ended December 29, 2019, royalties from these 
stores amounted to approximately $1,432,000, which is approximately 30% of total royalties 
($1,311,000, which is approximately 31% of total royalties for the year ended December 30, 2018). 
These stores contributed approximately $271,000 to the marketing fund ($254,000 in 2018). 
 
The Company reimburses Taziki’s Restaurants, LLC for services performed and the use of its 
employees, office space, and equipment. In 2019, the Company reimbursed Taziki’s Restaurants, 
LLC approximately $1,315,000 for those items ($1,280,000 in 2018), which is allocated across various 
expenses in the statements of income. 
 
For the year ended December 29, 2019, Taziki’s Restaurants, LLC contributed, and was reimbursed 
for, approximately $433,000 for services provided for the marketing fund ($327,000 for the year ended 
December 30, 2018). At December 29, 2019, the Company had $18,164 due to this related party 
($104,462 due from this related party at December 30, 2018). 
 
The Company also receives royalty and marketing fees from stores owned by other related parties 
such as shareholders, board members, and officers. For the year ended December 29, 2019, royalties 
from these stores amounted to approximately $877,000, which is 18% of total royalties ($774,000, 
which is 18% of total royalties for the year ended December 30, 2018). These stores contributed 
approximately $168,000 to the marketing fund ($154,000 in 2018). At December 29, 2019, the 
Company had receivables of $153,983 from these related parties ($101,175 at December 30, 2018). 
 
 
7. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
The outbreak of the novel coronavirus has adversely impacted global commercial activity and 
contributed to significant declines and volatility in financial markets. The coronavirus pandemic and 
government responses are creating disruption in global supply chains and adversely impacting many 
industries.  The outbreak could have a continued material adverse impact on economic and market 
conditions and trigger a period of global economic slowdown. The rapid development and fluidity of 
this situation precludes any prediction as to the ultimate material adverse impact of the novel 
coronavirus.  Nevertheless, the novel coronavirus presents material uncertainty and risk with respect 
to the Company, its performance, and its financial results. 
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Exhibit E 
State Administrators and Agents for Service of Process 

We intend to register this Disclosure Document as a “license” or “franchise” in some or all of the 
following states, in accordance with the applicable state law.  If and when we pursue franchise 
registration (or otherwise comply with the franchise investment laws) in these states, the following are the 
state administrators responsible for the review, registration, and oversight of franchises in that state: 

California 
Department of Business Oversight 
320 West 4th Street, Suite 750 
Los Angeles, California  90013-2344 
(213) 576-7500 or  
(866) 275-2677 (Toll Free) 

Michigan 
Michigan Department of 
Commerce  
Corporations and Securities Bureau 
670 Law Building 
Lansing, Michigan 
(517) 373-7117 

 

South Dakota 
Department of Labor and Regulation 
Division of Securities 
124 S. Euclid, Suite 104 
Pierre SD  57501 
(605) 773-3563 

Hawaii 
Business Registration Division 
Securities Compliance 
Department of Commerce and 
Consumer Affairs 
335 Merchant Street, Room 203 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
(808) 586-2722 
 

Minnesota 
Minnesota Department of  
Commerce 
85 7th Place East, Suite 500 
St. Paul, Minnesota  55155 
(651)296-6328 
 

Virginia 
State Corporation Commission, 
Division of Securities and Retail 
Franchising  
1300 E. Main Street, Ninth Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 
(804) 371-9051 

Illinois 
Franchise Division 
Office of Attorney General 
500 South Second Street 
Springfield, Illinois 62706 
(217) 782-4465 

New York 
New York State Department of 
Law 
Investor Protection Bureau 
28 Liberty Street, 21st Floor 
New York, New York  10005 
(212) 416-8211  
 

Washington 
Department of Financial Institutions 
Securities Division 
150 Israel Road SW 
Tumwater, Washington  98501 
(P.O. Box 9033, Olympia, WA 
98507)  
 (360) 902-8760 
 

Indiana 
Franchise Section 
Indiana Securities Division 
Secretary of State, Room E-111 
302 West Washington Street 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 
(317) 232-6681 
 

North Dakota 
Office of Securities Commissioner 
600 East Boulevard, Fifth Floor 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505 
(701) 328-4712 

Wisconsin 
Division of Securities Department of 
Financial Institutions 
P. O. Box 1768 
Madison, Wisconsin 53701 
(608) 266-8559 

Maryland 
Office of Attorney General Division of 
Securities 
200 St. Paul Place 
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020 
(410) 576-6360 

Rhode Island 
Division of Securities 
233 Richmond Street, Suite 232 
Providence, Rhode Island 02903-
4232 
(401) 222-3048 
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Agents for Service of Process: 

Alabama: John Michael Bodnar, 3755 Corporate Woods Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 
35242 

California: Commissioner of Business Oversight, 1515 K St., Sacramento, California 95814 

Delaware: Capitol Services, Inc., 615 South DuPont Highway, Dover, Delaware 19901 

Hawaii: Commissioner of Securities, PO Box 40, Honolulu, Hawaii 96810 

Illinois: Illinois Attorney General, 500 South Second Street, Springfield, Illinois 62706 

Indiana: Indiana Secretary of State, 302 W. Washington Street, Indianapolis, Indiana 
46204 

Maryland: Maryland Securities Commissioner, 200 St. Paul Place, Baltimore, Maryland 
21202 

Minnesota: Commissioner of Commerce, 85 7th Place East, Suite 500, St. Paul, Minnesota 
55155 

New York: New York Secretary of State, 99 Washington Avenue, Albany, New York 12231 

North Dakota: Securities Commissioner, 600 East Boulevard, Fifth Floor, Bismarck, North 
Dakota 58505 

Rhode Island: Director of the Rhode Island Department of Business Regulation, 233 Richmond 
Street, Providence, Rhode Island 02903 

South Dakota: Director, Division of Securities, Department of Labor and Regulation, 124 S. 
Euclid, Suite 104, Pierre SD 57501 

Virginia: Clerk of the State Corporation Commission, 1300 East Main Street, First Floor, 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

Washington: Director of Financial Institutions, 150 Israel Road SW, Tumwater, Washington  
98501 (P. O. Box 9033, Olympia, Washington 98507) 

Wisconsin: Administrator, Division of Securities, 345 West Washington Avenue, P.O. Box 
1768, Madison, Wisconsin 53701-1768 
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Exhibit G 
Names and Addresses of Franchisees as of December 27, 2020 

 
Huntsville Tazikis I, LLC 4855 Whitesburg Drive Huntsville AL 35802 256-881-9155 
Tazikis Tuscaloosa, LLC 1800 McFarland Blvd. Tuscaloosa AL 35404 205-344-6444 
Taz 19, LLC 2560 Berryhill Rd. Suite A Montgomery AL 36117 334-409-3085 
Taz Auburn, LLC 339 S. College Street Auburn AL 36830 334-246-5198 
Tazikis Huntsville, LLC 105 Brookridge Drive Madison AL 35758 256-724-6564 
Taz Opelika, LLC 2119 Interstate Drive Opelika AL 36801 334-759-6225 
Taz Daphne, Inc. 1539 U.S. Highway 98 Daphne AL 36526 251-273-3337 
Taz Dothan, LLC 4700 West Main Street Dothan AL 36305 334-350-3266 
Taz Mobile, Inc. 9 Du Rhu Drive Mobile AL 36608 251-378-2678 
Taz Florence, LLC 247 Cox Creek Pkwy Florence AL 35630 256-367-2391 
JTJ Restaurants, LLC 8200 Cantrell Road Little Rock AR 72227 501-227-8291 
JTJ Restaurants, LLC 12800 Chenal Parkway Little Rock AR 72221 501-225-1829 
JTJ Restaurants, LLC 724 Oak Street Conway AR 72032 501-327-1829 
JTJ Restaurants, LLC 95 E. Joyce Blvd. Fayetteville AR 72703 479-521-8291 
JTJ Restaurants, LLC 1000 SE Walton Blvd. Bentonville AR 72712 479-715-0647 
JTJ Restaurants, LLC 3929 McCain Blvd. Ste G07B North Little Rock AR 72116 501-218-8822 
JTJ Restaurants, LLC 10800 Bass Pro Parkway, Suite A Little Rock AR 72210 501-455-6228 
JTJ Restaurants, LLc 15000 Cantrell Road Little Rock AR 72223 501-448-2331 
Tazikis Denver, LLC 6345 East Hampden Ave Denver CO 80222 720-310-1970 
Tazikis Denver, LLC 100 East 120th Ave. Northglenn CO 80233 720-259-8056 
plrr-1, LLC 2647 Ulmerton Rd. Clearwater FL 33762 727-498-3350 
Taz PC, LLC 103 W. 23rd Street Panama City FL 32405 850-640-1380 
Café Freska, LLC 216 South Magnolia Drive Tallahassee FL 32301 850-329-6056 
Café Freska, LLC 14035 Beach Blvd. Suite 8 Jacksonville FL 32250 904-503-1950 
Café Freska, LLC 2905 SW 42nd Street Gainesville FL 32608 352-372-1301 

Taz Panama City Beach, Inc 15463 Panama City Beach Parkway 
Panama City 
Beach FL 32407 850-257-5695 

Café Freska, LLC 11700 San Jose Blvd. Suite 25 Jacksonville FL 32223 904-503-2461 
Taz Oviedo, LLC 45 West Mitchell Hammock Road Suite 1311 Oviedo FL 32765 407-542-4157 
TMC of Athens, LLC 227 Prince Ave. Athens GA 30601 706-247-7619 
Imagine Eateries-Eagle, LLC 1592 East  Riverside Drive Eagle ID 83616 208-213-9105 
Imagine Eateries-Boise 
Downtown, LLC 507 West Idaho Street Boise ID 83702 208-908-6050 
TMG01, LLC 4025 East 82nd Street Indianapolis IN 46250 317-315-1125 
PC Eats Ltd. Co 14803 Landmark Drive Louisville KY 40245 502-244-6222 
The Zenith Company 2, LLC 117 Southland Drive Lexington KY 40503 859-286-3082 
DV Eats LTD Co 106 Fairfax Avenue Louisville KY 40207 502-212-5373 
TFI-1, LLC 5821 Line Avenue, Suite A Shreveport LA 71106 318-300-4890 
Phenix Incorporated 3982 North Gloster Street Suite U-2 Tupelo MS 38804 662-553-4200 
Taz Hattiesburg, LLC 3100 Hardy Street Suite 20 Hattiesburg MS 39401 601-909-9432 
North Carolina Fast Casual, 
LLC 302 Colonades Way, Suite 201 Cary NC 27518 919-415-0447 
North Carolina Fresh 
Casual, LLC 7161 O'Kelly Chapel Rd.  Cary NC 27519 919-371-2693 
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Taz Charlotte, LLC 205 S. Kings Drive Charlotte NC 28204 980-256-3197 
TAZ Waverly, LLC 7107 Waverly Walk Avenue Charlotte NC 28227 704-665-5057 
iNC,LLC 7901 Falls of Neuse Road Suite 101 Raleigh NC 27615 984-255-0202 
Taz Fresh Mason, LLC 9640 Mason Montgomery Rd. Suite B. Mason OH 45040 513-234-9099 
Taz Fresh Mason, LLC 7841 Tylersville Road West Chester OH 45069 513-898-2144 
Taz Fresh Kenwood, LLC 7331 Kenwood Road Cincinnati OH 45236 513-964-4005 
KP Restaurants, LLC 4929 East 71st Street Tulsa OK 74136 918-986-8921 
KP Restaurants OK2, LLC 1553 East 15th Street Tulsa OK 74120 918-699-9579 
KP Restaurants OK3, LLC 1389 East 15th Street Edmond OK 73013 405-285-9005 
Tazikis Columbia, LLC 702 Cross Hill Road Columbia SC 29205 803-386-0302 
Tazikis Coleman, LLC 320 W. Coleman Blvd. Charleston SC 29464 843-611-6342 
Taziki's Pelham Road, LLC 3604 Pelham Rd. Suite A Greenville SC 29615 864-501-0450 
TOC, LLC 432 Market Street Chattanooga TN 37402 423-779-3100 
Tazikis Memphis, LLC 540 S. Mendenhall Rd. Memphis TN 38117 901-290-1091 
TOC2, LLC 2020 Gunbarrel Rd. Ste 120 Chattanooga TN 37421 423-443-4479 
DMO, LLC 5205 Old Hickory Blvd. Hermitage TN 37076 615-454-9684 
Taz Memphis, LLC 7850 Poplar Avenue, Suite 26 Germantown TN 38138 901-612-2713 
Stokely Healthy Foods, LLC 6100 Kingston Pike Road Knoxville TN 37919 865-444-0661 
Tazikis Memphis, LLC 7974 US-64  Memphis TN 38133 901-203-0083 
TOC3, LLC 4440 Frontage Road North West, Unit 200 Cleveland TN 37312 423-641-5712 
Stokely Healthy Foods, LLC 6634 Clinton Highway Knoxville TN 37912 865-512-7019 
TMC Southlake, LLC 2750 East Southlake Blvd. Southlake TX 76092 205-837-2553 
TMC Plano, LLC 8305 Preston Road Plano TX 75024 972-370-3660 
Tazikis WV, LLC 1550 University Ave. Morgantown WV 26506 304-293-6738 
JJACE, LLC 1090 Suncrest Towne Centre Morgantown WV 26505 304-777-4455 
Crossings Marketplace, LLC 62 Morrill Way Morgantown WV 26505  
Tazikis Nashville, LLC 4091 Mallory Lane Franklin TN 37067 615-791-4465 
Tazikis Nashville, LLC 3001 West End Ave. Nashville TN 37203 615-724-2276 
Tazikis of Green Hills, LLC 2190 Bandywood Drive Nashville TN 37215 615-873-1027 
Tazikis Nashville, LLC 200 Crossings Lane Mt. Juliet TN 37122 615-610-1815 
Tazikis Nashville, LLC 428 Main Street Franklin TN 37064 615-490-9585 
Tazikis Nashville, LLC 7021 Executive Center Dr., Bld. D Ste 101 Nashville TN 37027 615- 645-4050 
Tazikis Nashville, LLC 230 11th Avenue South Nashville TN 37203 615-203-0346 
Tazikis Nashville, LLC 206 Indian Lake Blvd Hendersonville TN 37075 615-991-6798 

 
LIST OF FRANCHISEES WHO HAVE LEFT THE SYSTEM 

The following is a list of our franchisees in the United States who have ceased to do business under the franchise 
agreement or had an outlet terminated, canceled, not renewed, or transferred during our last fiscal year, or who have not 
communicated with the franchisor within 10 weeks of the issuance date: 

City State Phone Franchisee 

Lexington KY 859-300-6047 The Zenith Company 3, LLC 

Tampa FL 813-867-4747 O M Catering Tampa, LLC 

Daphne AL 251-273-3337 Hemby Foods I, LLC 

Mobile AL 251-378-2678 Hemby Foods II, LLC 
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Closing Acknowledgement 
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TAZIKI’S FRANCHISING, LLC 
FRANCHISE CLOSING ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

As you know, you (or the entity you represent) and we are entering into a Franchise Agreement to 
operate a Franchised Business or an Area Development Agreement to develop Franchised Businesses in 
the Development Territory assigned to you.  The purpose of this Closing Acknowledgment is to 
determine whether any statements or promises were made to you on which you have relied that we have 
not authorized or that may be untrue, inaccurate or misleading. Please review each of the following 
questions carefully and provide honest, accurate and complete responses to each question.   

Acknowledgments and Representations*. 

1. Did you receive a copy of our Franchise Disclosure Document (“FDD”) (and all exhibits and 
attachments) at least 14 calendar days (or at the first personal meeting or least 10 business days if 
you are in New York and Rhode Island), before you signed the Franchise Agreement and Area 
Development Agreement? Check one: (__)Yes (__) No. If no, please tell us if and when you 
received the FDD and when you signed the Franchise Agreement. Please explain why you signed 
the Franchise Agreement or Area Development Agreement before the 14 days expired: 

________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

2. Did you understand all the information in the FDD and your rights and obligations under the 
Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement? Check one:  (__)Yes (__) No.  If no, 
please comment: 

________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

3. Did you receive a copy of the Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement at least 7 
days before you signed the Agreement? Check one: (__)Yes (__) No. If no, tell us when you 
received the Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement and when you signed each 
of them. Please explain why you signed the Agreement(s) when you did: 

________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

4. Have you studied and reviewed carefully the FDD you received from us, and the Area 
Development Agreement and the Franchise Agreement you received and were asked to sign? 
Check one:  (__)Yes (__) No.  If no, please comment: 

________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

5. Was any oral, written or visual claim, statement, presentation or representation made to you on 
which you relied in making your decision to sign the Franchise Agreement and Area 
Development Agreement that contradicted the disclosures in the FDD?                                  

 
*Such representations are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any 
liability incurred under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or under the Maryland Franchise 
Registration and Disclosure Law, if either or both such laws apply to this transaction. 
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Check one: (__)Yes (__) No.  If yes, please explain in detail the oral, written or visual statement, 
presentation, claim or representation: 

________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

6. Except for any financial performance representation included as Item 19 in our FDD, did any 
employee or other person speaking on our behalf make any oral, written or visual claim, 
statement, promise or representation to you that stated, suggested, predicted or projected sales, 
revenues, expenses, earnings, income or profit levels at any Franchised Business franchise, or the 
likelihood of success at your franchised business on which you relied in making your decision to 
sign the Franchise Agreement or Area Development Agreement? Check one: (__)Yes (__) No. If 
yes, please explain in detail who made and what you understand is the oral, written or visual 
claim, statement, promise or representation: 

________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

7. Except for any financial performance representation included as Item 19 in our FDD did any 
employee or other person speaking on our behalf make any statement or promise regarding the 
costs involved in operating a franchise that is not contained in the FDD or that is contrary to, or 
different from, the information contained in the FDD on which you relied in making your 
decision to sign the Franchise Agreement or Area Development Agreement? Check one: (__)Yes 
(__) No. If yes, please identify who made the statement or promise and what you understand are 
the details of the statement or promise. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

8. Do you understand that the franchise granted (a) allows you to operate a Franchised Business 
only at the authorized Location, (b) prevents us from operating or franchising another Franchised 
Business only in the Territory described in the Franchise Agreement, (c) allows us to operate or 
franchise a Franchised Business anywhere outside the Territory, and (4) allows us to open and 
operate or authorize any other party to open and operate a Nontraditional Concept Restaurant in 
your Territory?  Check one: (__)Yes (__) No. If no, please comment:   

________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

9. Do you understand that the Franchise Agreement or Area Development Agreement contains the 
entire agreement between you and us concerning the franchise for the Franchised Business, or the 
Area Development rights, meaning that any prior oral or written statements or agreements not set 
out in the Franchise Agreement, the Area Development Agreement or the FDD will not be 
binding? Check one: (__)Yes (__) No.  If no, please comment: 

________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

10. Do you understand that the success or failure of your franchise or area development program will 
depend in large part upon your skills and experience, your business acumen, the hours you work, 
the location(s) and markets you select for your restaurants, your management of your Franchised 
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Business or area development business, the prices you set, the local market for a Franchised 
Business, interest rates, the economy, inflation, the number and competence of employees or 
contractors you hire and their compensation, competition, financing terms and other economic 
and business factors? Further, do you understand that the economic and business factors that exist 
at the time you buy or open your franchise may change? Check one: (__)Yes (__) No.  If no, 
please comment:   

________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

You understand that your answers are important to us and that we will rely on them. By signing this 
acknowledgment, you are representing that you have considered each question carefully and 
responded truthfully to the above questions. If more space is needed for any answer, please continue 
on a separate sheet, attach it, date it and initial the sheet. 

NOTE:  IF THE FRANCHISEE IS A CORPORATION, PARTNERSHIP, LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY OR OTHER ENTITY, EACH OF ITS GUARANTORS MUST EXECUTE THIS 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT. 

 

Signed:        Signed:        

Print Name:        Print Name:        

Date:         Date:         

 

       ACCEPTED ON BEHALF OF:    
       TAZIKI'S FRANCHISING, LLC 

       By: Taziki’s, Inc. 
       Its: Sole Member 
 

Signed:        Signed:        

Print Name:        Print Name:        

Date:         Date:         
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Exhibit I 
 

General Release 
 

Extension and General Release
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GENERAL RELEASE FOR TRANSFER OR RENEWAL 
 

This General Release (the “Release”) is made as of the ____ day of ____________, 20___ by and 
between ____________________ (the “Franchisee”) and Taziki’s Franchising, LLC, an Alabama limited 
liability company (“Franchisor”). 

WHEREAS, Franchisee is a party to a certain Franchise Agreement [Area Development 
Agreement] dated _______, 20___ (the “Franchise Agreement”) by and between Franchisee and 
Franchisor; and 

WHEREAS, Franchisee desires to sell and assign the Franchise Agreement or transfer the 
Franchised Business (as defined in the Franchise Agreement) at the Approved Location (as defined in the 
Franchise Agreement) to a third party in accordance with the transfer provisions of the Franchise 
Agreement, and Franchisor has approved the application of the transferee to succeed to and become the 
franchisee of the Franchised Business at the Approved Location; and 

WHEREAS, the Franchise Agreement requires that, as a condition to any transfer (as defined in 
the Franchise Agreement) under the Franchise Agreement, Franchisee and the transferee must first 
execute a general release of all claims in favor of Franchisor. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and of the mutual agreements 
contained herein, the parties covenant and agree as follows: 

1. Release of Franchisor.  Franchisee hereby releases and forever discharges Franchisor,  
any subsidiary or affiliate of Franchisor, their respective officers, directors, members, employees, agents, 
contractors and their respective successors, assigns, heirs and personal representatives from any and all 
claims, demands, rights and causes of action of any kind that Franchisee now has or hereafter may have 
on account of or in any way arising out of or related to the offer, sale, administration, performance, 
default, assignment and termination of the Franchise Agreement.  Franchisor and Franchisee mutually 
intend that this Release shall include, without limitation, claims, demands and causes of action arising out 
of alleged misrepresentations of any kind or nature whatsoever, alleged breaches of contract (based upon 
implied, express, estoppel, waiver, or alternative theories of contractual obligation), or breach of any 
alleged special, trust, agency or fiduciary relationship, whether asserted or proposed to be asserted by way 
of claim, setoff, affirmative defense, counterclaim, cross-claim or third party claim. 

2. No Release of Franchisee. Franchisee is not released from any duty or obligation imposed 
upon Franchisee by the Franchise Agreement, provided that upon assignment and assumption of the 
Franchise Agreement by the authorized transferee and delivery of all of the documents and fees required 
by Franchisor as a condition to the assignment or transfer of the Franchised Business, Franchisee shall 
have no liability or obligation with respect to any breach of the Franchise Agreement by the transferee 
arising after the date of transfer or assignment. 

3. Survival of Obligations.  Franchisee and Guarantor(s) each acknowledge that its obligations 
under the Franchise Agreement with respect to indemnification, audits (as to accounting periods prior to the 
Termination Date) and confidentiality of materials disclosed while the Franchise Agreement was in effect, 
and any other provision that specifies it survives termination of the Franchise Agreement all remain in full 
force and effect.  Franchisee and Guarantor(s) shall contact Franchisor regarding any questions on such 
surviving obligations. For purposes of this Release, "Confidential Materials" means all materials in all 
forms, including electronically stored information, that was disclosed to Franchisee and Guarantor(s) in 
confidence, contains confidential information as described in the Franchise Agreement, including without 
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limitation all customer information subject to any privacy requirements, or by the facts and circumstances 
attending disclosure, should be considered confidential and proprietary.   

4. Non-Competition Covenants. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the post-termination 
termination covenants against competition set forth in Section 11 of the Franchise Agreement shall be in full 
force and effect from the Effective Date until their stated expiration date. 

5. No Violation of Applicable Law.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Release does not 
apply to any claim or cause of action arising under laws governing the offer and sale of franchises to 
Franchisee or the relationship between Franchisee and Franchisor if the release would violate or is 
prohibited by such applicable law. 

6. Representations and Warranties.  Franchisee and Guarantor(s) each represent and warrant 
to Franchisor that: (a) Franchisee has reported the gross sales of the Franchised Restaurant accurately and 
correctly calculated the fees due during the Term of the Franchise Agreement; (b) Franchisee, 
Guarantor(s) and Franchisee's employees, contractors and agents have not used, disclosed or made 
unauthorized copies of any Confidential Materials, or shared any access codes to electronic information 
and secure web sites of Franchisor in violation of the Franchise Agreement; (c) no consent of any third 
party is required for Franchisee to enter into or perform this Release; (d) Franchisee or Guarantor(s) have 
not filed a lawsuit or arbitration demand against Franchisor, its parent companies or affiliates and have 
not filed a proceeding, complaint or notice regarding this franchise or franchisor with any federal, state or 
local regulatory or law enforcement agency, including without limitation the Federal Trade Commission 
regarding the Franchise Agreement; (f) Franchisee or Guarantor(s) are not the subject of any pending 
bankruptcy, receivership, composition, assignment or similar proceeding; (g) Franchisee has obtained the 
necessary equity owner and governance board authorization to execute and perform this Release; and (h) 
the persons negotiating and executing this Release on Franchisee's behalf have been duly authorized by its 
owners and its governance board. 

7. Confidentiality.  Each party hereto and their respective counsel, representatives and 
agents agrees that they will not disclose any of the terms of this Release.  The parties and their respective 
counsel, representatives and agents are not, however, precluded from disclosing the terms of the Release 
to their attorneys, accountants, tax preparers, paid financial advisors or any governmental, regulatory or 
judicial authority which might compel the disclosure of this Release.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if 
any of the parties is served with a subpoena or other governmental or judicial process seeking to compel 
the disclosure of this Release, it shall be the responsibility of the party that receives the subpoena or other 
governmental or judicial process to notify all other parties to this Release within 72 hours of receipt, thus 
affording the other parties to this Release an opportunity to move to quash the subpoena or oppose the 
entry of any order seeking to compel the disclosure of this Release.  Additionally, in the event it becomes 
necessary to file this Release with a court in any future enforcement action between the parties, the parties 
hereby agree to apply jointly for leave to file this Release under seal. 

8. Future Conduct.  Franchisee, on behalf of itself and its owners, agents, contractors, 
officers, managers, and directors, and the Guarantors (collectively, "Franchisee's Representatives") 
expressly covenant and agree that each of them shall not, at any time, either orally or in writing or 
through any other medium (including without limitation through any social media outlet, posting, blog or 
comment), or any other form of communication, (i) disparage, defame, impugn, assail or criticize the 
reputation, integrity, professionalism or conduct of the Franchisor or its officers, directors, managers, 
owners,  agents, contractors and employees (collectively, "Franchisor's Representatives") the franchisees 
of Franchisor, or any of their representatives, (ii) pursue or promote any action to encourage any of 
Franchisor’s Franchisees to (1) abandon or terminate their franchise, (2) not pay amounts due to 
Franchisor, (3) not perform under any franchise agreement, or (4) not support the Franchisor or any of its 
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programs in any way; or (iii) voluntarily testify or appear as a witness, consultant or expert, or participate 
as an adverse party to Franchisor, in any civil litigation, arbitration or dispute resolution proceeding 
against Franchisor or any of Franchisor's Representatives related to the Franchise, the business of 
Franchisor or the System, Franchisee's Representatives may answer truthfully to any inquiry received 
from a governmental authority or in response to any lawful discovery or subpoena issued in any civil or 
criminal proceeding.  The Franchisee's Representatives and the Franchisor's Representatives will treat 
each other with mutual respect.  Franchisor and the Franchisor's Representatives covenant and agree not 
to disparage, defame, impugn, assail or criticize the reputation, integrity, professionalism or conduct of 
Franchisee and the Guarantors in connection with this Franchise.  The parties acknowledge that monetary 
damages may not be sufficient to provide redress to an aggrieved party if the other party breaches this 
Section, so the parties consent to the entry of injunctive relief to prevent any breach or continuing breach 
of this Section.   

9. Consultation with Counsel. Franchisee and Guarantor(s) acknowledge that each of them 
have consulted with, or had the opportunity to consult with, legal counsel of their own selection about this 
Release.  Franchisee and Guarantor(s) each understand how this Release will affect your legal rights and 
voluntarily enter into this Release with such knowledge and understanding. 

10. Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction.  This Release will be governed by and 
interpreted under Alabama law.  The parties hereby consent and waive all objections to the non-exclusive 
personal jurisdiction of, and venue in, the United States District Court for the Northern District of 
Alabama and Alabama state courts situated in Jefferson County, Alabama for the purposes of all cases 
and controversies involving this Release and its enforcement, and the Franchise Agreement.   

11. Attorneys' Fees.   The parties agree that the non-prevailing party will pay all costs and 
expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by the prevailing party to enforce this Release or 
collect amounts owed under this Release.   

12. Capitalized Terms.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Release shall have the 
meaning assigned to that term in the Franchise Agreement, including its addenda and amendments.   

13. Execution in Counterparts. To facilitate execution of this Release by geographically 
separated parties, this Release and all other agreements and documents to be executed in connection 
herewith may be executed in as many counterparts as may be required; and it shall not be necessary that 
the signatures on behalf of each party appear on each counterpart; but it shall be sufficient that the 
signature on behalf of each party appear on one or more of the counterparts.  All counterparts shall 
collectively constitute a single agreement.  It shall not be necessary in making proof of this Release to 
produce or account for more than a number of counterparts containing the respective signatures on behalf 
of all the parties hereto.  All facsimile executions shall be treated as originals for all purposes.   

14. Entire Agreement.  This Release constitutes the entire understanding and agreement 
between the parties with respect to the Franchised Restaurant and the termination of the Franchise 
Agreement.  This Release may not be changed or modified, except by a writing signed by the parties 
hereto. 

  



 
4835-6811-3849 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Release as of the date and year 
first above written. 

FRANCHISEE:      FRANCHISOR: 

__________________________________  TAZIKI'S FRANCHISING, LLC  
   

By:       By:       

Printed Name:       Printed Name:       

Title:        Title:        

 

GUARANTORS: 

____________________________________ 
Printed Name: 

____________________________________ 
Printed Name: 

____________________________________ 
Printed Name: 
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EXTENSION AND GENERAL RELEASE AGREEMENT 
 

This Extension and General Release Agreement (the “Extension”) is made as of the ____ 
day of ____________, 20___ (“Effective Date”) by and among ____________________, a 
__________________ (the “Franchisee”), its guarantors signing this Extension below (the 
“Guarantors”) and Taziki’s Franchising, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company 
(“Franchisor”).  Franchisee and Franchisor are parties to a certain Franchise Agreement dated 
_______, 20___ (the “Franchise Agreement”).  Terms defined in the Franchise Agreement shall 
have the same meaning in this Agreement unless the context indicates otherwise. 

Recitals.  The Initial Term specified in Section 4 of the Franchise Agreement is expiring.   
Franchisee desires to renew and extend the Franchise Agreement and continue to operate the 
Franchised Business at the Approved Location in accordance with the renewal provisions of the 
Franchise Agreement.  Franchisor has determined that Franchisee is eligible to renew the Term 
of the Franchise Agreement in accordance with this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and of the mutual 
agreements contained herein, the parties covenant and agree as follows: 

1. Renewal Notice and Conditions.  Franchisee has given Franchisor the required 
notice of Franchisee’s intent to renew.  Franchisee will pay to Franchisor the renewal fee 
specified in the Franchise Agreement upon signing this Agreement.  Franchisor has determined 
that it will accept renewal and waiver any disqualifications for the Franchised Restaurant from 
the conditions specified in the Franchise Agreement.  Franchisee and the Guarantors covenant 
and agree to perform the renewal conditions specified on Exhibit A of this Agreement by the 
deadlines specified therein.  If all of the renewal conditions having a deadline prior to the 
expiration of the Initial Term are timely performed, then the Term shall renew for the first 
Renewal Term effectively immediately on the expiration of the Initial Term for the period of 
time specified in the Franchise Agreement.  The Initial Term expires on ___________________, 
20__.   

2. Ownership.  Franchisee’s Owner-Operator and Owners named in the Franchise 
Agreement remain in such positions and the information on Attachment A remains accurate and 
complete in all respects except as noted on Exhibit B to this Agreement.  Franchisee and the 
Guarantors represent and warrant to Franchisor that no transaction has occurred, or is under 
contract to occur, and no transaction is contemplated by the Owners of Franchisee, that would 
require the consent or approval of Franchisor under Section 22 of the Franchise Agreement. 

3. Lease.  The lease for the Franchised Restaurant previously approved by 
Franchisor remains in full force and effect and has not been amended, changed or modified by 
Franchisee except as Franchisor has approved.  The Franchised Restaurant remains in its 
Location and has not relocated, expanded or contracted in size or seating except as approved by 
Franchisor in writing. 

4. Accurate Reporting.  Franchisee represents and warrants to Franchisor that 
Franchisee has accurately and timely recorded and reported to Franchisor the Net Cash Sales of 
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the Franchised Restaurant and paid the proper amounts due to Franchisor under Section 5 of the 
Franchise Agreement.   

5. Performance of Franchisor Obligations.  Franchisee represents and warrants to 
Franchisor that as of the Effective Date, Franchisor has performed all of its obligations to 
Franchisee in a manner and time acceptable to Franchisee, and no event or condition has 
occurred that with the giving of notice, the passage of time or both, would constitute an event of 
default or breach of the Franchise Agreement that would give Franchisee the right to terminate 
the Franchise Agreement under Section 28.   

6. Franchisee Representations.  Franchisee affirms and acknowledges to Franchisor 
that as of the Effective Date, the representations and warranties of Franchisee under Section 55 
of the Franchise Agreement remain true and correct, and apply to the execution and delivery of 
this Agreement.   

7. Release of Franchisor.  Franchisee hereby releases and forever discharges 
Franchisor,  any subsidiary or affiliate of Franchisor, their respective officers, directors, 
members, employees, agents, contractors and their respective successors, assigns, heirs and 
personal representatives from any and all claims, demands, rights and causes of action of any 
kind that Franchisee now has or hereafter may have on account of or in any way arising out of or 
related to the offer, sale, administration and performance of the Franchise Agreement through the 
Effective Date.  Franchisor and Franchisee mutually intend that this Agreement shall include, 
without limitation, claims, demands and causes of action arising out of alleged 
misrepresentations of any kind or nature whatsoever, alleged breaches of contract (based upon 
implied, express, estoppel, waiver, or alternative theories of contractual obligation), or breach of 
any alleged special, trust, agency or fiduciary relationship, whether asserted or proposed to be 
asserted by way of claim, setoff, affirmative defense, counterclaim, cross-claim or third party 
claim.  Franchisor remains obligated to perform its obligations under the Franchise Agreement 
through and following the Effective Date. 

8. No Release of Franchisee. Franchisee is not released from any duty or obligation 
imposed upon Franchisee by the Franchise Agreement, provided that upon assignment and 
assumption of the Franchise Agreement by the authorized transferee and delivery of all of the 
documents and fees required by Franchisor as a condition to the assignment or transfer of the 
Franchised Business, Franchisee shall have no liability or obligation with respect to any breach 
of the Franchise Agreement by the transferee arising after the date of transfer or assignment. 

9. Survival of Obligations.  Franchisee and Guarantor(s) each acknowledge that its 
obligations under the Franchise Agreement with respect to indemnification, audits (as to 
accounting periods prior to the Effective Date) and confidentiality of materials disclosed while the 
Franchise Agreement is in effect, and any other provision that specifies it survives termination of 
the Franchise Agreement all remain in full force and effect.  Franchisee and Guarantor(s) shall 
contact Franchisor regarding any questions on such surviving obligations. For purposes of this 
Agreement, "Confidential Materials" means all materials in all forms, including electronically 
stored information, that was disclosed to Franchisee and Guarantor(s) in confidence, contains 
confidential information as described in the Franchise Agreement, including without limitation all 
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customer information subject to any privacy requirements, or by the facts and circumstances 
attending disclosure, should be considered confidential and proprietary.   

10. Non-Competition Covenants. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the covenants against 
competition set forth in Section 11 of the Franchise Agreement shall remain and be in full force 
and effect from the Effective Date until their stated expiration dates. 

11. No Violation of Applicable Law.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement 
does not apply to any claim or cause of action arising under laws governing the offer and sale of 
franchises to Franchisee or the relationship between Franchisee and Franchisor if the release 
would violate or is prohibited by such applicable law. 

12. Representations and Warranties.  Franchisee and Guarantor(s) each represent and 
warrant to Franchisor that: (a) Franchisee has accurately and correctly calculated the fees due 
during the Term of the Franchise Agreement and paid such fees when due; (b) Franchisee, 
Guarantor(s) and Franchisee's employees, contractors and agents have not used, disclosed or 
made unauthorized copies of any Confidential Materials, or shared any access codes to electronic 
information and secure web sites of Franchisor in violation of the Franchise Agreement; (c) no 
consent of any third party is required for Franchisee to enter into or perform this Agreement or 
extend the term of the lease for the Renewal Term; (d) Franchisee or Guarantor(s) have not filed 
a lawsuit or arbitration demand against Franchisor, its parent companies or affiliates and have 
not filed a proceeding, complaint or notice regarding this franchise or franchisor with any 
federal, state or local regulatory or law enforcement agency, including without limitation the 
Federal Trade Commission regarding the Franchise Agreement; (f) Franchisee or Guarantor(s) 
are not the subject of any pending bankruptcy, receivership, composition, assignment or similar 
proceeding; (g) Franchisee has obtained the necessary equity owner and governance board 
authorization to execute and perform this Agreement; and (h) the persons negotiating and 
executing this Agreement on Franchisee's behalf have been duly authorized by its owners and its 
governance board. 

13. Confidentiality.  Each party hereto and their respective counsel, representatives 
and agents agrees that they will not disclose any of the terms of this Agreement.  The parties and 
their respective counsel, representatives and agents are not, however, precluded from disclosing 
the terms of the Release to their attorneys, accountants, tax preparers, paid financial advisors or 
any governmental, regulatory or judicial authority which might compel the disclosure of this 
Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any of the parties is served with a subpoena or 
other governmental or judicial process seeking to compel the disclosure of this Agreement, it 
shall be the responsibility of the party that receives the subpoena or other governmental or 
judicial process to notify all other parties to this Agreement within 72 hours of receipt, thus 
affording the other parties to this Agreement an opportunity to move to quash the subpoena or 
oppose the entry of any order seeking to compel the disclosure of this Agreement.  Additionally, 
in the event it becomes necessary to file this Agreement with a court in any future enforcement 
action between the parties, the parties hereby agree to apply jointly for leave to file this 
Agreement under seal. 

14. Consultation with Counsel. Franchisee and Guarantor(s) acknowledge that each of 
them have consulted with, or had the opportunity to consult with, legal counsel of their own 
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selection about this Agreement.  Franchisee and Guarantor(s) each understand how this 
Agreement will affect your legal rights and voluntarily enter into this Agreement with such 
knowledge and understanding. 

15. Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction.  This Agreement will be governed by 
and interpreted under Alabama law.  The parties hereby consent and waive all objections to the 
non-exclusive personal jurisdiction of, and venue in, the United States District Court for the 
Northern District of Alabama and Alabama state courts situated in Jefferson County, Alabama 
for the purposes of all cases and controversies involving this Agreement and its enforcement, and 
the Franchise Agreement.   

16. Attorneys' Fees.   The parties agree that the non-prevailing party will pay all costs 
and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by the prevailing party to enforce 
this Agreement or collect amounts owed under this Agreement.   

17. Capitalized Terms.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement 
shall have the meaning assigned to that term in the Franchise Agreement, including its addenda 
and amendments.   

18. Execution in Counterparts. To facilitate execution of this Agreement by 
geographically separated parties, this Agreement and all other agreements and documents to be 
executed in connection herewith may be executed in as many counterparts as may be required; 
and it shall not be necessary that the signatures on behalf of each party appear on each 
counterpart; but it shall be sufficient that the signature on behalf of each party appear on one or 
more of the counterparts.  All counterparts shall collectively constitute a single agreement.  It 
shall not be necessary in making proof of this Agreement to produce or account for more than a 
number of counterparts containing the respective signatures on behalf of all the parties hereto.  
All facsimile executions shall be treated as originals for all purposes.   

19. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and 
agreement between the parties with respect to the Franchised Restaurant and the termination of 
the Franchise Agreement.  This Agreement may not be changed or modified, except by a writing 
signed by the parties hereto. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date 
and year first above written. 

FRANCHISEE: 

 

_______________________________________ 

 

By:       

Printed Name:       

Title:        

FRANCHISOR: 

 

TAZIKI'S FRANCHISING, LLC 

 

By:       

Printed Name:       

Title:        

 

 

 

GUARANTORS: 

____________________________________ 
Printed Name: 

____________________________________ 
Printed Name: 

____________________________________ 
Printed Name: 
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EXHIBIT A 

RENEWAL CONDITIONS AND PERFORMANCE 

Renewal of the Franchise Term is expressly conditioned on Franchisee’s timely performance of 
the following: 

 

1. Upgrades, Remodeling, Repairs & Renovations. 

 

Completion Deadline: 

 

2. Retraining. 

 

Completion Deadline: 

 

3. Kitchen and Technology Equipment Replacements and Updates. 

 

Completion Deadline: 
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EXHIBIT B 

INFORMATION CHANGES 

 

1. Your Owners: 

 
Name Address Telephone Email Percentage 

Ownership 
     
     
     
     
 
* Person designated as Owner-Operator 

 

2. Persons with signed Management Confidentiality and Non-Competition Agreements: 
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STATE EFFECTIVE DATES 

 The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be 
registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration:  California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, 
Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, 
Washington, and Wisconsin.   

 This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is filed, 
registered, or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:  

State Registration Date 

Indiana Pending 

Michigan Pending 

Virginia Pending 

 

 Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws, such 
as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing plans. 
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RECEIPT OF FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement, Area Development Agreement and 
other information in plain English.  Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully. 

If Taziki’s Franchising, LLC (Taziki’s) offers you a franchise, we must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 
calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection 
with the proposed franchise sale.  New York requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first 
personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any 
consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.  Iowa requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the 
earlier of the first personal meeting or 14 days before you sign a binding contract or pay any consideration.  Michigan 
requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding 
franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first. 

If Taziki’s does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement or a material 
omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and you should report it to the Federal Trade 
Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580, and the applicable state agency listed on Exhibit E to this Franchise Disclosure 
Document. 

Taziki’s is located at 3755 Corporate Woods Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242.  Its telephone number is 
205.451.1860.  The franchise sellers for this offering are Alexander Garmezy, William Magruder, Dan Simpson and 
Michael Smith at 3755 Corporate Woods Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242, 205.451.1860. 

Issuance date:  April 16, 2021. 

Taziki’s has authorized the persons listed on Exhibit E to this Disclosure Document to receive service of process for us in 
Alabama and states where our franchise is registered. 

I have received Taziki’s Disclosure Document, dated April 16, 2021 (or the later date set forth for each applicable state on 
Exhibit E to this Franchise Disclosure Document), which includes the following exhibits: 

A Franchise Agreement including forms of 
Automated Clearing House Payment 
Authorization; Guaranty and Restriction 
Agreement; Management 
Confidentiality  and Non-Competition 
Agreement; Lease Rider; Nontraditional 
Concept; Franchise Agreement Addenda 
Required by Certain States; Receipt of 
Operations Manual and Confidentiality 
Agreement; Fresh Technology Tools 
and Help Desk Agreements; SBA 
Addendum; Optional Digital 

Advertising Services Participation 
Agreement 

B  Area Development Agreement 
C  Disclosure Document and Addenda 

Required by Certain States 
D Financial Statements 
E State Administrators and Agents for 

Service of Process 
F Table of Contents of Operations Manual 
G Names and Addresses of Franchisees 
H Closing Acknowledgement 
I General Release 

   
   
Date of Signature  Signature of Prospective Franchisee (for the prospective franchisee and any corporation, 
(Do not leave blank)  partnership or other business entity having or proposed to have an interest in the  
  franchise or any proposed franchised location) 
  Printed Name:  
You may return the signed receipt either by signing, dating, and mailing it to Taziki’s Franchising, LLC at 3755 Corporate 
Woods Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242 or by scanning and emailing a copy of the signed and dated receipt to 
Taziki’s at franchising@tazikiscafe.com. 
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RECEIPT OF FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement, Area Development Agreement and 
other information in plain English.  Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully. 

If Taziki’s Franchising, LLC (Taziki’s) offers you a franchise, we must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 
calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection 
with the proposed franchise sale.  New York requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first 
personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any 
consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.  Iowa requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the 
earlier of the first personal meeting or 14 days before you sign a binding contract or pay any consideration.  Michigan 
requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding 
franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first. 

If Taziki’s does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement or a material 
omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and you should report it to the Federal Trade 
Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580, and the applicable state agency listed on Exhibit E to this Franchise Disclosure 
Document. 

Taziki’s is located at 3755 Corporate Woods Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242.  Its telephone number is 
205.451.1860.  The franchise sellers for this offering are Alexander Garmezy, Billy Magruder, Dan Simpson and Michael 
Smith at 3755 Corporate Woods Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242, 205.451.1860. 

Issuance date:  April 16, 2021. 

Taziki’s has authorized the persons listed on Exhibit E to this Disclosure Document to receive service of process for us in 
Alabama and states where our franchise is registered. 

I have received Taziki’s Disclosure Document, dated April 16, 2021 (or the later date set forth for each applicable state on 
Exhibit E to this Franchise Disclosure Document), which includes the following exhibits: 

A Franchise Agreement including forms of 
Automated Clearing House Payment 
Authorization; Guaranty and Restriction 
Agreement; Management Confidentiality  
and Non-Competition Agreement; Lease Rider; 
Nontraditional  Concept; Franchise Agreement 
Addenda Required by Certain States; Receipt of 
Operations Manual and Confidentiality 
Agreement; Fresh Technology Tools and Help 
Desk Agreements; SBA Addendum; Optional 
Digital Advertising Services Participation 
Agreement 

B  Area Development Agreement 
C  Disclosure Document and Addenda Required by 

Certain States 
D Financial Statements 
E State Administrators and Agents for Service of 

Process 
F Table of Contents of Operations Manual 
G Names and Addresses of Franchisees 
H Closing Acknowledgement 
I General Release 

   
   
Date of Signature  Signature of Prospective Franchisee (for the prospective franchisee and any corporation, 
(Do not leave blank)  partnership or other business entity having or proposed to have an interest in the  
  franchise or any proposed franchised location) 
  Printed Name:  
You may return the signed receipt either by signing, dating, and mailing it to Taziki’s Franchising, LLC at 3755 Corporate 
Woods Drive, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35242 or by scanning and emailing a copy of the signed and dated receipt to 
Taziki’s at franchising@tazikiscafe.com. 




